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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IRHREE

| am pleased to present the results of U-Home Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the "“Group”) for the year ended 31 March
2014 (the “Year"” or the “Period”) to the shareholders.

RESULTS

During the Period under review, the Group recorded a
turnover of HK$35,079,000, representing a decrease of
1.6% as compared to HK$35,648,000 of the same period
last year. During the Year, profit attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to HK$89,219,000, representing an
increase of 213.7% as compared to HK$41,754,000 of the
same period of last year.

DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2014.

DEVELOPMENT AND PROSPECTS

On 4 November 2013, Jiwa Bio-Pharm Holdings Limited
(HK.2327) convened a special general meeting, and was
renamed U-Home Group Holdings Limited. The new board
of directors of the Company has been committed to seek
new opportunities for business and performance growth,
and timely expand the Company’s scopes of business and
investment, with the aims of improving the Company’'s
business operation and financial position, and enhancing
the Company’s shareholders’ return.

In January 2014, the board of directors of the Company
resolved the cooperation with U-Home Group Limited
to develop a residential project located in Chizhou City,
Anhui Province, the PRC, which was approved at a general
meeting. The Company wishes to strategically venture
into property development sector with this investment
project. In addition, M RAHFEXEEBMR AT (Nanjing
Tuoyu Property Management Co., Ltd.*), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a framework
cooperation agreement with U-Home Group in May 2014.
Such business is expected to generate revenue of not
more than HK$112,500,000 to the Company between 2015
and 2017.

Looking ahead, the Company’'s management and | will
continue our hard work, devotion and pioneering efforts, to
drive continuous development and new strategic expansion
of the Company.

*  For identification only
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
IREHREE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my deepest
appreciation for all staff of the Group for their excellent
contribution, thank our shareholders for their trust and
acknowledge our business partners for their support.

Zhou Xuzhou
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 June 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD AT

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PROSPECTS

On 23 August 2013, U-Home Group International Limited
and U-Home Group Investment Limited (“U-Home Group”)
acquired approximately 71.563% shares of the Company,
and became the ultimate controlling shareholder of the
Company. The new board of directors of the Company has
been committed to seek new opportunities for business
and performance growth, and timely expand the Company's
scopes of business and investment, with the aims of
improving the Company’s business operation and financial
position, and enhancing the Company's shareholders’
return.

Trading Business

During the Period, turnover from the trading business
was HK$33,072,000, representing a decrease of 7.2%
from the previous year; the segment loss amounted
to HK$6,957,000, primarily as a result of lower gross
profit margin. In 2014/15, the Company will endeavour
to improve the loss-making situation. Trading products
managed by the Company mainly include import
prescription drugs sold indirectly to KJP via an authorized
and independent import and export company, and a small
portion of health care products manufactured in the PRC.

R&D and Project Management

The Group has commenced joint chemical and biological
researches with an R&D institution in Hong Kong since
2007. During the Period, segment results amounted to
HK$1,735,000. The management is optimistic about this
business, actively promotes the existing projects and
continues to identify R&D projects with potentials.

During the Period, one of the Group's R&D projects of
pharmaceutical products has attained phrasal achievement.
On 23 July 2012, the Group entered into a technology
transfer agreement with YJB, pursuant to which an
aggregate consideration of RMB111,000,000 was payable
by YJB upon satisfaction of the pre-condition stipulated for
each of the three phases of construction, production and
registration.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD AT

At phase 1, the Group shall transfer the technical
documents of the product technology to YJB within six
months upon signing the technology transfer agreement;
at phase 2, the Group shall assist YJB to construct
a production plant with its ancillary facilities for the
production of the pharmaceutical bulk materials products
to be qualified by the Group and YJB within a prescribed
construction budget, and the construction of the plant
is expected to be completed in July 2014; and at phase
3, the Group shall assist YJB to (i) commence full scale
production of such pharmaceutical bulk materials products
at a designated production capacity and ensure that the
production cost of such bulk materials shall not exceed
the prescribed unit cost, and (ii) obtain the registration
certificates of such products as well as the certification of
“Good Manufacturing Practice” issued by the State Food
and Drug Administration of the PRC by no later than 31
March 2015.

According to the technology transfer agreement, invoices
of RMB40,000,000, RMB20,000,000 and RMB51,000,000
shall be issued upon satisfaction of the pre-conditions
set for phase 1, phase 2 and phase 3 respectively as
mentioned above. The above payment schedule may be
extended by mutual agreement between the parties to
the technology transfer agreement, while the maximum
consideration shall be subject to adjustment(s) if certain of
the above terms and conditions cannot be fulfilled in full.

Investment and Treasury Function

During the Period, segment results amounted to
HK$1,136,000, which was mainly derived from gain from
treasury products and rental income from investment
commercial buildings. The Group has also disposed of
all its treasury products, and will continue to look for
opportunities to invest in treasury products that yield

higher returns under limited risk exposure.

Consultancy and Agency Business

During the Period, segment results amounted to
HK$978,000, which was mainly derived from service
income from property consultation in Mainland China. The
Group will continue to seek opportunities for development
in property sales and consultation business in Mainland
China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD AT

Completion of Disposal of 49% Equity Interest in
Kunming Jida Group

On 23 August 2013, the Group completed the disposal
of its subsidiary, Jiwa Pharmaceuticals Limited (“Jiwa
Pharm"),

Kunming Jida Pharmaceutical Company Limited and its

which directly held a 49% equity interest in

subsidiaries (“Kunming Jida Group”). The Group recorded a
gain on disposal of Jiwa Pharm of HK$100,069,000.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENT

Property Development

By the end of 2013, the Company intended to cooperate
with U-Home Group to develop a residential project located
in Chizhou City, Anhui Province, the PRC. The land to be
developed is located in the Guichi High-Tech Development
Zone, Chizhou City, Anhui Province, which is a key location
in the Guichi Administrative New District. Anhui Province is
located in Eastern China, which lies in the central Yangtze
River Delta region, one of the fastest developing economic
areas in the PRC. On the east side of Anhui Province lies
Jiangsu Province and Zhejiang Province, and on its north
is Shandong Province, another frontline region undergoing
economic growth. Chizhou City is located in the south-
west area of Anhui Province with convenient transportation
system. The land acquired is located in the Guichi High-
Tech Development Zone, which is a key location in the
Guichi Administrative New District. The land will be
developed for both commercial and residential uses. On
the west side of the land is the Guichi District Committee
and the District Government, which were completed and
put into use in 2011. Amenities in the nearby area include
Chizhou No.2 People’'s Hospital (East Region), Provincial
Demonstrative High School Chizhou City No.8 High School
and City Key Primary School of Guichi Binhu Experimental
Primary School. The land is also less than 2 kilometres
away from the Guichi University town, train station and
high-speed rail station. Situated next to Chizhou Pingtian
Lake Scenic Spot, the environment surrounding the land is
relaxing and enjoyable.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEE WD AT

In view of the good prospects for development in Anhui
Province and potential for development of local property
market, the Board considers that the Chizhou project
represents a strategic opportunity for the Company to
venture into property development sector, and will become
an important operating segment and source of business
growth of the Company.

Property Sales and Consultancy Service

In March 2014, BREFEXEEAMR AR (Nanjing Tuoyu
Property Management Co., Ltd.*) (“Nanjing Tuoyu”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, submitted a
tender to U-Home Group, to bid for the contract for the
provision of property sales and consultancy service to
U-Home Group and its associates. In May 2014, Nanjing
Tuoyu entered into a framework cooperation agreement
with U-Home Group. Such business is expected to
generate revenue of not more than HK$112,500,000 to the
Company in the three financial years ending 2015 to 2017.

The board of directors and management of the Company
will continue to explore new strategic development
opportunities, strengthen corporate governance and
optimize business portfolio, in order to enhance the
corporate value of the Company.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity

As at 31 March 2014, cash and cash equivalents of the
Group totalled to approximately HK$45,011,000 (2013:
approximately HK$94,058,000), of which approximately
98.7% are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, 0.9% in
RMB, 0.3% in US dollars, and 0.1% in Euro. The decrease
in cash and cash equivalents are mainly due to the
payment of special dividends and the repayment of bank
loans.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had aggregate banking
facilities of approximately HK$100,000,000 (2013:
approximately HK$548,069,000) of which approximately
HK$99,992,000 was utilized (2013: approximately
HK$181,153,000). This comprised of HK$99,992,000
in short term bank loans. The decrease in total bank
borrowings are mainly due to the decrease in the bank
borrowings against pledged treasury products.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEE WD AT

Interest rate risk

The Group’s bank borrowings was mainly denominated
in HK dollar in order to minimize currency risk. As at
31 March 2014, the gearing ratio was approximately
48% (2013: approximately 21%), calculated based on
the Group's total bank borrowings of approximately
HK$99,992,000 (2013: approximately HK$178,545,000) over
the Group's total assets of approximately HK$207,420,000
(2013: approximately HK$872,449,000).

Foreign currency risk

The Group is subject to foreign currency risk as certain bills
payable arising from import of purchases from European
countries are denominated in EUROs. Management had
hedged with EURO forward contracts to minimize the
foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group has a pragmatic approach towards credit risk
management. New customers are usually not allowed to
purchase on credit and the payment conduct of clients
are monitored both to facilitate the determination of
credit limit as well as a control over whether new sale
deliveries should be made. The Group's sale staff and
marketing agents pay regular visits to customers to
promote the Group's products and at the same time would
update information on the clients’ credit worthiness. The
remuneration of sales staff and marketing agents are
structured so that there is goal congruence in maintaining
a robust credit risk management system.

Capital Commitments

At 31 March 2014, the Company had no outstanding capital
commitment (2013:Nil) and no capital commitment (2013:
Nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Charge on Group assets

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no bank loan (2013:
HK$9,5685,000) which was secured by the investment
property (2013: investment property) of the Group having
a net book value approximately HK$33,000,000 (2013:
HK$33,000,000). In addition, bank loans amounting to
HK$99,992,000 (2013: HK$79,960,000) were secured
by the Group's pledged bank deposits amounting to
HK$106,214,000 (2013: HK$76,652,000). The Group had no
bank loan (2013: HK$89,000,000) which was secured by
the Group's treasury products (2013: HK$100,888,000).

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has not issued corporate
guarantees to banks (2013: HK$217,000,000) with respect
to bank borrowings of the associates of the Group.

The Group was not liable to any material legal proceedings
of which provision for contingent liabilities was required.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

The directors are pleased in presenting their annual report
together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014
and the state of the Group's affairs as at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 44 to 171.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

RESERVES

Profits attributable to shareholders of the Company,
before dividends, of approximately HK$89,219,000 (2013:
approximately HK$41,754,000) have been transferred to
reserves. Details of the movements in the reserves of
the Company and the Group during the year are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity respectively.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company's securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movement of property, plant and equipment of the
Group for the year ended 31 March 2014 are set out in
note 18 to the financial statements.

FEEBEZERABERRAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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EMPLOYMENT REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had approximately 7
employees. The Group’s remuneration policies are in line
with prevailing market practice and formulated on the
basis of the performance and experience of individual
employees. Apart from basic salaries, other staff benefits
included provident funds and medical schemes. The
Company may also grant options to eligible employees
under its share option scheme.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors

Zhou Xuzhou (Appointed on 30 August 2013)

Liu Lailin (Appointed on 30 August 2013)

Zhou Wen Chuan (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
Lau Yau Bor (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
Lau Kin Tung (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
Chan Hing Ming (Resigned on 23 September 2013)

Non-Executive Directors

Chen Xuejun (Appointed on 30 August 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Gao Guanjiang (Appointed on 30 August 2013)

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
Choy Ping Sheung (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
Chiu Wai Piu (Resigned on 23 September 2013)

Fung Tze Wa (Resigned on 23 September 2013)

Pursuant to the Bye-law 87(1) of the Company, each
director is required to retire by rotation once every three
years and that one-third (or the number nearest to one-
third but not less than one-third) of the directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting
of the Company. Accordingly, Ms Zhou Wen Chuan, Mr.
Chen Xuejun and Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

EEFMBUR
R-Z-—ME=A=+—0 FEEERALY7
HIEE - ANEE T HHEKRIRT TSR
—B TRENEE TERRRERET -
BEFFLI HHETRAREAEER
RS o AR R REHBRE B
AEMEBR HBRE -

BEE
ARBERNZEENT :

YITES

AREMNR=ZE—=FNA=+RHEZT)
ZIRE(R=_E—=F N \A=1+HEZT)
AXIN(R=ZE—=FNA=+BEZT)
BRE(RZE—=FNLA=-+=HEIT)
R (R —=FNA=-+=HET)
BER(KR-E—=F LA+ =HET)

FHTES
REF(R_F—=F/\A=THEZD)

BYFBITES

BET(R=_E—=FNA=TRHEZE)
ASERZE—=F/\A=1+HEZT)
TER(N_T—=FN\A=Z+HEZT)
BZ2EH(NE—=FALAZ+=AFT)
EERERZZ—=FALAZ+=A8&F)
BTER-_ZE—=FNLA=-+=8&T)

RIBARBRAMAETNERE  BUE
EEEB-FHERE X IRE=DZ—
(AEBOI=ZD2 B IPR=p2—I2E
EFERARAERRBEANEG LWERE -
Bt Azt REBEFEXRERFERE
ERREERRBFAG LRE YAER
BREEEEE -
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DIRECTOR’S SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan, and Mr. Liu Lailin
have entered into service contracts with the Company
respectively for an initial period of three years commencing
from 30 August 2013. Such agreements are determinable
by either party serving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other.

Mr. Chen Xuejun, has been appointed as a non-executive
director since 30 August 2013. Such agreement is
determinable by either party serving not less than two
months’ notice in writing to the other.

Mr. Gao Guanjiang, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis have been appointed as an
independent non-executive director since 30 August 2013.
Such agreements are determinable by either party serving
not less than two months’ notice in writing to the other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors has
entered into a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions”, no contract of significance in relation to
the Group's business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTEREST AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

The directors and chief executive of the Company who
held office as at 31 March 2014 had the following
interests in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries
and other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities Futures Ordinance (“SFQO")) at that date as
recorded in the register of directors’ and chief executives’
interests and short positions required to be kept under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (“Model Code"”) in the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”):

EERTETHRAERKRND - 1HE
ROOREFzEZRER

R-ZE-—MEF=A=+t—8 BREFFK
HERPIFE 2GR EEFLEFRERIT
ABRZNERBCMALE  HREBR
PraEss EmRA(T EmARA D) EMETAE
FETEFRXZNFEESTA(ELESTR D Z
REMBTAERNRABRBRAE - NZA
EEZARABEERTIETHRAEBRAR
A B AR REMBEBAE(ERRES
FERE GBI E S RBE G ])) 2 Bin s
W

Interests in issued Shares ERITRMO ZER
Corporate Total number % of total
Name of Director Capacity interests of Shares held issued Shares
HERTRE
BEEMR =80) NE R BFEZRGOEY HYEI
Zhou Xuzhou Interest in controlled 1,067,256,000 1,067,256,000 65.07%
corporation (Note 1) (Note 1)
JEE M XEEAE s (B 1)
(B 1)
Note: KT -
1.  These Shares are held by U-Home Group International 1. &% % % {9 B3 U-Home Group International
Limited and U-Home Group Investment Limited. Limited 2 U-Home Group Investment
Limited %5 A °
Interests in underlying Shares AR RERE

The directors and chief executives of the Company have
been granted options under the Company’s share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”), details of which are
set out in the section “Share Option Scheme” below.

ARREZEREBETHRABREARRZE
Petgst 8l ([BRERT S DEERBRE - 8
BARFBEN T XX Bt &l | —56 -
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Apart from the foregoing, none of the directors and chief
executives of the Company or any of their spouses or
children under eighteen years of age has interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, any of its holding company, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries, as recorded in the register required
to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as other wise
notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Share Option Scheme which was adopted on 24
September 2003 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorized, at their discretion, to invite employees
of the Group, including directors of any company in the
Group, and any suppliers, consultants or advisers who have
provided services to any company in the Group to take up
options to subscribe for Shares. The Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of ten years ending
on 24 September 2013, after which no further options will
be granted. The exercise price of option is the highest of
the nominal value of the ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company (“Shares”), the closing
price of the Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of grant and
the average closing price of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant.

The total number of securities available for issue under the
Share Option Scheme is 160,500,000, which represented
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 26
August 2008, the date of approval of the refreshment of
the maximum number of the Shares, which may be issued
upon the exercise of all the share options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and such other schemes
of the Company which initially shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at the date of the
approval of the Share Option Scheme by the Shareholders
and thereafter, if refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of approval of refreshed limit
by shareholders of the Company.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

B Lt BN - RARIRRE 75 M BB (R D) 5 352 15
REBETFZERLMMLE  SRERESTR
STTMEARAE  ARBSEEFRTETT
BABSEMEEFEZRBHITNARRTZF
2o ERARA  BREMMZERAR - HEB
RAIEF R E AR 2D - HERDHE
FHEBEENER

BRESE

BRESENR _TZE=ZFAA-_TEBEK
B AARESERBRNBEEELRE
BREE(BHEAKEETNIWNARZES)
PA B 75 7N S T BE TS AR ] 2 AR S AR 755 2 (2 1]
HER BERXERERABEREARBR
- BEREAE AR THE E-F
—ZFAA-TWAL EESTEHRY
B BERZTEERARARKRATE
PmEE0.01/E Tz Bl (i ) 2 EE
BHAHRONREEBARXIMBERAQA
(TBE 3P 1) 2 W (B e B3R A B A1 7
LERABRMDRER T FHRHEARSE
RAE) -

BEEREAESTRBT2ESFEHA
160,500,000 fx & - HERE_ZZN\FEN
AZ+RXBUEEFZRRMHEE BE) K
NABBITIRAZ10%  EITEREERE
FEIRANFEMBRENERLE CFBERE
REENBRT 2 EaAROEE  YISEHET
SEBR R EBRET S BB BITRG
Z10% - MEBEMEER - A TEFEALRR
AR EE FRBAHAD EITRN 2 10% °
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Details of the share options granted by the Company
pursuant to the Scheme and the options outstanding as at
31 March 2014 were as follows:

For the year ended 31 March 2014

Granted
Date  Exercisable Balance at during
of grant period  01/0412013 the year
R-g-z%
BA-A
il fiR8E 268 ERERE
Number Number

of options ~ of options

grEas  EREas

R-TF-—WFE=A=+t—8  KAAARE:
ARHcBRBERRITR ZEREZFEN

N

BE-_Z-—NE=A=1+—HLEE

Weighted
Exercised Cancelled average
during during Balance at exercise Exercise
the year the year  31/03/2014 price date
imt St
Zhzt-8 i 38!
ERRAE  FREEH 248 it frka%
Number Number Number
of options of options of options HKS

ghgas  ERERE  ERERE &

Employee/Consultant 8,/ 21012 1m0
10 111112017
In aggregate (notela)) St 5
+-AT2R%
5 Rtk
+-At2B +-Bt-B 15000000 — (15,000,000} - - 03 2503
Z§-cF
MA-TER
At31March 2014 RZE-RBE
ZR=t-5 15,000,000 - [15,000,000) - -
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND FEBRRREMATRRG RIEE
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT K@ z#EzkER

POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 March 2014, the Company had been notified by
the following person (other than the directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as at 31 March 2014 which were required to be
disclosed to the Company under Part XV of the SFO or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

R-Z-MmEZA=+—H  ARFREMN
FAL(FREARANEERTETHAR)
MNE  WER-F-ME=A=+—ARA
AT RARBIRR P A BRI S R
S XV B AL AR BRRFALAT
BB % R DI 336 B 2 BRI
EAETEA -
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Interests in issued Shares

Name of substantial
Shareholders

TERREH

SRITRMD 2R
Total
interests
Capacity (Note 1)
ERAm
e (Hizt1)

Percentage of
total issued
Shares
EERT
R
BOl

U-Home Group International Limited (Note 2)
U-Home Group International Limited (472 2)

U-Home Group Investment Limited (Note 3)
U-Home Group Investment Limited (#/:%3)

Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited

TEEREXARNAT

CHFERHEREERAR
(Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development
Company Limited*) (Note 3)
THFERMEREBERAR(MH3)

Yee Sheng Enterprises Company Limited (Note 3)

FTREXERDR(H73)

Kambert Enterprises Limited (Note 3)
Kambert Enterprises Limited (47:£3)

U-Home Property (Group) Limited (Note 3)
U-Home Property (Group) Limited (47 3)

Shunda Investment Limited (Notes 2 and 3)
Shunda Investment Limited (#/5£2%3)

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (Note 2 and 3)
BN EEHH#2R3)

* for identification purpose only

* EHER

Beneficial owner

EEBEAA

Beneficial owner

EEBEAA

Interest in controlled corporation

REHEE 2 B

Interest in controlled corporation

RIEHEE 2

Interest in controlled corporation

REHEE 2 B

Interest in controlled corporation

REHEE 2 B

Interest in controlled corporation

REHEE 2 B

Interest in controlled corporation

REHEE 2 B

Interest in controlled corporation

REHEE 2 B

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

734,154,000(L)
759,154,000(S)

333,102,000(L)
333,102,000(S)

333,102,000(L)
333,102,000(S)

333,102,000(L)
333,102,000(S)

333,102,000(L)
333,102,000(S)

333,102,000(L)
333,102,000(S)

333,102,000(L)
333,102,000(S)

1,067,256,000(L)
1,092,256,000(S)

1,067,256,000(L)
1,092,256,000(S)

4476
46.29

20.31
20.31

20.31
20.31

20.31
20.31

20.31
20.31

20.31
20.31

20.31
20.31

65.07
66.60

65.07
66.60



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

Notes:

The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in the
Shares whereas the letter “S” denotes the person’s short
position in the Shares.

U-Home Group International Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

U-Home Group Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Yuhua Enterprises Company Limited. Yuhua
Enterprises Company Limited is wholly and beneficially
owned by Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development Company
Limited*. Anhui Yuhua Real Estate Development Company
Limited* is wholly and beneficially owned by Yee Sheng
Enterprises Company Limited. Yee Sheng Enterprises
Company Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by
Kambert Enterprises Limited. Kambert Enterprises Limited is
wholly and beneficially owned by U-Home Property (Group)
Limited. U-Home Property (Group) Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by Shunda Investment Limited, which in
turn is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

Wizt :

[LIFHEZALTREOFZER - MIS]FE
ZALTRBDFZER -

U-Home Group International Limited
Shunda Investment Limited &2 & M E#H

% - MRARGEEN LS ERE SRS -

U-Home Group Investment Limitedf F
ERBEXEBERAFAZEREHEE - F
ERABXARANBAZRTFERMER
BERAAZERE=ESR - “RFEREM
EREERAFBTFHEXERAGLA
RE=WR - THEZXFR2AE A Kambert
Enterprises Limited® & & B o5 ¥ A& °
Kambert Enterprises Limited B8 U-Home
Property (Group) Limited 28 M EHHA -
U-Home Property (Group) Limited g /& EM
SeEEEREZMA Z Shunda Investment
Limited 2 E R ERBEH °
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions as disclosed in note 36
to the financial statements also fell under the definition
of “connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, details of which are set out below. The Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions
(1) Tenancy Agreements

Jiwa International Limited (“Jiwa International”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered
into the Albany Tenancy Agreement and the Lippo
Tenancy Agreement with Jiwa Investment Limited
("Jiwa Investment”). Jiwa International also entered
into the Robinson Tenancy Agreement with Mr. Lau
Yau Bor (“Mr. Lau”) who resigned on 23 September
2013. Jiwa Investment is wholly owned by Mr. Lau
and his associates, Mr. Lau was a director of the
Company but he resigned on 23 September 2013.
Mr. Lau and Jiwa Investment are therefore connected
persons of the Company under the Listing Rules.
Content of the agreements is summarised below:

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BREXS
BRI 36T 2 B THEALR
FHEALTRANEUASBHERS |2 E
% HFBRATX - ARAEETEHR
RIS 14AE 2 BERE (IEA) -

KERERS
(1) HEEHH

ARAZE2EMBRARBERARERA
A([EEERDEBEREER QA
(MEEREDILHEENEEBREED
BElE WS - BEERTEI L E
(T8t R-FT—=FhLA-t+=
BB ERERHEERZ - BER
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(i)

The Albany Tenancy Agreement (i) HEFHEHE

Date of agreement
% B A

Landlord
¥x

Tenant
HE

Premises

SUES

Term

FH

Early termination date

R RIEAH

Annual rental

FH

Payment method

[ERITE

17 September 2012
—E——FNAA+T+tH

Jiwa Investment
SERE

Jiwa International

Apartment A1 (also known as Apartment C), 21st Floor and
Car Park No. 21 on 4th Floor (Carpark Level 5), The Albany,
No. 1 Albany Road, Hong Kong with a total gross floor area of
approximately 201 square metres
EERBENBI1VRBENRE2IZMZ(NBACE) R4E(FES
BieE%) 21 90RE M - AREEEL 201 FHK

two years commencing from 1 September 2012 to 31 August
2014 (both days inclusive)
H-ZE——FNAA—HRFEZEZZ—NFNA=T—HIERF(E
EEREMA)

23 August 2013
—E—=ZF)N\AZ=+=H

HK$1,272,000 (HK$106,000 per month)
1,272,000 7t (& A 106,000787T)

Payable monthly in advance on the first day of each calendar
month by cash

REBEAERRANREIEH

—T-=FZ—UFFik ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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(i) The Robinson Tenancy Agreement (i) F#EEHE S
Date of agreement .17 September 2012
ek B HA . ZE—ZHFNA++tH
Landlord . Mr. Lau
* C Bl%kAE
Tenant . Jiwa International
HE C REER
Premises . Apartment A on 22nd Floor and Car Parking Space No. 7 on 4th

Floor of Regal Crest, No. 9 Robinson Road, Hong Kong with a
gross floor area of approximately 215 square metres

Mm% . BERERBONEXNIN22EBAZTRAE7HOREMN - BEAEEL
215K

Term . two years commencing from 1 September 2012 to 31 August
2014 (both days inclusive)

FH D O BIZE—ZFAAARHEZZENFEFNA=T—HILERF(BHE
BEEMA)

Annual rental . HK$888,000 (HK$74,000 per month)

FH : 888,000/&7C (& H 74,000/87T)

Early termination date ;23 August 2013

RE& B H L ZE-=f)/\AZ+=H

Payment method . Payable monthly in advance on the first day of each calendar

month by cash

DRz . MEBEBAERZRANRESEY

22 FEEFZRERAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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(ii)  The Lippo Tenancy Agreement (i) HEMEGE

Date of agreement
E A=k

Landlord
¥x

Tenant
itk

Premises

UES

Term

FH

Early termination date

REZIEEH

Annual rental

FH

Payment method

17 September 2012
—E——FhAT+tH

Jiwa Investment
HERE

Jiwa International

Office 4, 29th Floor, Tower One, Lippo Centre, No. 89
Queensway, Hong Kong with a total gross floor area of
approximately 150 square metres

EBLEERIRNETROE1E2184%E - BLEEMEEL 150 F 53K

two years commencing from 1 September 2012 to 31 August
2014 (both days inclusive)
H-E-——HFNA-RABHAZ-_ZT-—HFN\A=T—HILMF (B
BEMA)

23 August 2013
—E-=FN\HAZ+=H

HK$1,296,000 (HK$108,000 per month)
1,296,000,8 7t (& A 108,000 7T)

Payable monthly in advance on the first day of each calendar
month by cash

(NG WP~ REBAEXRIEZANR GBS
The aggregate rental under the Albany Tenancy HENEERS:  #EEHEERZERD
Agreement, the Robinson Tenancy Agreement and EREHRETCHSBEBRITIF
the Lippo Tenancy Agreement, will be subject to the & EBRATAARR - WA SHEE AR LR -

following annual cap and shall not exceed:

(a) HK$3,166,000 for the year ending 31 March (a) HEZZT—=F-A=1+—H1F
2013; J£ /3,166,000 87T ;

(b) HK$3,456,000 for the year ending 31 March (b) HEZZ—NF=-—A=1+—HIHF
2014; and [ 53,456,000 87T : &

(c) HK$1,440,000 for the year ending 31 March (c) HEZZ—RF=-A=1+—HLHF
2015. [£ 51,440,000 7T

“T-=FE-WNFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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The aforesaid continuing connected transactions have
been reviewed by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company who have confirmed that
the transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of
the Company;

(b) on normal commercial terms; or, if there is
no available comparison, on terms that are no
less favorable than terms available to or from
independent third parties; and

(c) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing the transactions on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’'s auditor was engaged to report on
the Group's continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements
Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 "Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in pages 20 to 24 of the
annual report in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor's letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during
the year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during
the year.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

RRABEIUFNTEZTCEN LS
BERS  WOHRZFRS
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FIAL

(b) H—MEEGEFETR(RERH
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TAABBIRFLAFHMF 20 E24 AR ER
AEEBEREXFRUFEHEER
Nigm EBRE B R KM - ARF A
AR AR BEN (S 2 BIAS o

BE - HEIEEAARZLHE
3

R R R G B R B B AT AR A o A
) L] B 23 ) 3 A 4 2 19 4 B B o
ERD AR o



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

FIXED ASSETS

During the year, the Group acquired machineries, furniture,
fixtures and equipment for approximately HK$68,000,
and the Group did not acquire property. Details of these
acquisitions and other movements in fixed assets are set
out in note 18 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 March 2014 are set out
in note 28 to the financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The information in respect of the Group's sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:

BE&EE

FR - RNEBE A% 68,0008 T EHKE - R
T EELRE MAEELEREWE -
ZEWBNETEEZ EME S FBIHNY
ERARMIFE18

RITERRHMEE
ARABEAEER -ZE—ME=A=+—H
ZIRITERREMEEFBRHRTEIREM
FF28 e

FERXRFRMERS

RAFREERN ERETEEFRERESD
PIEEARE ZHERRBZERMT

Percentage of the Group’s total

HEREE
Sales Purchase
HEET AL BIREE DL
The largest customer BREP 49%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFART 100%
The largest supplier AEER 53%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHER AR 98%

Other than as disclosed at note 7 to the financial
statement, at no time during the year have the directors,
their associates or any shareholder of the Company (which
to the knowledge of the directors owns more than 5%
of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers and suppliers.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
page 172 of the annual report.

BREAFEIRA MG 7 FRIREEE SN - RAFEAEM
RE BEARFES REIBMBEALX
EBRESHAEE A RFIAE% A E2 %
RRZRFEREP MM EETEAEMER

TFEUBHRE

AEERBERETRFEE ZEEUNREE
HEEREHNFRFE1728 -
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a
defined contribution retirement scheme organized by
the PRC municipal government for its PRC employees.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3.19 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights in respect
of the shares of the Company under the Company'’s
Bye-Laws, or the law of Bermuda, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the directors of
the Company, the percentage of the Shares which are in
the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the total number
of issued Shares.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2014 Annual General Meeting of the Company will
be held at 11:30 a.m. on 29 July 2014 (Tuesday) at Room
3, United Conference Centre, 10/F, United Centre, 95
Queensway, Admiralty, Hong Kong and a notice of annual
general meeting will be published and dispatched in due
course.

On behalf of the Board of Directors
Zhou Wen Chuan
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 10 June 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance
practices are crucial to the effective management of the
Group. The Company is committed to the transparency,
accountability and independence highlighted by the
principles of the Code Provisions in accordance with the
“Code on Corporate Governance Practices” and the revised
version of it which takes effect from 1 April 2012 (the
“CG Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
to protect the rights of shareholders and stakeholders,
enhance shareholder value and ensure proper management
of corporate assets.

The Board is of the opinion that during the financial year
ended 31 March 2014, the Company had applied the CG
Code as set out in the Listing Rules.

DIRECTOR’S SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code of Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code") contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as
its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions
by the directors. On specific enquiries made, all directors
have confirmed that, for the year ended 31 March 2014,
they have complied with the required standard set out in
the Model Code and the Own Code.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Composition of the Board

The Composition of the Board ensures a balance of
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of
the business of the Company and to the exercising of
independent judgment.

During the Period, the Board consists of three executive
directors, one non-executive director and three
independent non-executive directors with a variety of
experience in management, accounting and finance; their
brief biographical particulars and their relationship among
the Board are set out on page 39 to 41 of this annual
report.
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Ten board meetings were held for the year ended 31
March 2014 and the attendance was as follows:

Board of Directors

ExeNE

Executive Directors

HITEE

Zhou Xuzhou (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
BEMR=ZE—=F N \A=+THEZT)

Liu Lailin (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
2RE(R=_E—=F N NA=THEZE)

Zhou Wen Chuan (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
BXIN(R=ZE—=F N \NA=1THEZE)

Lau Yau Bor (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
RIRE(R=ZE—=F A=+ =HEE)

Lau Kin Tung (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
AR (RZE—=F LA +=H&T)

Chan Hing Ming (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
BER(KR-_E—=FNLA -+ =HET)

Non-Executive Directors

HHITEE

Chen Xuejun (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
REE(RE—=FN\A=+THEZT)

Gao Guanjiang (Appointed on 30 August 2013)

B I(RZE—=FNA=TRHEZE)

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
AEERZE—=F N \A=THEZT)

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Appointed on 30 August 2013)
ZERRZE—=FNA=THEZE)

Chiu Wai Piu (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
EEERZE—=FNA=ZT=H&T)

Choy Ping Sheung (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
ZRE(RZE—=FNLAZ=+=B&T)

Fung Tze Wa (Resigned on 23 September 2013)
BFEMNRE—=FNLAZT=BFE)

The Company has appointed sufficient numbers of
Independent Non-Executive Directors in accordance with
the Listing Rules, including those with accounting and
finance expertise. They have dedicatedly provided the
Company with professional advice with respect to the
steady operation and development of the Company. They
also exercise supervision and coordination to safeguard
interests of the company and its subsidiaries.
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The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each Independent Non-Executive Director of his
independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-Executive Directors to be independent in accordance
with independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

The Operation of the Board of Directors

The Board oversees the Group's strategic development,
and determines the objectives, strategies and policies
of the Group. The Board also monitors and controls
operating and financial performance in pursuit of the
Group's strategic objectives. All Board members have
access to appropriate business documents and information
about the Group on a timely basis. All directors and board
committees have access to external legal counsel and
other professionals for independent advice at the Group's
expense if they require it.

Three board committees, namely, the audit committee,
remuneration committee and nomination committee, have
been established to oversee particular aspects of the
Group's affairs. The Board has delegated the day-to-day
management and operations of the Group’s businesses to
management of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The board had met ten times during the Period to discuss
and formulate overall strategies for the Group, review the
financial performance, as well as other significant matters
when board decisions were required.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established
and the Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions such as developing and reviewing
the Company’s policies, practices on corporate governance,
training and continuous professional development of
directors and senior management, the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, etc.

The Board held meetings from time to time whenever
necessary. The company secretary assists in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all relevant rules and
regulations are followed.
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Minutes of every Board meeting are circulated to
all directors for their perusal and comments prior to
confirmation of the minutes at the following board
meeting. The Board also ensures that it is supplied in a
timely manner with all necessary information in a form and
of a quality appropriate to enable it to discharge its duties.

Every Board member has full access to the advice
and services of the company secretary with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed and they are also entitled to
have full access to Board papers and related materials so
that they are able to make an informed decision and to
discharge their duties and responsibilities.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is the Chairman of the Company and
is mainly responsible for the management of the Board.
Ms Zhou Wen Chuan is the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company and is delegated with the authority and is
responsible for day-to-day management of the Group’'s
business, and the implementation of the approved
strategies in achieving the overall business objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the Non-Executive Directors has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of one year
or till retirement by rotation in accordance with the Bye-
laws of the Company, whichever is earlier.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a Remuneration Committee
on 1 September 2005 with written terms of reference as
disclosed on the Company's website. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending remuneration policy to the board, as well
as reviewing and making recommendations on the Group's
share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund
and other compensation-related issues. The committee
shall consult with the Chairman on its proposals and
recommendations, and has access to professional advice if
deemed necessary.
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During the year under review, the members of
Remuneration Committee are Mr. Gao Guanjiang,
Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr. Liu Lailin, Mr. Gao
Guanjiang, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton are independent
non-executive directors. Mr. Liu Lailin is executive director.
Mr. Gao Guanjiang is the chairman of the remuneration
committee.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
All directors also participate in continuous professional
development programmes such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills in relation to their contribution
to the Board. A record of the training received by the
respective directors are kept and updated by the company
secretary of the Company.

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Mr. Liu Lailin and Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan
being Executive Directors, Mr. Chen Xuejun being Non-
executive Director and Mr. Gao Guanjiang, Professor Chau
Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis, being
Independent Non-Executive Directors, have attended
various seminars and meetings organised by such as
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute and Hong
Kong Institute of Directors to develop and refresh their
knowledge so as to ensure that their contributions to the
Board. All the Directors also understand the importance of
continuous professional development and are committed
to participating any suitable training to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills.
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During the Period, the Remuneration Committee had held HAR X  HFMMZESCRIT X &H - SEH
1 meeting. Attendance of each individual member was as &7 HEXRWNT :

follows:
Meeting

Committee Member Attended/Held

HiEReT
ZEEKE =8
Chiu Wai Piu (Note 2)
EBER(Hi72) A
Choy Ping Sheung (Note 2)
BFRE(MFE2) 11
Fung Tze Wa (Note 2)
SFENZ2) 11
Gao Guanjiang (Note 1)
s L(HaE 1) N/A TiE A
Chau Chi Wai, Wilton (Note 1)
BEE ) N/A 7 A
Liu Lailin (Note 1)
2IPRER (K75t 1) N/A & A
Notes: Hiat -

1. Mr. Gao Guanjiang, Mr. Liu Lailin and Professor Chau 1. ®EI5EAE  ZIRELEERESERER =

Chi Wai, Wilton were appointed as members of the E=ZFNAT=ZHEZERARAZH
remuneration committee of the Company on 23 September MEZEERE  NRFERER  LERT
2013, and no remuneration committee meeting was held YMEEEEHE -

after their appointments.

2. Mr. Chiu Wai Piu, Mr. Choy Ping Sheung and Mr. Fung Tze 2. HERILE ERELERBTFELEEN

Wa ceased to be members of the remuneration committee T-=FNAT=ZHEEERRRAIZHFME
of the Company on 23 September 2013, and 1 remuneration 8gKE  RIEEEERT - BT —HH
committee meeting was held before their cessation. ZEggE -

The emolument policies of the directors of the Company AXRARESFSZHMWMHE I AEMEESRE
were reviewed by the Remuneration Committee, having AE@ELEX4E @ AAXREAITE LTS
regard to the Group's operating results, individual gstapiEiest o

performance and comparable market statistics.

32 FEEEERERAT  U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include consulting the chairman of the Board about their
remuneration proposals for other executive directors,
making recommendation to the Board on the Company's
remuneration policy and structure for all directors’ and
senior management and the Remuneration Committee
has adopted the approach under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the code
provisions to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors
and senior management.

Details on the emolument payable to the Directors and the
Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in notes 17
and 34 to the financial statements respectively.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company established a Nomination Committee on
1 September 2005 with written terms of reference as
disclosed on the Company’'s website. The Nomination
Committee is responsible for reviewing and making
recommendations to the board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment, re-appointment and succession
planning for the board members. The Nomination
Committee has the responsibility to consider and access
candidates for directorships on the Board based on their
characters, qualifications and experience appropriate for
the businesses of the Group.

The roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include reviewing the structure, size and composition of
the Board at least annually, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become members of the Board
and selecting individuals nominated for directorship
(if necessary), assessing the independence of the
independent Non-executive directors and making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of directors and succession planning
for directors, in particular the Chairman and the chief
executive officer. In considering the nomination of new
directors, the Board will take into account the qualification,
ability, working experience, leadership and professional
ethics of the candidates, especially their experience in the
machinery industry and/or other professional areas.
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During the Period, the members of Nomination Committee
are Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton
and Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin,
Executive Director. Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and

Dannis, Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is

Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis are Independent Non-executive
Directors. Mr. Zhou Xuzhou is the chairman of the

nomination committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee had held 1
meeting. Attendance of each individual member was as
follows:

Committee Member

ZEERE

Chiu Wai Piu (Note 2)
BEEHF2)

Choy Ping Sheung (Note 2)
s2xRm(HE2)

Fung Tze Wa (Note 2)
SFENZ2)

Zhou Xuzhou (Note 1)

B 1)

Chau Chi Wai, Wilton (Note 1)
BEE )

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Note 1)
Fa KK 1)

Notes:

1. Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, Professor Chau Chi Wai, Wilton and Mr.
Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis were appointed as members of the
nomination committee of the Company on 23 September
2013, and no nomination committee meeting was held after
their appointments.

2. Mr. Chiu Wai Piu, Mr. Choy Ping Sheung and Mr. Fung Tze
Wa ceased to be members of the nomination committee
of the Company on 23 September 2013, and 1 nomination
committee meeting was held before their cessation.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The Audit Committee of the Company is responsible
for considering the appointment of the external auditor
and reviewing any non-audit functions performed by the
external auditor, including whether such non-audit functions
could lead to any potential material adverse effect to the
Company. During the Period, the Group is required to pay
to the auditor, BDO Limited the following remuneration:

R E

Nature of services

ZERH

Audit services

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee members comprise of Mr. Lee Cheuk
Yin, Dannis, Mr. Gao Guanjiang and Mr. Chen Xuejun. Mr.
Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis, Mr. Gao Guanjiang are Independent
Non-executive Directors. Mr. Chen Xuejun is Non-executive
Director. Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee who has appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting expertise. No member of this
committee is a member of the former or external auditors
of the Company.

The audit committee’s primary responsibilities include
overseeing the relationship with the Company's external
auditor, review of financial information of the Group, and
oversight of the Group's financial reporting system, internal
control procedures and risk management. The Company
has adopted a term of reference of the audit committee,
which complies with the provisions of the CG Code. The
terms of reference of the audit committee are available on
the Company’s website.
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Durin

g the year, the Audit Committee had held 2 meetings.

Attendance of each individual member was as follows:

Committee Member

ZEERE

Fung

Tze Wa (Note 2)

HFERZF2)

Choy

Ping Sheung (Note 2)

R (Mt 2)

Chiu

Wai Piu (Note 2)

REERWE2)

Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis (Note 1)
TEARMEET)

Gao Guanjiang (Note 1)

ma L(HaE 1)

Chen

Xuejun (Note 1)

REE (ML 1)

Notes:

1.

At th

Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin, Dannis, Mr. Gao Guanjiang and Mr.
Chen Xuejun were appointed as members of the audit
committee of the Company on 23 September 2013, and 1
audit committee meeting was held after their appointments.

Mr. Chiu Wai Piu, Mr. Choy Ping Sheung and Mr. Fung Tze
Wa ceased to be members of the nomination committee of
the Company on 23 September 2013, and 1 audit committee
meeting was held before their cessation.

e meetings held during the year, in performing its

duties in accordance with its terms of reference, the work

perfo

(a)

FEEEZR

rmed by the Audit Committee included:

review and supervise the financial reporting process
and internal control system of the Company and its
subsidiaries;

recommendation to the Board, for the approval by
shareholders, of the re-appointment of the external

Auditor and approval of their remuneration;

determination of the nature and scope of the audit;
and

review the financial statements for the relevant
periods.
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RESPONSIBILITY ON FINANCIAL
REPORTING

Management provides financial information with
explanation to the Board to assist the Board in assessing
the financial position of the Company.

The board acknowledges its responsibility to present a
balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
Company’s annual and interim reports, other price sensitive
announcement and other financial disclosures required
under the Listing Rules, and reports to the regulators as
well as to information required to be disclosed pursuant to
the statutory requirements. The Board is not aware of any
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The reporting responsibilities of BDO Limited, the
Company’s auditor, are stated in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 42 to 43 of the Annual Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the
Board on governance matters and also facilitates induction
and professional development of Directors. The company
Secretary reports to the Chairman of the Board. All
Directors have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, all
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Mr. Shek Man Fai who is a certified public accountant (as
defined in the professional Accountants Ordinance) was
appointed Company Secretary of the Company since 26
April 2013. He has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training to comply with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules for the year ended 31 March 2014.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board had conducted a review of the effectiveness of
the system of internal control of the Group which covered
all material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions.
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ERESHRE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Shareholder(s) holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition sent to the company secretary of the
Company, to require a special general meeting to be called
by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition.

Shareholder(s) of the Company holding (i) not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all shareholders
having the right to vote at the general meeting; or (ii) not
less than 100 shareholders, can submit a written request
to the company secretary of the Company stating the
resolution intended to be moved at the general meeting
or a statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect
to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at a particular general meeting.

The above procedures are subject to the Company's
Bye-laws, the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and
applicable legislation and regulation (as amended
from time to time). Shareholders who have enquiries
about the above procedures or have enquiries to put
to the Board may write to the company secretary of
the Company at the principal place of business at Unit
01, 12/F, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin
Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong or by e-mail to
ir@yuyejt.com for the attention of the company secretary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

To enhance transparency and effectively communicate
with the investment community, the executive directors
and senior management of the Company actively maintains
close communications with various institutional investors,
financial analysts and financial media. Investors are
welcome to share their views with the Board by sending
enquiries to ir@yuyejt.com.

FEEEERERLR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEREBE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhou Xuzhou, aged 58, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013 and
was appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 23
September 2013. He is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee of the Company.

Mr. Zhou obtained a Master of Arts in Library Studies
from the University of Wuhan (EJZAZ) in 1985. He is
the founder and chairman of the board of directors, chief
executive officer and the sole shareholder of FEE£B AR
‘A7) (U-Home Group Limited*). U-Home Group Limited is
a company incorporated under the laws of the PRC and,
together with over twenty of its subsidiaries, is principally
engaged in real estate development, hotel management
and property management in various cities in the PRC.

Mr. Zhou, through subsidiaries wholly owned by him, has
started his real estate business since 1992. Mr. Zhou is
primarily responsible for leading the strategic planning
and business development of U-Home Group Holdings
Limited and overseeing all key aspects of the operations
of U-Home Group Holdings Limited, including financial
management and project development business. He has
over 21 years of experience in the property industry.

Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan, aged 31, was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013
and was appointed as a Chief Executive Officer on 23
September 2013.

Ms. Zhou obtained a master degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in 2011, and a master degree in Food Science and a
bachelor degree in Science in Food Nutrition and Health
from the University of British Columbia in 2008 and 2007
respectively. Ms. Zhou is the daughter of Mr. Zhou Xuzhou.

Mr. Liu Lailin, aged 57, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 30 August 2013. He is the
member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Liu joined Z B F ¥ E % B R 22 7 (Anhui Yuhua
Enterprises Company Ltd.*), the immediate holding
company of U-Home Group Limited, in 1994. He is
currently a director and executive vice president of U-Home
Group Limited and the chairman of BN FEMEFMBEBRE LD
A] (Chuzhou Yuda Property Development Company Ltd.*),
a subsidiary of U-Home Group Limited. Prior to joining
Anhui Yuhua Enterprises Company Ltd., Mr. Liu was the
assistant accountant of KEMEHEFREE /LA (Datang
Xiangtan Power Generation Co., Ltd.*). Mr. Liu has over
17 years of experience in real estate management. He
obtained a Diploma of Management of Industrial Enterprise
from Hunan Radio and Television University in 1986.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEREBE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chen Xuejun, aged 50, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company on 30 August 2013. He
is the member of the Audit Committee of the Company.

Mr. Chen has been appointed as director of three
subsidiaries of U-Home Group Limited, namely, &30
B % BR AT (Chuzhou Yuhe Property Company Ltd.*),
TIHFHEBEEAR A A (Jiangsu Yutai Property Company
Ltd.*) and & IlU F # & ¥ B R 22 A (Huangshan Yuda
Property Company Ltd.*) since 2009. Mr. Chen set up &
YT EmIREEEABMR AT (Shenzhen Lingnan Investment
Development Company Limited*) in 2004 and was the
chairman since then. Mr. Chen has around 10 years of
experience in property development.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Gao Guanjiang, aged 61, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on
30 August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Gao graduated from the Wuhan University (& & X
&) with a Ph. D in Economics. Mr. Gao is currently an
executive director of Cinda International Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 111). Mr. Gao has over 20 years of experience
in commercial banking, investment banking, business
administration and securities and finance.

Professor Chau Chi Wai Wilton, aged 53, was appointed
as an independent non-executive director of the Company
on 30 August 2013. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company.

Professor Chau obtained a doctoral degree in business
administration, a master degree in business administration,
a bachelor degree in laws and a bachelor degree in science.
He is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants (UK). Prof. Chau currently serves
on the boards and committees of non-profit making
organisations, including Hong Kong Biotechnology
Organisation and Hong Kong Business Angel Network
Limited. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Angang Steel Company Limited (H-Share
Stock Code: 347; A-Share Stock Code: 898). He was an
independent non-executive director of Guangshen Railway
Company Limited (H-Share Stock Code: 525; A-Share Stock
Code: 601333) from 2004 to 2011. He is also a Professor
of Practice in Entrepreneurship in the Chinese University of
Hong Kong. Prof. Chau has over 27 years of experience in
direct investment and venture capital.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREEAEREBE

Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin Dannis, aged 44, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 30
August 2013. He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

Mr. Lee obtained a bachelor degree in business
administration from Texas A & M University, the USA.
He is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a member of the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Lee is currently an independent non-executive director
of Geely Automobile Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 175)
and Tiangong International Company Limited (Stock Code:
826) respectively. He was also a non-executive director
of Kam Hing International Holdings Limited (Stock Code:
2307) from 2009 to 2011 and an executive director of
AMCO United Holding Limited (Stock Code: 630) from
2010 to 2011. He possesses over 20 years of experience
in accounting and auditing field.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shek Man Fai, aged 39, is the Financial Controller and
the Company Secretary of the Company. He joined the
Group in November 2006 and was appointed as company
secretary of the Company with effect from 26 April 2013.
He has over 20 years of experience in financial accounting.
He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Shek
holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Accounting from the
University of Lincolnshire and Humberside and a Master
Degree in Finance from the National University of Ireland.

*  For identification purpose only
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3 2 AN R

|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{#H : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
FEEATHEER11158
JKEZFI2558

www.bdo.com.hk

To the Shareholders of U-Home Group Holdings Limited
(formerly known as Jiwa Bio-pharm Holdings Limited)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of U-Home Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the”Group”) set out on pages
44 to 171, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
the terms of our engagement, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 3 2 AN

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’'s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
qualified audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2014 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5057

Hong Kong, 10 June 2014
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meEZEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 2~ —NE=A=+—HItFE

2014 2013
— ik T =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FET
Revenue Was 6 35,079 35,648
Cost of sales H & AR (29,599) (27,720)
Gross profit EF 5,480 7,928
Other income HAn g A 8 7,772 6,278
Selling expenses SHER (25) —
Administrative expenses THER (10,042) (12,891)
Other operating expenses Hhgas (9,877) (4,476)
Other gains and losses HAth Wz & &5 18 9 2,408 1€),5l57
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary e — R B ARz W 38(a) 100,069 —
Operating profit KR 95,785 16,396
Finance costs BB A A 10 (1,401) (4,435)
Share of results of associates i A= NCIES 21 27,135 35,352
Profit before income tax R B 18 56 A & F 11 121,519 47,313
Income tax expense FriSfiMA > 12 (32,302) (5,559)
Profit for the year FRRF 89,217 41,754
Other comprehensive income, Htt 2w - HBRBE
after tax
Item that may be reclassified HEeEAsEHoEsEa
subsequently to profit or loss: BH
Release of translation reserve upon H e —E B A 7R
disposal of a subsidiary B 38(b) — (1,002)
Exchange loss on translation of HE N 7 B R R R
financial statements of foreign ZIEH B8
operations (40) —
Total comprehensive income for FRAZHKEEEE
the year 89,177 40,752

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEZEWER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 B2~ —NE=A=+—HItFE

2014 2013
L — T =F
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Kzt FET FEIT
Profit for the year attributable to: T 5B IH AL F AR F
Owners of the Company KRBHEE A 89,219 41,754
Non-controlling interests eI IR M (2) =
Profit for the year FRREA 89,217 41,754
Total comprehensive income T o EELZE R
attributable to: 4
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIEZZE DN 89,179 40,752
Non-controlling interests R (2) —
89,177 40,752
Earnings per share SRER 15
Basic (HK cents) AR 5.44 2.57
Diluted (HK cents) 58 (B(0) 5.44 2.56
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B BT RS ARL R

As at 31 March 2014 R -ZE—NF=/8=+—H

2014 2013
B iE o — T —
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
it FET FHET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE k& 18 64 373
Investment properties LEYE 19 33,000 55,000
Interests in associates RN o ey 21 — 443,816
Deposits birecia 25 8,883 —
41,947 499,189
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 387 —
Accounts receivable JE I BR R 24 9,594 8,282
Deposits, prepayments and other e BNEUAREAM
receivables FEW FRIE 25 3,363 10,634
Amounts due from associates i NI L] 21 — 81,873
Treasury products at fair value BAFEF ABR 2T
through profit or loss Em 26 — 100,888
Tax recoverable AI Y [E 518 904 873
Pledged bank deposits BEEMIRITHER 27 106,214 76,652
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBeEEY 27 45,011 94,058
165,473 373,260
Current liabilities REAE
Bank borrowings SRITER 28 99,992 178,545
Accounts and bills payable FES R R EIR 29 8,506 7,727
Accrued expenses and other payables & 3 & E b fE (< 5108 3,129 2,283
Tax payables FESHLIR 362 1,832
Derivative financial liabilities MEMBAR 30 - 64,523
111,989 254,910
Net current assets MENEEFE 53,484 118,350
Total assets less current liabilities BEABRBREERE 95,431 617,539
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EETHIBEE 31 217 1,602
Net assets BERE 95,214 615,937

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e BRI E

As at 31 March 2014 R —ZE—MF=/8=+—H

2014 2013
L — T =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000

Kzt FR&T FET
EQUITY s
Share capital f& s 32 16,400 16,250
Reserves b 33 78,822 599,693

Equity attributable to owners of the Z<A T A AE(LER

Company 95,222 615,943
Non-controlling interests FEERER (8) (6)
Total equity R 95,214 615,937

On behalf of the Board

REEFE

Zhou Xuzhou Zhou Wen Chuan
A A

Director Director

EE =
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B ISR 2R

As at 31 March 2014 R -ZE—NF=/8=+—H

2014 2013
= T =F
Notes HK$’000 HK$000
Hiat FET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBRRZKE 20 82,380 82,380
Deposits B ia 25 8,883 —
91,263 82,380
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from associates JrE LS BS: 2 X B) 508 - 436
Amounts due from subsidiaries g By NI 20 61,636 82,105
Dividend receivables eI A% B — 12,312
Tax recoverable GBIk 31 31
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 1,025 782
62,692 95,666
Current liabilities REEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries JE{STB /B A R 5R08 20 104,256 —
Accrued expenses and other payables FExtHE & E b FE {5 7108 1,600 3
105,856 3
Net current (liabilities)/assets hE(aE) BEZE (43,164) 95,663
Net assets EEFE 48,099 178,043
EQUITY s
Share capital [N 32 16,400 16,250
Reserves it 33 31,699 161,793
Total equity R 48,099 178,043

On behalf of the Board
REESE

Zhou Xuzhou
JESD D)
Director

EZE

Zhou Wen Chuan

bl
Director

EZE

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

MEREMER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &2 —ZT—ME=A=+—BItFE

2013
=%
Notes HK$'000
Kzt FET
Cash flows from operating RETHZHESRE
activities
Profit before income tax B PS5 A& 121,519 47,313
Adjustments for: FEIFE -
Amortisation of land use rights 3 {5 R A A 5H — 247
Depreciation of property, plant and Y - BERRETE
equipment 93 472
Fair value (gain)/loss on derivative PREEEREE ZHTE
financial instruments not qualify PHETAEZAFE
as hedges, net (Yezz),E18 - JF5E 30(b) (644) 6,218
Fair value loss on put option oL HARE 2 N EEE — 10,356
Fair value loss/(gain) on treasury AT EFAEBZZ
products at fair value through B EE fh 2 A B
profit or loss &8, (W) 2,697 (2,893)
Fair value gain on investment "EYEZ A ERE
properties — (4,972)
Gain on disposals of property, plant  HEWE - WE MR
and equipment Z W - (80)
Gain on disposals of a subsidiary HE—RHBAR KX
and intangible assets mEE 2 W 38(b) — (23,529)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKEBARZ
& 38(a) (100,069) =
Impairment of other receivables E fth JE W RIE 2 BB — 12,013
Interest income B A (1,000) (2,417)
Interest expense FE X 1,041 4,435
Share-based employee LSSz REHE
compensation — 2,027
Share of results of associates JEMREE N E)EE (27,135) (35,352)
Waiver of amount due to HNEENBE R TR
associates and a former —FRIM B AR Z
subsidiary FKI8 (5,127) —
Write back of impairment on other H th fE Y FRIE 2 Rk E
receivables gl - (7,500)
Operating (loss)/profit before EELESRBHIKE
working capital changes (F1R) &R (8,625) 6,338
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories FEOEM RS (387) 586
(Increase)/Decrease in accounts FEUERZR (3 ) R
receivable (1,312) 50,844
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits, Be - TENFIE K E A E R
prepayments and other receivables FRIB(EHN) R (1,612) 10,035
Decrease/(Increase) in amounts due  JEUWEEE A FIRIER L
from associates, net (#n) - FEE 84,566 (6,167)
Increase in accounts and bills payable FEATER R Z4 3N 779 3,603
Increase/(Decrease) in accrued FET 2 FR I EL b fE < 5RIB
expenses and other payables #n, G d) 853 (3,159)
Net cash generated from REFEECRESTFH
operations 74,262 61,980
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net EREBHE - JFEE (82) (834)
Taxation outside Hong Kong paid BRBEBEINGIR (2,585) (10,052)
Net cash generated from operating K& ZBELCRSEE
activities 71,595 51,094
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

ME=A=+—HILLFE

2013
=
Notes HK$'000
Kzt FET
Cash flows from investing activities REEFHZRERE
Payments for purchase of property, BBEWE¥ - WE &
plant and equipment BCINEN (68) (112)
Proceeds received from disposals of HEWE  WERKREZ
property, plant and equipment EHSZF)T?%?K 284 80
Payments for construction in FERIEMNRK
progress — (2,152)
Payments for acquisition of an IR B —TB I B M EN R
investment property - (21,028)
Proceeds for disposal of an HE—HIEEYHE
investment property FrS k18 22,000 —
Net cash inflow on disposals of a HE—RIE A
subsidiary and intangible assets ﬁﬁ/éﬁzfﬁimd\
HER 38(b) — 46,875
Net cash inflow on disposal of a HE—RHNBARIZIES
subsidiary MAEEE 38(a) 36,955 —
Proceeds received from disposal HERAFEERGA
of treasury products at fair value BaPBEMZ
through profit or loss B FTS IR 98,191 63,037
Payments for purchase of land use BB + i {E AT
right — (1,981)
(Increase)/Decrease in pledged bank 2 EIRIRITER
deposits (&), m (29,562) 8,847
Interest received 2 U A2 1,000 2,417
Settlement of derivative financial BEITEMGREE
assets 181 (1,736)
Net cash generated from investing REFEELZ
activities REFEE 128,981 94,247
Cash flows from financing activities BEEBHZRERE
Proceeds from issuance of share BITIRAS 2 FT{S 5kIE
capital 5,100 2,700
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE R Z TS 5RIE 99,992 10,000
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (178,545) (87,526)
Interest paid EAFE (1,041) (4,435)
Dividends paid to owners of the ENAR ARG ARS
Company 14(a)/(b)  (175,090) (34,125)
Net cash used in financing activities BEFEIFTA B S FE (249,584) (113,386)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%
cash equivalents WD) R (49,008) 31,955
Translation differences ﬁ%#%ﬁ (39) 3,571
Cash and cash equivalents at FHzRERIRNEEFEY
beginning of the year 94,058 58,5632
Cash and cash equivalents at end HFRZHRERBESEEY
of the year 27 45,011 94,058
Non-cash transactions: FRERS :
Details of the non-cash transactions of the Group during HAEEHEZE—_ZT—NF=A=1+— Eluzir
the year ended 31 March 2014 have been set out in note 2 3E3 & & 5 715 = 7 M 7% 38(a) (i) & Mt 5

38(a)(i) and note 38(a)(ii).

38(a)(ii) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &2 —ZT—ME=A=+—BItFE

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
KARERARGRE FEREE  REAE
Asset
Share  Contributed revaluation Share  Proposed
Share  premium®  surplus®  Translation  reserve® option final  Retained
capital ~(note 33fil)  (note 33())  reserve*  [note 33fil)  reserve*  dividends* profits* Total
EEEh
BREE  HAER B )i

BE (s (hEwy)  BEMR (R WBREE  RERE  REEW gt
HKSOOD  HKSO0  RKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOMO  HKSOOD  HKSOMD  HKSDOD  HKSOD  HKSODD  HKSOOO
Tt fr T fEt . T FET T FET TR TET

At 1 April 2013 RZE-=f
mA-A 16,250 59,932 2,000 - 22,353 2007 - h13,381 615,943 (6) 615,937

Issue of shares upon exercise  17EERER

of share options ik 150 4,950 = = = = = = 5,100 = 5,100
Exercise of share option fifERE - 200 - - - (2,027) = = = = =
Special nterim dividends  FFFIRERRE

(note 14f) (Wit 14t) - - = - - - — (615000 (615000 - (615000
Transacton with owners HREALS 150 6977 = - - 2.007) — (6150000 (609,900) —  (609.900)
Profit for the year Emg = - - - - - - 89,219 89219 Q) 89217
Other comprehensive Bfaaks

income
Exchange loss on tianslation ~ £ESEER

of financial statements Bk#RL

of foreign operations EiER - - - (40) - - - - (40) = (40)
Total comprehensive income. ~ EARENELE

for the year = - - (40) = = = 89219 89,179 2 89,177
Realisation of contibution~~~ HE-RHEL TR

surplus upon disposal of EREARH

a subsidiary - - %09) - - - - 909 - - -
At 31 March 2014 H-5-BE

ZR=t-H 16,400 66,909 1,09 (40) 22,353 - - (11,491) 95,22 8 95,214

the total of these equity accounts as at reporting date  * RE R 2 A ERESEAREEGE A TSR
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of KA
financial position
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEERBER

For the year ended 31 March 2014 &2 —E—NE=A=+—BItFE

Non-
controlling Total
Equity attributable to owners of the Company interests equity
KARERARGRE FEREE  REAE
Asset
Share  Contributed revaluation Share  Proposed
Share  premium®  surplus®  Translation  reserve® option final  Retained
capital ~(note 33fil)  (note 33())  reserve*  [note 33fil)  reserve*  dividends* profits* Total
EEEh
BREE  HAER B )i

BE (s (hEwy)  BEMR (R WBREE  RERE  REEW it
HKSOD SO0 HKSOMD  HKSOOD  HKSODD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOOD  HKSOD  HKSOOO
TET  TET TER TET TR TET WL TR TRt TER TET

At 1 April 2012 RZE-Cf
mA-A 16,100 56,097 2,000 1,002 2.3 5,83 B0 47391 604509 6 604583

Dividends paid inrespect of 27 LEERE

the previous year gl

note 14(b)) = = = = = = 33,810) (315) (34,125) = (34,125)
Cancellation of share options 5B - = - - (4,551) = 4551 = = =
Grant of share options RiEhiE - - = = = 2007 = = 2007 = 2007
Issue of shares pon exercise (T EERER

of share options ikh 150 2,550 - - - - - - 2,700 - 2,700
Exercise of share options iR - 1,285 - - - (1,286 - - - - -
Tonsutinwihowners EEEAEARS W 3% - - — e B 4% (93 -
Proft for the year Emiail — - - - - - - 41,754 41,754 - 4,754

Other comprehensive Rp2EkE

income
Release of translation reserve ~ HE-BHBATE

upon disposal of a BOREGE

subsidiary (note 38(b) (i380) — = - (1,002 — — - - (1,002 = 1,002
Total comprehensive income ~ EAZRENEES

for the year — — - (1,002) — — - 41,754 40,752 - 40,752
At 31 March 2013 i3

ZR=t-H 16,250 59,932 2,000 - 22,353 2001 - 513,381 615,943 6) 615,937

the total of these equity accounts as at reporting date  * RRER 2 SRR EREES BRI
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of KR
financial position

FEEEERARAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

GENERAL INFORMATION

U-Home Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda and its
principal place of business is Unit 01, 12th Floor,
International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company's shares are
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”).

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held
on 4 November 2013 and with the approval of the
Registrar of Companies on 13 November 2013, the
name of the Company has been changed from “Jiwa
Bio-Pharm Holdings Limited F&EZELYEBITRBRA
A" to “U-Home Group Holdings Limited F2£B#E
AR AR

The Company and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to as the “Group”.

The Company is principally engaged in investment
holding. The principal activities of its subsidiaries
include trading of pharmaceutical and health care
products, research and development of chemical
and biological products and investment and treasury
function. During the year, the Group has diversified
its business into consultancy and agency business.

—RER
FEEBZERERQFATEARRA DR
BREFMKZIAER AR - Eaft
9% = F& 2 i 4k A Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda © MH X Z & EME A AEHE
NBEAMTEER1RIRIRE S ES 1218
01E c KRB ZBRNDEBABBER SN
BRAR(TEEAZFT]) £ ©

BEEARANR-_ZE—=F+—FWMA
BOZRREEN RS L@EB 2R
FEUERRAAEFMER=ZZE—Z=F
T—AT=B2z#E  KAFZEBEE
filJiwa Bio-Pharm Holdings Limited
REABEERER AR IENR
[U-Home Group Holdings Limited =F
¥EEZERBRAR] -

ARBIREMBARGEAIANEE] -

ARBEBENEREER - KB A A
ZIBXRBGEREEBENBEEEE
i ARERFEECBREMER AR
BRERUBES - FA - AKEEZ T
ERERGERER R EHRIERR -
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GENERAL INFORMATION (Continued)

On 12 March 2013, the Company through Jiwa
Development Company Limited, a wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, entered into a conditional
sale and purchase agreement (the “Disposal
Agreement”) with Goldvault Limited (”“Goldvault”),
a company which is wholly owned by Mr. Lau Yau
Bor, Madam Chan Hing Ming and Mr. Lau Kin Tung
(collectively referred to as “Lau’'s Family”), ex-
directors and ex-shareholders of the Company,
to dispose its entire 100% equity interests in a
subsidiary of the Group, namely Jiwa Pharmaceuticals
Limited (“JPL") which held 49% direct equity interest
in Kunming Jida Pharmaceutical Company Limited
("KJP"), for a cash consideration of Hong Kong
Dollars (“HK$")512,000,000. KJP has four wholly
owned subsidiaries in the People's Republic of
China (the "PRC") or Hong Kong, namely Wuxi Jida
Pharmaceutical Company Limited (“JJRP"), Kunming
Jida Pharmaceutical Distribution Company Ltd.
(“YJPL"), Yunnan Jida Biotech Limited (“YJB") and
Jida Pharm (HK) Trading Co., Limited (“Jida Pharm
(HK)") (collectively referred to as the "KJP Group”).
The disposal has been completed on 23 August 2013.

The directors consider the immediate holding
company is U-Home Group International Limited and
the ultimate parent is Shunda Investment Limited,
both companies are incorporated in British Virgin
Islands (“BVI"”) with limited liability.

The financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2014 were approved for issue by the board of
directors on 10 June 2014.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

e

2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The financial statements on pages 44 to 171
have been prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA™).

include the applicable disclosure requirements

The financial statements also

of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have
been used in the preparation of these financial
statements are summarised in note 3. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new or amended HKFRSs and the
impacts on the Group’s financial statements, if
any, are disclosed in note 4.

[t should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’'s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions,
actual results may ultimately differ from those
estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the
financial statements, are disclosed in note 5.

ME=A=+—HILLFE)

2.

mREE

2.1

EHREH
FAUMENNE 2B RRTIE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

2.2

2.3

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared
under historical cost basis except for investment
properties, treasury products at fair value
through profit or loss and certain derivative
financial instruments, which are stated at
fair value. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies in note 3.

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$"),
functional currency of the Company.

which is also the

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries made up to 31 March each
year. Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits on such transaction are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in profit or loss
from the effective dates of acquisition or up to
the effective dates of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by
other members of the Group.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

2. WEEEE)

2.2

2.3

FTEREE

SR TIIRE LA EEREL
HREYME - A FEFARRELZ
IGEmMETITEMB T AR
RFEERN - SHEEEDEE
KK FE3 2 ERTERRERAL ©

DRERZFER
MBEBRERLDABTIET] 2
5 BILMABARRBZINEEER

3. EXEHHEME

SAl

EBREHRGEEEE

RAMBRRBEARE RENE
ARBEZA=+—HLFERSF
ZHBREK - RKEARFERH R
RBREBERZER P ZRER N
AR EHR A IS MRS T A2 8
o R EERZ A RHAERE
EZRERAE - RITRA] #H AR
BEE BT - BEARE
R o

N

FRABARHEZWNBAREAH
WEAM B e RBERRNE
AR AHIE(ER) 2 REF AR
& WALE  SHNBRRZHM
BMRIEL AR AEESHER
EASEEEMAK B QR ARAER
F—®e



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses
is accounted for using acquisition method.
The cost of acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of
assets transferred, liabilities incurred and equity
interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer.
The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed are principally measured at acquisition-
date fair value. The Group's previously held
equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured
at acquisition-date fair value and the resulting
gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss. The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value
unless another measurement basis is required
by HKFRSs. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing
equity instruments in which case the costs are
deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (a maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
The
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and

accounted for as equity transactions.

the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair
value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and
any non-controlling interest. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in
the same manner as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition,
amount of non-controlling interests that

the carrying

represent ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interests’
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to such non-
controlling interests even if this results in those
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3

3.E

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
The
Company controls an investee if all three of the

Company is able to exercise control.

following elements are present: power over the
investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from the investee, and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of
these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost
less impairment loss, if any. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company

on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence and that is neither
a subsidiary nor a joint venture. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but not control or joint control over
those policies. Associates are accounted for
using equity method whereby they are initially
recognised at cost and thereafter, their carrying
amount are adjusted for the Group’'s share of
the post-acquisition change in the associates’
net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not
recognised unless there is an obligation to make
good those losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Associates (Continued)

FREBZR

Profits and losses arising on transactions
between the Group and its associates are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors' interests in the associate. The
investor's share in the associate's profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is
eliminated against the carrying value of the
associate. Where unrealised losses provide
evidence of impairment of the asset transferred

they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the
fair value of the Group's share of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is capitalised and included in the
carrying amount of the associate and the entire
carrying amount of the investment is subject
to impairment test, by comparing the carrying
amount with its recoverable amount, which is
higher of value-in-use and fair value less costs to
sell. Where there is objective evidence that the
investment in an associate has been impaired,
the carrying amount of the investment is tested
for impairment in the same way as other non-
financial assets.

BR2AR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4 Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the
date when the fair value was determined and
are reported as part of the fair value gain or
loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
at historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation
currency, have been converted into HK$. Assets
and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at
the closing rates at the reporting date. Income
and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.4

A

FREBZR

Foreign currency (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, the
accumulative exchange differences recognised in
the translation reserve relating to that operation
up to the date of disposal are reclassified to
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses.

The cost of property, plant and equipment
includes its purchase price and the costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment less their
estimated residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using straight-line method, as
follows:

Motor vehicles 3 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values,
depreciation methods and estimated useful lives
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at

each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.5

3.6

S/

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Gain or loss on disposal is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and its carrying
amount and is recognised in profit or loss on
disposal.

Investment property

Investment property is property held either to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation or for
both, but not held for sale in the ordinary course
of business, use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes.
Investment property is measured at cost on
initial recognition and subsequently at fair value
with any change therein recognised in profit or
loss.

Intangible assets
Research and development costs

Costs associated with research activities are
expensed in profit or loss as they occur. Costs
that are directly attributable to development
activities are recognised as intangible assets
provided they meet the following recognition
requirements:

(i)  demonstration of technical feasibility of the
prospective product for internal use or sale;

(i) there is intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it;

(iii) the Group's ability to use or sell the
intangible asset is demonstrated,;

(iv) the intangible assets will generate probable
economic benefits through internal use or
sale;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.7

3.8

Intangible assets (Continued)
Research and development costs (Continued)

(v) sufficient technical, financial and other
resources are available for completion; and

(vi) the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Direct costs included employee costs incurred
on development along with an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads. The costs of
development of internally generated software,
products or knowhow that meet the above
recognition criteria are resognised as assets.
They are subject to the same subsequent
measurement method as acquired intangible
assets.

All other development costs are expensed as
incurred.

Financial assets

Financial assets are classified into loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition depending on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired and where
allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this
designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair
value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when
the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held
for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of selling in the near term, or it is part of a
portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern
of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives
are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee
contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss,
except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash
flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets may be designated at initial
recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss if the following criteria are met (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognisng gains or losses
on them on a different basis; or (ii) the
assets are part of a group of financial
assets which are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with a documented
risk management strategy and information
about the group of financial assets is
provided internally on that basis to the key
management personnel; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the
financial assets included in this category
are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss. Fair
value is determined by reference to active
market transactions or using a valuation
technique where no active market exists.
Fair value gain or loss does not include
any dividend or interest earned on these
financial assets. Dividend and interest
income is recognised in accordance with
the Group’s policies in note 3.17 to these
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. These are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest
method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate
and transaction cost.

Impairment of financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets other

than at fair value through profit or loss are

reviewed to determine whether there is any

objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual

financial assets includes observable data that

comes to the attention of the Group about one

or more of the following loss events:

significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
institution; and

significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8 Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment
status of debtors in the group and, national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
defaults on the assets in the group.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between
the assets’ carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’'s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest
rate computed at initial recognition). The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to
the extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.8

3.8

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(Continued)

For financial assets, other than financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, and accounts
and bills receivable that are stated at amortised
cost, impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly. Where
the recovery of accounts and bills receivable
is considered doubtful but not remote, the
impairment losses for doubtful receivables are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery of accounts and
bills receivable is remote, the amount considered
irrecoverable is written off against accounts
receivable directly and any amounts held in the
allowance account in respect of that receivable
are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account.
Other changes in the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off directly are recognised in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost,
and subsequently at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost comprises all costs of
purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10

11

3.12

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual
contracts or separated from hybrid financial
instruments, are initially recognised at fair value
on the date the derivative contract is entered
into and subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives that are not designed as hedging
instruments are accounted for as financial assets
or financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss. Gains or losses arising from changes in
fair value are taken directly to profit or loss for
the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include bank
borrowings, accounts and bills payable, accrued
expenses and other payables, and derivative
financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group’s accounting policy for borrowing costs
(see note 3.20).

A financial liability is recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12 Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-
recognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in the respective carrying amount is recognised
in profit or loss.

Derivatives

Derivatives including separated embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value (see note
3.10).

Bank borrowings

Bank borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value, net of transaction costs incurred. Bank
borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any difference between the proceeds (net
of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in profit or loss over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Bank borrowings are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.

Accounts and bills payable, accrued expenses
and other payables

These are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using effective interest method.
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-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.13 Financial guarantee issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within
accrued expenses and other payables. Where
consideration is received or receivable for the
issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group's
policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or
receivable, an immediate expense is recognised
in profit or loss on initial recognition of any
deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised
as deferred income is amortised in profit
or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued. In
addition, provisions are recognised if and when
it becomes probable that the holder of the
guarantee will call upon the Group under the
guarantee and the amount of that claim on the
Group is expected to exceed the current carrying
amount i.e. the amount initially recognised less
accumulated amortisation, where appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. EXASTHEHBE#E)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
3.14 Leases 3.14 #HE

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the
Group

Assets that are held by the Group under
leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as being held
under finance leases. Leases which do
not transfer substantially all the risk and
rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

(ii) Operating lease charges as the lessee

Where the Group has the right to use
the assets held under operating leases,
payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss on straight-line
method over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent
rental are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14 Leases (Continued)

(iii) Assets leased out under operating leases
as lessor

Assets leased out under operating leases
are measured and presented according to
the nature of the assets. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an
operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised
as an expense over the lease term on the
same basis as the rental income.

Rental income receivable from operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on
straight-line method over the periods
covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative
of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised
in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments receivable.
Contingent rentals are recognised as
income in the accounting period in which
they are earned.

3.15 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.15

3.16

SV

Provisions and contingent liabilities

(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of

outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the
issuing of shares are deducted from share
premium (net of any related income tax benefit)
to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction.

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sales
of goods and the use by others of the Group's
assets yielding interest and rental income, net
of rebates and discounts. A single arrangement
is separated into its identifiable components if
each component has stand-alone value to the
customer and the fair value of the component
can be measured reliably. The consideration for
the arrangement is allocated to the identifiable
components on a relative fair value basis.
Revenue is recognised for each component of
a single arrangement in accordance with the
Group's revenue recognition policies.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.17 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised as follows:

— Sales of goods, including pharmaceutical
products and technical know-how, are
recognised upon transfer of the significant
risk and rewards of ownership to the
customer. This is usually taken as the time
when the goods are delivered and the
customer has accepted the goods.

— Consultancy service fee income is
recognised when the services are provided.

— Rental income is recognised on straight-
line method over the lease period of the
tenancy.

— Interest income is recognised on time-
proportion basis using effective interest
method.

— Dividend is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets

FREBZR

Property, plant and equipment are subject
to impairment testing and are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications
that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

BR2AR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ME=A=+—HILFE)

3. ERETHEMES®)

3.17

3.18

W a5 FERR (4F)
REEEMN S A R AR KB R
s R AR (ARE ) BEFT SERT & - I

=IERA R

@ﬂ%%%%ﬂf%ﬁ% c BE
SR EmEEFEEBE R

— BEERBERATIREHRR
TR HERR o

— HERARBEOZzHEEHM
RESEMER °

— MBWATREREN R LR
By ] L I EERR

— BB TR WEEIR 2 R R
ST HERR ©

FMBEERE

ME - BB LR EAEEZRER
A WRERRBTIZEEEZR
ETET £ A U O B A 1TTORE A



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.18 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the
asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair
value, reflecting market conditions less costs to
sell, and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the
asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. CGU). As a
result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at CGU level.

An impairment loss is charged pro rata to
the other assets in the CGU, except that the
carrying value of an asset will not be reduced
below its individual fair value less cost to sell, or
value-in-use, if determinable.

Impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the asset's recoverable amount and
only to the extent that the asset's carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of
depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.19 Employee benefits

Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Scheme”), for all of its employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage
of the employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss as employees render services
during the year. The Group's obligations under
these plans are limited to the fixed percentage
contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the reporting date.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such
as sick leave and maternity leave are recognised
until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based employee compensation

All share-based payment arrangements granted
are recognised in the financial statements.
The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its
employees.

All employee services received in exchange
for the grant of any share-based compensation
are measured at their fair values. These are
indirectly determined by reference to the equity
instruments awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example,
profitability and sales growth targets).

All share-based compensation is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss over the vesting
period if vesting conditions apply, or recognised
as an expense in full at the grant date when the
equity instruments granted vest immediately
unless the compensation qualifies for recognition
as asset, with a corresponding increase in
the share option reserve in equity. If vesting
conditions apply, the expense is recognised over
the vesting period, based on the best available
estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number
of equity instruments that are expected to vest.
Estimates are subsequently revised, if there
is any indication that the number of equity
instruments expected to vest differs from
previous estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1%

3.20

3.21

Employee benefits (Continued)

Share-based employee compensation
(Continued)

At the time when the share options are
exercised, the amount previously recognised
in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. After vesting date, when the
vested share options are later forfeited or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax
and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of
temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the corresponding
amounts used for tax purposes. Deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which
the carrying amount of the asset or liability is
realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments
in subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled
entities, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.21

3.22

Income taxes (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the chief
operating decision-maker i.e. the most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations. Individually
material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of
products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers,
the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

-

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.23 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements,

a party is considered to be related to the Group

if:

(a)

The party is a person or a close member of

that person’s family is related to the Group

if that person,

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

the party is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions apply:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members
of the same group (which means that
each parent, subsidiary and fellow
subsidiary is related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other
entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third party and the other party is an
associate of the third party;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

ME=A=+—HILFE)

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.23 Related parties (Continued)

(b)

the party is related to the Group if any of

the following conditions apply: (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);
and

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity or
is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are

those family members who may be expected

to influence, or be influenced by, that person in

their dealings with the entity and include:

that person’s children and spouse or

(a)
domestic partner;

(b) children of that person’'s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(c)

dependents of that person or that person’s

spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs 4. BHNEBBERELEL

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective (a) BRENEET RIETEBURRELE
1 April 2013 Al —=—2-=FmA-HEBER

In the current year, the Group has applied for
the first time the following new standards,
amendments and interpretations issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective for
the Group's financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2013:

RAFE  AEEEERERIAT
HEBGTMASRM - BAKE
ZHBHRREBER T —=F1
A—BRRZFEMREER I
R ERTARRE

HKFRSs (Amendments)  Annual Improvements ERMEHE —E-TFERE-T-
20102012 Cycle ER(BFIX) FREACFENE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of Items of Other BRGEN  EfzAREEEZ
(Revised) Comprehensive Income FIRZBITR 25
(4123T)
Amendments to HKFRS 7 Offsetting Financial Assets and BATBRE BEHMBEEEN
Financial Liabilities EUETHe  HBEE
BETA
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BERERE AU BEmER
ERIZE 1058
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other ERMBERE BEREMEEC
Entities HERE 125 g
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurements ERMBERE  ATERHE
ERIZ 135
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements BB G ER BB BHREK
F27%
(ZF—%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and BRGEN  RERBERAK
Joint Ventures £28% RELE
(Z2——%)
Except as explained below, the adoption of BN PTRIREE SN - BRIt F1E 5T
these amendments has no material impact on AEAREE 2 PR RITEE AR

the Group’s financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) —
Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle

Annual

The Basis of Conclusions for HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement was amended to clarify
that short-term receivables and payables with
no stated interest rate can be measured at
their invoice amounts without discounting, if
the effect of discounting is immaterial. This is
consistent with the Group's existing accounting

policy.

Amendments to HKAS1 (Revised) —
Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income

The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised) require
the Group to separate items presented in
other comprehensive income into those that
may be reclassified to profit and loss in the
future and those that may not. Tax on items of
other comprehensive income is allocated and
disclosed on the same basis.

The Group has adopted the amendments
retrospectively for the financial year ended 31
March 2014. Items of other comprehensive
income that may and may not be reclassified to
profit and loss in the future have been presented
separately in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The comparative information has been restated
to comply with the amendments. As the
amendments affect presentation only, there are
no effects on the Group’s financial position or
performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2013 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7 — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 7 is amended to introduce disclosures for
all recognised financial instruments that are set
off under HKAS 32 and those that are subject
to an enforceable master netting agreement or
similar arrangement, irrespective of whether
they are set off under HKAS 32.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact
on these financial statements as the Group
has not offset financial instruments, nor has it
entered into a master netting agreement or a
similar arrangement.

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial State

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor
has control when it has power over the investee
(whether or not that power is used in practice),
exposure or rights to variable returns from the
investee and the ability to use the power over
the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10
contains extensive guidance on the assessment
of control. For example, the standard introduces
the concept of “de facto” control where an
investor can control an investee while holding
less than 50% of the investee’'s voting rights
in circumstances where its voting interest is
of sufficiently dominant size relative to the
size and dispersion of those of other individual
shareholders to give it power over the investee.
Potential voting rights are considered in
the analysis of control only when these are
substantive, i.e. the holder has the practical
ability to exercise them.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 10 — Consolidated Financial State
(Continued)

The standard explicitly requires an assessment
of whether an investor with decision making
rights is acting as principal or agent and also
whether other parties with decision making
rights are acting as agents of the investor. An
agent is engaged to act on behalf of and for
the benefit of another party and therefore does
not control the investee when it exercises
its decision making authority. The accounting
requirements in HKAS 27 (2008) on other
consolidation related matters are carried
forward unchanged. The Group has changed its
accounting policy in determining whether it has
control of an investee and therefore is required
to consolidate that interest (see note 3.2). The
adoption does not change any of the control
conclusion reached by the Group in respect of
its involvement with other entities as at 1 April
2013.

HKFRS 12 — Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent
the disclosures requirements about interests in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements.
It also introduces new disclosure requirements,
including those related to unconsolidated
structured entities. The general objective of
the standard is to enable users of financial
statements to evaluate the nature and risks of a
reporting entity’s interests in other entities and
the effects of those interests on the reporting
entity’s financial statements.

HKFRS 12 Disclosure are provided in notes
20 and 21. As the new standard affects only
disclosure, there is no effect on the Group’s
financial position and performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective
1 April 2013 (Continued)

HKFRS 13 — Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance
on how to measure fair value when it is required
or permitted by other standards. The standard
applies to both financial and non-financial items
measured at fair value and introduces a fair
value measurement hierarchy. The definitions of
the three levels in this measurement hierarchy
are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines
fair value as the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).
The standard removes the requirement to use
bid and ask prices for financial assets and
liabilities quoted in an active market. Rather
the price within the bid-ask spread that is most
representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive
disclosure requirements to allow users of the
financial statements to assess the methods
and inputs used in measuring fair values and
the effects of fair value measurements on
the financial statements. HKFRS 13 is applied
prospectively.

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair
value measurements of the Group’s assets and
liabilities and therefore has no effect on the
Group's financial position and performance. The
standard requires additional disclosures about
fair value measurements and these are included
in note 19 and 39. Comparative disclosures
have not been presented in accordance with the
transitional provisions of the standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New/Revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group.

Amendments to
HKAS 32

Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities'

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2014

Amendments to HKAS 32 — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting
requirements by adding appliance guidance
to HKAS 32 which clarifies when an entity
“currently has a legally enforceable right to set
off” and when a gross settlement mechanism is
considered equivalent to net settlement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

4. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b)

New/Revised HKFRSs that have been issued
but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

Under HKFRS 9, financial assets are classified
into financial assets measured at fair value
or at amortised cost depending on the
entity’'s business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets.
Fair value gains or losses will be recognised
in profit or loss except for those non-trade
equity investments, which the entity will have
a choice to recognise the gains and losses
in other comprehensive income. HKFRS 9
carries forward the recognition, classification
and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities that are designated at fair value
through profit or loss, where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of that liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

(i) Fair value of investment property

As disclosed in note 19, investment properties
are measured at fair value and revalued at the
end of each reporting period. The fair values
are determined with reference to valuations
conducted by Roma Appraisals Limited
(“Roma”), an independent firm of professional
valuer. Such valuations were based on various
assumptions which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from actual results.
In making the judgement, the Group considered
current prices in an active market for similar
properties and used assumptions that were
mainly based on market conditions existing at
the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(Continued)

(ii)

Impairment on accounts and other receivables

The Group estimates impairment losses for
bad and doubtful debts resulting from the
inability of its debtors to make the required
payments. These estimates are based on ageing
of its accounts and other receivable balances,
customers’ credit-worthiness, and historical
write-off experience. If the financial condition
of its debtors deteriorates so that the actual
impairment loss will be higher than expected,
the Group will revise the basis of making the
allowance and its future results would be
affected.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying the accounting
policies

(iii) Research and development activities

Careful judgement by the Group's management
is applied when deciding whether the
recognition requirements for development
costs have been met. This is necessary
as the economic success of any product
development is uncertain and may be subject
to future technical problems upon recognition.
Judgements are based on the best information
available at each reporting date. In addition,
all internal activities related to the research
and development of new products or know-
how are continuously monitored by the Group's
management.

(iv) Sale of technical know-how

As disclosed in note 22, the Group entered
into multiple-element arrangements when
they sell its intangible assets to YJB in 2013.
Consideration of total arrangements is allocated
to the deliverables based on their relative fair
values. The allocated consideration is recognised
as revenue in accordance with note 3.17.
The Group's directors exercise judgement to
determine whether the arrangements comprise
identifiable components so as to apply the
recognition criteria to the separately identifiable
components of a single transaction in order to
reflect the substance of the transaction.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

6.

ME=A=+—HILLFE)

REVENUE 6.

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1
to these financial statements. Turnover of the Group
is the revenue derived from its principal activities.

Wz

AEEZ T BEBNUFMHERRME
TRE - AREZEXERKBEEE
Rz W

2014 2013
Ll T —— 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Trading of pharmaceutical and health B &= %% MR EE R

care products 33,072 35,648
Sale of technical know-how S5 B 01T A0 54 1,000 =
Consultancy services fee income EERRRBE WA 1,007 =
35,079 35,648

SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. DEER

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the regular
internal financial information reported to the executive
directors. The executive directors based on their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group's
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components on these reports.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors are
determined following the Group’s major product and
service lines.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group has
four reportable segments, the following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group's
reportable segments:

()  Trading of pharmaceutical and health care
products — Trading of pharmaceutical and health
care products

(i)  Research and development — Research and
development of chemical and biological products

(iii) Investment and treasury function — Investment
holding and treasury function

(iv) Consultancy and agency business — Provision
for property agency and consultancy service

Each of these operating segments is managed
separately as each of the product and service lines
requires different resources as well as marketing
approaches.

The measurement policies the Group uses for
reporting segment results under HKFRS 8 are the
same as those used in its financial statements
prepared under HKFRSs, except that:

— expenses related to share-based payments

—  fair value gain or loss on put options

— impairment of/reversal of impairment for other
receivables

— share of profit or loss of associates accounted
for using the equity method

— finance costs incurred on corporate borrowings

— income tax

— corporate income and expenses which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of
any operating segment

are not included in arriving at the operating results of
the operating segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets include all assets but exclude
interests in associates and tax recoverable. In
addition, corporate assets which are not directly
attributable to the business activities of any operating
segment are not allocated to a segment and the
Group’s headquarters.

Segment liabilities exclude derivative financial
liabilities in relation to put options (further detailed
in note 30(a)). In addition, corporate liabilities which
are not directly attributable to the business activities
of any operating segment and are not allocated to a
segment, these include tax payable and deferred tax
liabilities.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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BREN M E30(a) £ —FaFa) - it
Sh - WIHFEEFBRNEMRLED R 2%
BRI AR ABRLESETED
ZERAABEBEENREMEEREA
BfE-

WIS R 2, D HIER TG DR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-—Z—MF=A=1+—HIFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. pDEERE)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DK DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities =R
Information regarding the Group's reportable EREAEETE2RoA 2B (BER
segments including the reconciliations to revenue, Wt - BRPTSBAIREN - BELE - 8

BERBENEMOMER ZHR)IMT

profit before income tax, total assets, total liabilities
and other segment information are as follows:

98

Trading of
pharmaceutical Investment Consultancy
and health Research and and treasury and agency
care products development function business Total
EEERR RER BER
REER HRREE BB %R ERREERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TEx Az FEn FEn
Year ended 31 March BE-E-mF
2014 ZR=t+-BLFE
Reportable segment CEL: k6
revenue 33,072 1,000 - 1,007 35,079
Reportable segment 2R H(HE)/
(loss)/profit Pyl (6,957) 1,735 1,136 978 (3,108)
Waiver of amount due to AR EREZAAR
associates and a —HAMBARZE
former subsidiary 5,127
Financial quarantee fee ~ BIEERBUA
income 606
Exchange gain, net Bl 58 2,616
Share of results of EiEBEARZE
associates 27,135
Gain on disposal of a HE-TRHBARZ
subsidiary Wi 100,069
Secretary fee WEER (1,205)
Legal and professional fees EERZEER (7,515)
Unallocated corporate N N
income n
Unallocated corporate FOELARY
eXpenses (2,517)
Profit before income tax B TR AT A 121,519

FEEEERARAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEERE)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DK DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\#E)

Trading of

pharmaceutical Investment  Consultancy
and health  Researchand  and treasury ~ and agency
care products  development function business Corporate Total
REER RER BRR
RREER  WAREE BBER  EERERE A a3t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
71 71 77 Tz Tz 7T

Other information HfpER
Interest income HERA
— Bank deposits and loans to — BERRER THELT
associates 16 12 615 1 2 646
— Bank deposits subject to interest  — F7R(RHBEDHAL
rate SWap contracts 72) - - 354 - - 354
Finance costs HERA - - (1,401) - - (1,401)
Depreciation of property, W% BERRERE
plant and equipment (93) - - - - (93)
Fair value gain on other derivative ~ AMTAHBERZ{TAHBIEL
financial instruments not AVEYE 7
qualifying as hedges, net - - 644 - - 644
Fair value loss on treasury products  RATEABR 2 BBERZ
at fair value through profit or loss ~~ ATEEE - - (2,697) - - (2,697)
Additions to specified non-curent  HEFRIEE LN’
assets’ 68 - - - - 68
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-—Z—MF=A=1+—HIFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets

and segment liabilities (Continued)

DEER ()

AR EE - DERE - T MEER DB
BEE)

Trading of
pharmaceutical Investment Consultancy
and health Research and and treasury and agency
care products development function business Total
EEZn RER )N
RREER HERRS BB ER ERREER @5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx AT A7 T8 FEr
As at 31 March 2014 R-E-DF
ZA=1-H
Reportable segment 2RI HEE
assets 50,690 3,088 139,249 12,453 205,480
Tax recoverable AR EHE 904
Cash and cash equivalents F&REESEN 1,034
Other corporate assets ~ EMAREE 2
Consolidated total assets fAEEMAE 207,420
As at 31 March 2014 R-E-IF
ZA=1-H
Reportable segment 2RI PEE
liabilities 10,034 - 99,992 - 110,026
Tax payables fEfifiE 362
Deferred tax liabiities ~ EREFHEBE(E 217
Accrued expenses and N BEREMEM
other payables B 1,601
Consolidated total Erey-lrt ]
liabilities 112,206

FEEEERARAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DWW PEWEE - 2B EERD T
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\#E)
Trading of
pharmaceutical Investment

and health Research and and treasury
care products development function Total
BEE#m RER
RIREER HRRFEE IBES Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
(restated®) (restated*) (restated®)
(=5 *) (fg=5*) (&5 *)
Year ended 31 March BE-Z-=%=8
2013 Zt+-ALFE
Reportable segment 2K BK R
revenue 35,648 — — 35,648
Reportable segment A2H5HEA
profit 2,038 21,739 3,445 27,222
Financial guarantee BBRERERA
fee income 1,707
Fair value loss on put Rb Az A TE
option BE (10,356)
Share base payment LSRR (2,027)
Impairment of other HAb UG IBRE
receivables (12,013)
Write back of other H A e IR R
receivables 7,500
Finance costs on corporate ARIEE 7 BAM A
borrowings (1,439)
Share of results of B EAREE
associates 35,352
Unallocated corporate AOBEDBRA
income 6,769
Unallocated corporate APEARIAY
expenses (5,402)
Profit before income tax  BRATSH TR 47,313
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. aHER@®)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DK DEHEE IBEERD B
and segment liabilities (Continued) a®\#E)
Trading of
pharmaceutical Investment
and health Research and and treasury
care products development function Corporate Total
EEEmR RER
REER REREE g e A7 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT
Other information AtEH
Interest income FEHA
— Bank deposits and loans o~ — BT RERT
associates NG 45 4 - 2 51
— Bank deposits subject — RO RHEEEAH
to interest rate swap 72)
contracts - — 2,150 - 2,150
— Overdue receivables — ERHENE = = = 216 216
Finance costs MERE - - (2,996) (1,439) (4,435)
Depreciation of property, plant 9% » BERREFE
and equipment (224) (248) — — (472)
Fair value loss on other derivative EfFAFARRER 2674
financial instruments not HBIACATEEE 58
qualifying as hedges, net — — 6,218) — (6,218)
Fair value gain on treasury RATEFABEZHEER
products at fair value through 2 ATENE
profit or loss — — 2,893 — 2,893
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary  HE-FENBARRENEEL
and intangible assets Wi - 23,529 - - 23,529
Additions to specified BEERBEEEN
non-current asset’ 21,028 15,472 = = 36,500
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR M R

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

i

ME=A=+—HILLFE)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEERE)
Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets DWW PEWEE - 2B EERD T
and segment liabilities (Continued) B8&(#E)
Trading of
pharmaceutical Investment
and health Research and and treasury
care products development function Total
BEZEML BER
REER 7 K EIp e w@at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(restated*) (restated*)
(&5 *) (&5 *)
As at 31 March 2013 R=B-=F
=A=+-H
Reportable segment 2R BEE
assets 108,384 27,655 232,596 368,635
Interests in associates N NGI: $ 443,816
Tax recoverable TH&Z@%RIE 873
Other corporate assets Hit N B EE 59,125
Consolidated total assets #AEEEAE 872,449
As at 31 March 2013 RZB-=F
=B=1+-H
Reportable segment EHSHAE
liabilities 9,687 — 80,741 90,428
Derivative financial ITHBMBKARE —
liabilities — put option Rb e 64,060
Tax payables FEfFIR 1,832
Deferred tax liabilities EETIEARE 1,602
Other corporate liabilities ~ EMAFEE 98,590
Consolidated total ReffEeE
liabilities 256,512
# Including the Group's property, plant and equipment, # BREAEBZME  BELRZRE &

investment properties and interests in associates but
excluding deferred tax assets

Investment properties held by the Group and the
corresponding income and expenses were included
in the segment of “Trading of pharmaceutical and
healthcare products” in last years. Management
considered that the inclusion of these items in the
segment of “Investment and treasury function” is
a better presentation in this year, accordingly, the
comparative figures have been restated.

BYMERRBERB 2z ETE
EREHRIREE

AEE P 2 REMERBBEAR
RXRNBEFEREE EE %R RF
REMIDH - EEERBNEEES
WEEE BREERERMBER S
FREZ2H - Bt EBBFERLSE
3l o
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

An analysis of the Group's property, plant and
equipment, investment properties and interest in
associates (i.e. specified non-current assets) by
geographical locations, determined based on physical
location of the assets or location of operations in case
of interests in associates, is as follows:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

DEER ()
i EE R

REBREEEMUEXNEBTEH
(BB R A2 s ) EE 2 = &
DZUE - BERRE BREMERR
BE Nz ER(BIEEERBEE)D
T

2014 2013
i T —F
HK$°000 HK$000

FEx FET
Hong Kong (place of domicile) B8 (GEfh2) 33,000 55,373
The PRC (excluding Hong Kong) FR(TRERES) — 443,816
33,000 499,189

The Group's revenue is predominantly derived from
the PRC. The geographic location of customers is
based on the location at which the goods were
delivered or services were rendered.

Information about major customers

Revenue for the current year from three (2013: three)
customers of the Group's trading of pharmaceutical
and health care products segment amounted to
HK$17,152,000, HK$9,239,000 and HK$5,800,000
(2013: HK$22,951,000, HK$8,637,000 and
HK$4,060,000), which represent 49%, 26% and 17%
(2013: 64%, 24% and 12%) of the Group's revenue
respectively.

As at 31 March 2014, amount due from the largest
customer accounted for 87% (2013: 25%) of the
Group's total accounts receivable balances.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

AEBZERTEREFTE - FPAE
WIARNEmRERERRT 2R SE

FHRIEEFZEH

REE  AEBEEZEmMREEMD
Here=%(Z2—=%F: =R)BRFEXE
Z WA &17,152,0007% 7t * 9,239,000
7 7T % 5,800,000 TL( = —=F
22,951,000/8 7T * 8,637,000/ 7T &
4,060,000% 7T ) © 2 BIME A S E KA
Z49% ~26% R17% (Z & — =
64% * 24% K% 12%) °

RZZE—ME=A=+—0 " EkHK
BEZFIBERAEEEWRA L GHARE
287% (ZE—=% :125%) o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HWA
2014 2013
i S T —
HK$000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Interest income on bank deposits RITFERZFEHA 1,000 2,201
Interest income on overdue 480 B FE W sk 3R 2 ) B A
receivables — 216
Rental income AL WA 973 1,091
Waiver of amount due to associates A% ERELE AR &
and a former subsidiary —MEAIHI B AR Z3IE 5,127 —
Others HAh, 672 2,770
7,772 6,278
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. HitWzm=REE
2014 2013
B T =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TE8T
Exchange gain, net DE N e - FER 4,461 9,170
Fair value gain on investment KEMFE 2 A EW
properties (note 19) (H1:£19) — 4,972
Fair value loss on put option RoniiEr A EEE
(note 30(a)) (K15t 30(a)) - (10,356)
Fair value (loss)/gain on treasury BAFEFGTABRS P BEML
products at fair value through NFE(EER) WS - FE
profit or loss, net (note 26) (K1 26) (2,697) 2,893
Fair value gain/(loss) on derivative TNEEEPERZITERBITA
financial instruments not qualifying 2 AT ER(EBE) 38
as hedges, net (note 30(b)) (H1a£30(b)) 644 (6,218)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary and HE&E—REMBARREREEZ
intangible assets (note 38(b)) Wk (fa 38(b)) — 23,5629
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWZE - BERE#H W=
and equipment — 80
Impairment on other receivables H b e W R IERE (f7 7 (a)
(note (a)) — (12,013)
Write back of impairment on other E e YR IB R (E B
receivables (note (b)) (K1t b)) — 7,500
2,408 19,657
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

The balance related to the provision for the
consideration receivable was in relation to disposal of
equity interests in Longchang Industrial Co. Ltd. (LU7
FLISHEEETEBMRAMAE]) in previous year.

Write back of impairment included HK$5,000,000
settled by the shareholder of Leader Forever Limited
(“Leader Forever”), the Group’s former associate,
and HK$2,500,000 settled by the shareholder of Vital
Element Investments Limited (“Vital Element”), the
Group’s former associate, during the year ended 31
March 2013. These amounts were the considerations
received by the Group from exercising the put options
pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement of Leader
Forever and Vital Element but were written off in
2012.

As at 31 March 2013 and 2014, the Group held 500
shares, i.e. 12.5% of equity interests, in Vital Element.
The net carrying amount of these 500 shares was nil,
representing initial investment cost of HK$5,000,000,
less the accumulated amount of share of losses of
Vital Element up to 31 March 2012. There was no
further share of loss of Vital Element recognised by
the Group at the reporting date as the net carrying
amount of the Group’s interests in Vital Element is nil
as at 31 March 2014.

10. FINANCE COSTS

ME=A=+—HILFE)

)

Hibzm K EE &)

e

(a)

RHEZFHERLUAZKEESE
XEREELAZBREZEEREZ
BEBR -

BE_Z—=F=A=+—HILF
B REZLCBEAEEIEEQ
7] Leader Forever Limited([Leader
Forever]) f% & /& & 2 5,000,000
JC - LA R K & E Al EZ 2 A Vital
Element Investments Limited ([ Vital
Element]) % % /5 18 2 2,500,000 %
T ZE RIS B AR Leader
Forever & Vital Element Z i% 5 # &%
TERGEEMK R KRE  HEER
T -

RZE—=FR=_F—NF=H
== - ﬁ%.b"s\VItal Element #
% 500 A% A& 15 (BN 12.5% A& 4 ) -
500t 2 EEFEART - HER
] 27 #% & BX 75 5,000,000 75 7T ik B &
—T——F=A=+—HZEVital
ElementE#E 2 25t &8 - AR EZ
T—WNE=A=+—H AEER
Vital ElementZ #mEEAFEAT
WRMRERH  AEBWEERL
&1k Vital Element 2 [E518 o

= Paray
25

10. BE KA

2014 2013
SE-OF e
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FE&ET
Interest charges on bank borrowings ZBRAFANRHEERE
wholly repayable within five years RITEFMERA 1,401 4,435
During the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2014, HE-_Z—=ZFkR-_Z—-—NFE=A

all finance costs were charged on bank borrowings

which contain repayments on demand clause.

FREBZR

BR2AR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

=t HLEFE - FERERATIEA

MITEF  ZSERHEBREKRKEEREL
&R o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

11. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 11. BRFFS 8RR

2014 2013
Ll T =

HK$000 HK$'000

T BT

Profit before income tax is arrived at TS AT#H A2 31
after charging:

Auditor's remuneration ZE R & 480 750
Amortisation of land use rights - 35 PR A 8 — 247
Cost of inventories recognised as ERAERAIT 2 FERKAK

expense 29,599 27,720
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BE REREBITE (K@)

equipment (note (a)) 93 472
Employee benefit expenses (including EE®FIFE X (BIEEEME)

directors’ emoluments) 4,983 8,613
Operating lease charges in respect of ¥ 7 &ELHERX

premises 1,599 3,339

Write off of prepayments S8 TR FRIE - 39

Research and development costs ftoe M B A (B2 (a))

(note (a)) — 780

Note: HBiat -

(a)  These are included in “Administrative expenses” in (a) ZEZEEARBE-_ZT-—-MNMER-=
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other —=®=ZA=+t—HUIEEEZHFELE
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 March m=hEMEARERPAANITEHE
2014 and 2013. Rl
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FifSFHipx
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate FR - BAENERE B ERTE T
of 16.5% (2013: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable 16.5% (ZFE— =4 :165%) 2K =
profits for the year. STIRRAE o
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) has been provided CEMBHICEMSHR DERLRH
on the estimated assessable profits of subsidiary Bl AL 2 BB A &) 2 (A BT FE SR B s T 4%
operating in PRC at 25% (2013: 25%). 25% (T —=4F : 25%) 2 TR Rt Hs
o
2014 2013
i S T —
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current tax ANEAFRIE
— Hong Kong — &BE
Tax for the year AEEHIE 129 170
Over-provision in respect of prior BEFEBRBEE
years (209) (1,026)
(80) (856)
— PRC —
EIT for the year REZREMET 382 996
Capital gain tax provided for L E—REH B A AR
disposal of a subsidiary B 2 BT S
(note 38(a)(ii)) (K132 38(a)(ii) 32,000 —
Tax provided for selling of FLEHE — R R AN AT IR
technical know-how B 2 TR — 5,009
32,382 6,005
Deferred tax REER I
Current year (note 31) REEZ(HeE31) — 410
32,302 5,559

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 12.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and

R8s 2)

PISBFAX Besta MR ERAREGE

accounting profit at applicable tax rates: ¥R
2014 2013
=l T —
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax Bk BT 1S A BT A1) 121,519 47,313
Tax on profit before income tax, LAB BT TS B) A & Y ) i R
calculated at the rates applicable ZIREGTE ZBRPTS B AT s
to profits in the tax jurisdictions g
concerned 20,138 7,832
Tax effect of non-deductible DRI 2 2 B IS s &
expenses 1,855 5,109
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BERM WS 2 Mg & (23,008) (12,649)
Tax effect of tax losses not RERRBEEEBZHETE
recognised 1,430 736
Tax effect of temporary differences  KRERERZEZE 2
not recognised M2 (31) 12
Others EHAth 127 126
Tax provided for selling of P E R AR RS 2
technical know-how I8 - 5,009
Capital gain tax provided for MEEHRB AR HREREEZ
disposal of a subsidiary BRI EMN 32,000 —
Deferred tax provided for withholding  #t—F& AR BB 2 A 5 7] 2R
tax on distributable profits of TR AT IR 2
an PRC associate ERERRIE - 410
Over-provision in respect of B FEEERE
prior years (209) (1,026)
Income tax expense ST X 32,302 5,559

13. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS 13.

OF THE COMPANY

Of the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company of HK$89,219,000 (2013:
HK$41,754,000), a profit of HK$479,956,000 (2013:
HK$11,074,000) (note 33) has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

RRFHERARMEEF

RAFHEE ANEILERE 3= F] 89,219,000
BT (=& — =4 : 41,754,000/ 7T )
f o % #11479,956,00058 TT(— & — =
% :11,074,000% 7T ) (M1 3£ 33) E R A
NAIM MK PR o

“T-=FF-NFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

109



110

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

14. DIVIDENDS

(a)

(b)

Dividends attributable to the year

14. BE
(a)

rEERERS
2014 2013
= T =F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TBT

Special interim dividends in respect of AN E 2 45 5lF HA

current financial year of HK$0.375
per share (2013: Nil)

i% B Z%0.375 87T
(ZZE—=%F: #&)

615,000 =

On 23 May 2013, a special interim dividends
amounted to HK$615,000,000 (HK$0.375 per
share) was conditionally proposed, subject to
(i) the completion of the disposal of JPL, (ii)
the completion of disposal of an investment
property of the Group and (iii) approval by the
shareholders of the Company. These conditions
were subsequently fulfilled and as at 23 August
2013, the special interim dividends became
unconditional and was recorded as liabilities of
the Group. Such dividend was paid on 30 August
2013.

Included in the dividend payable of
HK$615,000,000, HK$439,910,000 (note 38(al(i))
was settled against the consideration receivable
in connection with the disposal of JPL.

Dividends attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the
year

(b)

RZE—=FRA=+=0" %
Al B% %615,000,000% JT(&F A%
0.375 8 7T ) A & H 1R 2 KA (i)
BEHEEHEEHETK (i)
EEZHREMELESHETA
R ARAT RS AER - HAIE
o HEBERUEERY  BRZF
—=FNA=-+=8 ERIPHK
ERBEEG  YUAEBZAE
AR - ZBRBER=ZZE—=F/\A
=+HIRR -

£ JE 15 B% B.615,000,000 % 7T &
/- 439,910,000 7T (K 5 38(a)
NIGABBLEEELESE ZEK
REER -

REAFERERZNZ E—MBF

Final dividend in respect of the
previous financial year of
HK$0.021 per share

FHBEE 2 RS
FR%0.021 87T

EEGRE
2014 2013
TE-F e
HK$°000 HK$'000
FAT F&T
— 34,125

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. ERER
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per ARARHEAEARLERERARESRF
share attributable to owners of the Company are TR A TN 8RR E -

based on the following data:

2014 2013
Ll T —— 4
HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FEIT
Profit for the year attributable to RRATEER ANEGEFERRT
owners of the Company 89,219 41,754
‘000 ‘000
F Fhz
Weighted average number of T 3E AR N FE 39 E
ordinary shares
Weighted average number of ordinary FNGTESKRERZFZ
shares used in calculating basic T AR N S 21
earnings per share 1,639,014 1,622,616
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BEETLTBER o wE —
shares — Share options RE A 434 7,631
Weighted average number of ordinary ARGt EFKRE SRR~
shares used in calculating diluted T E AR AN RE S
earnings per share 1,639,448 1,630,247
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-—Z—MF=A=1+—HIFE)

16. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 16. BERAMAX(BRESHE)
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS)

2014 2013
b T =F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET TET

Salaries and wages, other allowances #H& N TE - EfERE N

and benefits in kind EMHE 4,112 4,443
Rentals for staff and directors BIRESCHS 854 2,060
Share-based employee compensation AR 2 & 8 #(E

(note 34) (H1a£34) — 2,027
Contribution to defined contribution  EZEtFET 812 %

plans 17 83

4,983 8,613
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE - —FE=A=+—HIFE)

17. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'’S
EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

17. EEFHESREEEME

(a) ESME

Salaries,

housing,

other

allowances

and benefits

in kind

¥e& BB

HitZRR

ik BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
FBT FAET

Contribution
to defined
contribution
plans

EBEMHA
bE AR
HK$'000
FHET

st
HK$'000
TAT

For the year ended BE-Z-mf

31 March 2014 ZA=t-HLFE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lau Yau Bor (note (iv) — BIRBESELE(HZ(v) - 1,355 - 1,355
Mr. Lau Kin Tung (note (iv)) ~ BIZM %% (K (v)) 662 351 4 1,017
Madam Chan Hing Ming BRERZL

Tung (note (iv)) (B (iv) - 777 - 777
Ms. Zhou Wen Chuan B3l z+

(note (iii)) (i3t (i) 75 100 - 175
Mr. Liu Lailin (note (iif)) BRI (W2 (i) - 175 - 175
Mr. Zhou Xuzhou (note (i) FISBIMSE 4 (47 (i) - 292 - 292
Non-executive directors ~ FHITES
Mr. Chen Xuejun (note (iii) ~ BREE K4 (41 (i) 72 - - 72
Independent non-executive BYEHITEE

directors
Mr. Choy Ping Sheung BEXHEE

(note (iv)) (Mt (iv) 33 - - 33
Mr. Fung Tze Wa (note (iv) BFEREH F(iv)) 52 - - 52
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu (note (iv)) EBEREM Z(v) 52 - - 52
Mr. Lee Cheuk Yin (note (i) ZFEREE(HTE (i) 70 - - 70
Mr. Chau Chi Wai (note (i) &% (M (i) 70 - - 70
Mr. Gao Guanjiang (note (iii) =L IEE(HE (i) 70 - - 70

1,156 3,050 4 4,210
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

17. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

17. EEFHESREBEME #)

(a) EZME(E)

Salaries,
housing,
other  Contribution
allowances to defined
and benefits  contribution
Fees in kind plans Total
¢ EE-
Hitr2 R EHEMLR
e BN TRz st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended BE-_Z-=f%
31 March 2013 ZA=T-HLEE
Executive directors BTEE
Mr. Lau Yau Bor (note iv)  BIRR%E(HEE(iv)) — 2,334 = 2,334
Mr. Lau Kin Tung (note iv) IR % (Hat(v) 1,308 — 15 1,323
Madam Chan Hing Ming REHLL
(note iv) (Wit (iv) — 910 - 910
Independent non-executive BYEHITES
directors
Mr. Choy Ping Sheung HEREAE
(note iv) (Kriz(iv) 80 — — 80
Mr. Fung Tze Wa (note iv)  BFERE(HE(iv) 100 — — 100
Mr. Chiu Wai Piu (note iv) — EEEZ%E(MF(v)) 100 — — 100
1,588 3,244 15 4,847
Notes: Miat -

(i) There was no arrangement under which
a director waived or agreed to waive any

emoluments during the year (2013: Nil).

(ii) During the year, no emolument was paid by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation

for loss of office (2013: Nil).

(iii)  These directors were appointed on 30 August

2013.

(iv)  These directors were resigned on 23 September

2013.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FA - MEEEHELRBREER
ME 2 (ZFB—=F: &) -

FR AEEVES NS TFESEN
3| %S A ANE B RIEAIMAKE
Bk zHmM - SKEABBZAMECCS
—=F E\E) -

REEBEN_ZE—Z=FN\A=1+HE
ZE{E -

ZEBEN_ZE-—=FNA=-+=H
BHE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

17. DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were
the highest in the Group for the year included
four (2013: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented above.
Emoluments payable to the remaining one
individual (2013: two individuals) during the year
are as follows:

17. EEFHESREBEME »)

(b)

TEBREHMAL

FRAAKBRERSFMALERE
=H(CE—=F :=ZR)E="F
AR EX 2520 MARKR
FARNESH—BAL(ZT—=
FMBADIZEEMT

2014 2013
Sl T —
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET FET
Salaries, housing, other allowances #% * BE  HEf285 K
and benefits in kind EWFz= 479 1,050
Discretionary bonus IS IEAL — 128
Share-based employee compensation LA 5 32+ 2 1B B #i (& — 405
Contribution to defined contribution EXEHFETEI~
plans HR 13 29
492 1,612
Emoluments of the one (2013 two) individual(s) —Z(ZF—=F : MB) AL 2B
fell within the following bands: BERATEE :

Number of individuals

Nil — HK$1,000,000

% 1,000,0008 7T

No emolument was paid by the Group to
the directors or any of the five highest paid
individual as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss
of office (2013: Nil).

The emoluments paid or payable to members of
senior management are included in the analysis
presented above.

AEEHERNESRAE TS E M
ATEFPERALZFEBS A
Wa| HEMAREB S IEAIMAK
SEB BRI - KIERBER 2 HE
(ZZB—=%F:8) o

ENSENRAEEAEZHEH
B LRSI DM
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

18. W% BERRE — ~£8

GROUP
Furniture,
Motor fixtures and
vehicles equipment Total
B #E
AE SET ] st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 April 2012 NZE——FWA—H
Cost BXAR 673 5,885 6,558
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (224) (3,682) (3,906)
Net carrying amount REHE 449 2,203 2,652
Year ended 31 March 2013 HE-_Z—=F
“A=+—BLEE
Opening net carrying amount  EA¥BE E R {E 449 2,203 2,652
Additions NE — 112 112
Depreciation e (224) (248) (472)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBAR
(note 38(b)) (Hizt38(b)) — (1,919) (1,919)
Closing net carrying amount  HI#REREFE 225 148 373
At 31 March 2013 RZZE—=%F
=A=+—H
Cost BAR 673 3,555 4,228
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (448) (3,407) (3,855)
Net carrying amount REHE 225 148 373
Year ended 31 March 2014 HE_T—NF
“A=+—BLEE
Opening net carrying amount  EA¥BE EH{E 225 148 373
Additions NE - 68 68
Depreciation e (56) (37) (93)
Disposal HE (169) (115) (284)
Closing net carrying amount  HI#REREFE - 64 64
At 31 March 2014 RZZT—F
=A=+—H
Cost BAR 673 552 1,225
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (673) (488) (1,161)
Net carrying amount REHE - 64 64

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE - —FE=A=+—HIFE)

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP 19. REY%E — X&H

2014 2013

b T —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Fair value AEE

At 1 April REA—H 55,000 29,000
Additions NE — 21,028
Disposals HE (22,000) —
Increase in fair value (note 9) RN EZMAZEI) - 4,972
At 31 March R=ZA=+—8 33,000 55,000

The carrying amount of the Group's investment REBREMEZERES AT :

properties is analysed as follows:

2014 2013
kA T =
HK$’000 HK$°000

FET FEr
Land in Hong Kong: BT
— Long lease — REIFELD 33,000 55,000
The fair value of investment property is a level 2 WEMEZ ANFELE _PEFHERTF
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of EffZE - FYHFRAFELEHZHER
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided HHT o
below.
2014
—E-MF
HK$’000
FAET
Opening balance (level 2 recurring fair value) F##E&(E —REEEQAFE) 55,000
Disposals HE (22,000)
Closing balance (level 2 recurring fair value) FR&H(FE LKL EHEATE) 33,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

19.

20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — GROUP
(Continued)

The fair value of the Group's properties as at 31
March 2014 and 2013 have been arrived at on
market value basis carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited (“Roma"), an independent valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and
has recent experience in the location and category of
the investment property being valued.

The valuation of the investment property as at 31
March 2014 is determined using direct comparison
approach assuming sale of the property in their
existing states with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market.

As at 31 March 2013, one of these properties with a
fair value of HK$22,000,000 was pledged to secure
the Group’s bank borrowings (note 28). The property
was disposed during the current year to a company,
which is incorporated in Hong Kong and wholly owned
by Lau’s Family, at a consideration of HK$22,000,000,
which was equal to its fair value as at the date of
disposal.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —
COMPANY

(a) Investments in subsidiaries

1k

20.

BREYE — A&EB8 &)

R-BE-—NMER—_E—=F=A=+—
B AEEWMEZAFEEERBYHE
MZESBEFEERAAIES ] (F
R RAEBEER - WA NI
HIGEMFE 2 B KRBT HE K
) RmEREEREIT 2 HEES -

RZZE—NE=RA=+—8H REM%E
ZEEDRBERLEE  BROEE
ARATREHE  XR2ERHEATS
LRBZAIELBHER G MEE -

R-B—=H=A=+—H0 Hb—%
AF{E 522,000,000 BT ZZMEE T
HIFE R AL BRITE K2 (Kt
728) c MEBRAFEAR—BRSE
BEMK LT HERREEERBZA
AIHE - KB %22,000,000/87C @ 548
EREGEEERBRZ AFE -

RHMBLRR S — ALQF

(a) REBLATAZRE

Unlisted shares, at cost

FEEMABD - R

2014 2013
= T =F
HK$’000 HK$°000
FET BT
82,380 82,380

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —

COMPANY (continued)

(a)

Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the Company's subsidiaries as at

31 March 2014 are as follows:

Place of

(&)

20. RINBAR zEE — RNQFH

(a) RHMBLARZKREGE)

ARAZMBRARNR -E—NFE=
A=t—BZ#FBWT:

Percentage of
issued capital

incorporation and effectively
kind of Particulars of issued  held by the Principal activities and
Name of company legal entity and paid up capital Company place of operation
NG|
B¥REZ
R B AL B BERTR ERITRE
ARER REEERER BREBRAFE Al FEXBREXHE
Jiwa Development Co. Ltd. British Virgin Islands 50,000 ordinary 100%* Investment holding,
(“BVI"), limited shares of United Hong Kong
liability company States dollar
("US$") 1 each
EERIHS 50,000 X B AR EE REZK  BE
((EBRz#S]) - 1Fn(ET)Z
BRAR EER
Jiwa International Limited Hong Kong, limited  HK$1,000,000 100% Trading of
liability company pharmaceutical
products, Hong Kong
BEERERAR % BRARA 1,000,000 % 7T ER&m  BF
Tech-Medi Development Hong Kong, limited  HK$200,000 100% Trading of health care
Limited liability company products, Hong Kong
EREEREERLNA BE - BRAA 200,000 7T BEREER B
Jiwa Rintech Holdings Limited BVI, limited liability 10 ordinary shares 100% Investment holding,

company
EERTHS
BRAF

of US$1 each
10 R EE
1R LR

Hong Kong
REER - BE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —

20. RINBAR zEE — RNQFH

COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued) (a) RHBRATAZRE(E)
Percentage of
Place of issued capital
incorporation and effectively
kind of Particulars of issued  held by the Principal activities and
Name of company legal entity and paid up capital Company place of operation
LN
BNEEZ
LA S 3t B BRITR BRITRE
AR ER REEERER BRREFE Ak FEEXBREXGH
Sino-Tech International (Macao Macau, limited MOP100,000 100% Trading of
Commercial Offshore) liability company pharmaceutical
Limited products, Macau
HEER(RMREEERE)E BF BRAR 100,000 2F97T ERZm R
RAR]
Jiwa Pharm & Chemicals Hong Kong, limited  HK$1,000,000 100% Investment holding,
Limited liability company Hong Kong
BEBEIARAR BE  BRAA 1,000,000 /7T REER - BE
Rise Hill Development Limited BVI, limited liability 1,000 ordinary shares 60% Not yet commence
company of US$1 each business
EERTHS 1,000 k&R EE RARREE
AR 1R ERBR
Base Affirm International BVI, limited liability 1,000 ordinary shares 100% Research and
Limited ("Base Affirm") company of US$1 each development
REBRUES 1,000 &R EE UENGE
AR (EPA -3l
U-Home Group Development  British Virgin Islands 1 ordinary share of 100%* Investment holding,

Company Limited ("BVI"), limited US$1
liability company
RERIHES - 1IREE
BB AT 1R AR

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

Hong Kong
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR M R

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

20. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES —
COMPANY (continued)

(a) Investments in subsidiaries (Continued)

Place of
incorporation and

20.

RHB AR 2R — AT

(%)

(a) RHBRARZREE)
Percentage of

issued capital
effectively

kind of Particulars of issued  held by the Principal activities and
Name of company legal entity and paid up capital Company place of operation
LN
BNEEZ
LA S 3t B BRITR BRITRE
AR ER REEERER BRREFE Ak FEEXBREXGH
U-Home Enterprise Hong Kong, limited ~ HK$100 100% Investment holding,
Development Company liability company Hong Kong
Limited
B8 ARRA 100/7T REZK  &A
U-Home Property Management Hong Kong, limited  HK$100 100% Investment holding,
and Consultancy Co. Limited  liability company Hong Kong
B8 BRRA 100/87T REZRK &S
Nanjing Tuoyu Property PRC, limited Reminbi (“RMB") 100% Consultancy and agency
Management Co., Ltd liability company 2,000,000 business, PRC
("Nanjing Tuoyu")
ERAFERERBRAA mE - ARAA ARE(ARE]) R REHR R -
(TAxRAT]) 2,000,0007C hE
& Issued capital held directly by the Company * AR A EERE 2B BEITRA

(b) Amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries

The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand. The carrying amounts of amounts due

from/(to) subsidiaries approximate to their fair

values.

(b) FEWL(FEAT) BB 2 RIFIA
FEUR, (RE A5 ) B /B8 & ) 3R TH /5 £
ER - 2R RRENREE - B
(P MY R R 0R < ARE E S E
NHEESE

T—=FE—NFFHK ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES — GROUP

1. RS AR ER — REE

2014 2013

Pl T —
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
At 1 April WO A—H 443,816 408,464
Share of results of associates il N e 27,135 35,352
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(a))  H&—RME QR (it 38(a)) (470,951) —
At 31 March R=A=+—H - 443,816

The associates had a financial year ending 31
December, which was not coterminous with that of
the Group. The consolidated financial statements
have been adjusted for material transactions between
associates and group companies between 1 January
and 31 March 2013.

Eﬁi AK /‘\

A BFERBEE+T A
=t+—BLEFE HEXEEIL T —
e mMEMBRRERBERARE
BArRAIR=—E—=%—HA—H=Z=AH
=T —HERZEARSIELAE

Amounts due from associates as at 31 March 2013 RZZE—=F=A=+—H BKEHZ
were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on QEZMIEEETRW C B RIEENKE
demand. The carrying amounts of these balances B m SR o RmERTL A FEM
approximated their fair value. Ao
22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP 22. BLEE — A&
Technical know-how
95 H B
2014 2013
—E-F —EF—=
HK$000 HK$'000
T8
Opening net carrying amount FYREFE - 29,994
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(b))  H&E—ME QR (H1:F38(b)) — (29,994)

FRIREFE

Closing net carrying amount

The Group's technical know-how represented
technology and formula acquired for the development
and production of pharmaceutical products.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

REE 2 BAMAMB B R M EEZER
MU iE 2z 5l M BLJT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR M R

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

(Continued)

On 23 July 2012, Base Affirm, a wholly owned
subsidiary, entered into a technology transfer
agreement with YJB, a subsidiary of the Group
which was disposed of during the year ended 31
March 2013, (the “Technology Transfer Agreement”),
pursuant to which an aggregate consideration of
RMB111 million (HK$135.4 million equivalent) was
payable by YJB upon satisfaction of the pre-conditions
set for each of the following three phases:

— at phase 1, the Group would transfer the
technical documents of the technical know-
how (the “Key Product Technology”) to YJB
within six months upon signing the Technology
Transfer Agreement;

— at phase 2, the Group had to assist YJB to
construct a production plant with its ancillary
facilities for the production of bulk materials
relating to the Key Product Technology to
be qualified by the Group and YJB within a
prescribed construction budget, and to obtain
the production licence from the State Food and
Drug Administration of the PRC by 31 December
2013; and

— at phase 3, the Group had to assist YJB to
commence (i) full scale of production of bulk
materials relating to the Key Product Technology
with a prescribed production capacity and
ensuring the unit production cost of such
bulk materials relating thereto not exceeding
the prescribed unit cost, and (i) obtaining the
registration certificates of such products as well
as the certification of “Good Manufacturing
Practice” (“GMP") by the State Food and Drug
Administration of the PRC by no later than 31
March 2015.

22.

BIELEE — A&EB#)

W_ZE——F+A-+=0 2EWE
A &) Base Affirm £ & 2 £ ¥ Bl (K
EEMZHBAR  BEREBE_T—=F
A=+ RALEFEALE )T LM
EEha(( RiTERBE]) - Bt - &
EAYRBREXR AT =ZAREE B
FRET AL 2 SR AG 18 B B R B AR
111,000,000 7t (48 % 72 135,400,000 /%
7T)

— RE-EER ARESNBIRM
¥ 3E W 1R /N B A A8 B i A0 3
(TEZERIM D 2=l X e
RPEEEYR

— REZRER AEEER-_FT—=
FHZA=+—HATAENBRE
BB ELEMRREREERE 1F
HEAREEREELE YRR H
EREENETZ2ERIZERR
Mz REME - WEkEFEERR
mEMEEERERRFEEA
A

— RE=ZEE AEEARTER=
E-RF=-A=1T—HAImEEE
EYRENEBEIZEERRMZ
REMHABRITAEELZER
E - BREGHMZZERNENFZ
EERATNEBHERTAELKA
LilBRRmEREE EER
BERBZEFEMERLE R R
EXRREI(RIFIEERE )R

E23

g °
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22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

(Continued)

According to the Technology Transfer Agreement,
RMB40.0 million, RMB20.0 million and RMB51.0
million (equivalent to HK$48.8 million, HK$24.4 million
and HK$62.2 million respectively) would be settled
upon satisfaction of the pre-conditions set for phase
1, phase 2 and phase 3 respectively as mentioned
above.

The above payment schedule may be extended
by mutual agreement between the contracting
parties to the Technology Transfer Agreement;
while the maximum consideration will be subject
to adjustment(s) if certain of the above terms and
conditions cannot be fulfilled in full. As ancillary to
the Technology Transfer Agreement, the Company
(being the guarantor) and YJB further entered into a
guarantee agreement on 23 July 2012, pursuant to
which YJB has been guaranteed by the Company for
the implementation of all the pre-conditions as set
out therein. In case of YJB's failure of obtaining the
requisite registration certificates of such products as
well as the certification of GMP by the State Food
and Drug Administration of the PRC by 31 December
2016, YJB may request Base Affirm and/or the
Company to repurchase the Key Product Technology
that had already been transferred to YJB; while Base
Affirm and/or the Company has to repay the full
consideration that had already been paid to YJB up to
that time.

On 28 September 2012, the Key Product
Technology was transferred to YJB. The fair value
of the Key Product Technology of RMB42,519,000
(HK$51,853,000 equivalent) and its carrying amount of
HK$29,994,000 which resulted to a gain on disposal
of HK$21,859,000, was included in “Gain on disposal
of a subsidiary” (note 38(b)).

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

2. BILEE — XxEH#)

RIEF M E = - A K% 40,000,000
7T+ A E #20,000,0007T & A R #
51,000,000 7t (%5 5l 48 £ 7 48,800,000
7 JT * 24,400,000 7T K& 62,200,000
BIL) DRI RER Eill s —PEER - B
“RERBRE=RERMEI 2RISR
Sft e

Pl BNREARATCENEERESLD
FEHREBRIER Ll (G R IEHF
Reg2HENK - FRRERNTTFHE -
EARMEERE B R®E  AQF
(BMERAN)EBEEEYRER =T —=
FLAZ+=-AE— P L ERHE
Bt ARRERABEEYRIEERE
TERAF ARG - WEEE
MBI ARER=ZT—"E+_A=+—
HAIRSHFEERRMEREEEER
BEHz RIFEEREGRE - IEEL
MR AT Bk Base Affirm &,/ AR
AENEERTREEEAYREZEIEE
CREEAT - T Base Affirm &34 A A
BEESHEZROXIN FRELEDRIE
ZEEARE -

R-_E——FAhA-_+N B TBE
MBEMEER FREEEAYRFE - T2
EmEiz AFEAREKAL2519,000
TT(FHE 751,853,000/ ) M H R ®E
629,994,000 T (B B HH & F18 W=
21,859,000 /8 70) Jhat Al & —FEH B
ARz Was ] (FEE38(b)) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

22.

23.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS — GROUP

(Continued)

In the opinion of the directors of the Company
as at 31 March 2013, failure of fulfilling the pre-
conditions under the Technology Transfer Agreement
so as leading to Base Affirm and/or the Company’s
obligations for making repayment to YJB is remote.

On 2 July 2013, the Company has entered into a
novation agreement with Goldvault in which the
Company was released as the guarantor of the
Technology Transfer Agreement, the obligation to
act as an guarantor was taken up by Goldvault, the
acquirer of JPL accordingly.

As at 31 March 2014, the construction of the
production plant is still in progress and the expected
date to obtain the production licence from the State
Food and Drug Administration of the PRC was
extended to 31 March 2015.

INVENTORIES — GROUP

As at 31 March 2014, all inventories are finished
goods (31 March 2013: Nil).

22.

23.

BIELEE — A&EB#)

AR EERE RNR-_ZE—=F=AH
=t+—B - REEEKREMEEREET
2 ARG T E B Base Affirm &,/
AN FEAMBEEYRFRER 2K S
K o

R—ZZFE—=F+tA=-H A qH
Goldvaultz] 7 B E B &% - Bt -
RATBBBRIEARMERGRE ER
A Al ERERAZEEEHEE
% 7 WEE 7 Goldvault F&JE o

RZE-—NE=A=+—8 £ EKF
HAEEZEIET  METEBERR M
mEBERARNSLEEAELZBH
BHEEHE_T-—AF=A=1+—
H e

BE — AKE

RZE-—OF=A=+—RH" A"
EUREKAM(ZE—=ZF=ZA=+—
B &)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — GROUP

The directors of the Company consider that the
fair values of accounts receivable are not materially
different from their carrying amounts because
these amounts have short maturity periods at their
inception.

The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 days
to 180 days (2013: 30 days to 180 days) to its trade
customers. Based on invoice date, ageing analysis of
the Group’s accounts receivable is as follows:

24. BRERR — ~KE

B FE AR SRR AT LB 2 B EAEAR A2
BARBEFTR/RETRAZAFER
HEAEYEERAER -

AEB-—RBRAEBSEFRHEI0BE
180H(ZZE—=4 :30H=180R)
EEH - AEBZERWEFIREEER
HiZ R DATIO T -

2014 2013
= T =

HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Within 3 months =@EAR 1,207 8,282
Over 3 months but less than =@EA EBLRKNEAR

6 months 8,387 —

9,594 8,282

At each reporting date, the Group first assesses
whether objective evidence of impairment exists
individually for its accounts receivable that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively
for accounts receivable that are not individually
significant. The Group also assesses collectively
for accounts receivable with similar credit risk
characteristics for impairment. The impaired
receivables, if any, are determined based on the
credit history of its customers, such as financial
difficulties or default in payments, and current
market conditions. Consequently, specific impairment
provision is recognised if the amount is determined to
be irrecoverable. Based on impairment assessment,
no impairment loss was recognised for the Group's
accounts receivable for the year ended 31 March
2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

24. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE — GROUP

25.

(Continued)

The Group did not hold any collateral as security
or other credit enhancements over the accounts
receivable, whether determined on an individual or
collective basis.

As at 31 March 2014, accounts receivable of
HK$9,594,000 (2013: HK$8,282,000) were neither
past due nor impaired. These related to a number of
customers from whom there was no recent history of
default.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES — GROUP

24. EWWERFR (%)

AEEY ERIZER K BREEETE 2
EURR AT EAmIEMEER
TH& T ©

R-_ZE—NWE=A=+—H"  EK
BR 519,594,000/ t(= & — = F:
8,282,000 T ) I £ 81 A 7R A RUE © 7%
EREHRLZAPTERR LT
)5 °

25. &% - AARIERH A EWFR
B — AKH

Group Company

AEE PN

2014
—T-mF
HK$000
FTAET

2013 2014 2013
ZEF il — T —F
HK$'000 IGIEIM HK$ 000
FET FET TET

Non-current assets: ERBEE :

— Deposits (note) — e (HaE) 8,883 — 8,883 —
Current assets: REBEE :

— Deposits — & 93 670 - —
— Other receivables — Hib K GIE 3,268 7,840 — —
— Prepayments — TEIRIR 2 2,124 — —
3,363 10,634 — —
12,246 10,634 8,883 —

Note: A tender deposit of RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,883,000) was paid to U-Home
Group Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of an
executive director and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, by the Company on behalf of a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group, Nanjing Tuoyu, for
bidding a contract for the provision of consultancy
and agency business to U-Home Group Limited and
its associates. Nanjiang Tuoyu succeed in bidding
the tender on 24 March 2014. On 19 May 2014,
Nanjiang Tuoyu entered into a framework agreement
with U-Home Group Limited which is valid for a term
of three years commencing from the date of the
Company having obtained independent shareholders’
approval on the framework agreement and expiring on
31 March 2017. The tender deposit will be refunded
within 7 business days after the expiry or termination
of the framework agreement.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other
receivables are considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

Kt AR RRERAEBZ2ENB A RE
RHEFRAARQRNITEERITRBE
2EFEBEZHBRAFTEEEARA
A& 2% E AR ¥ 7,000,000 T
(HEZ771478,883,000/87T) * AEIRIA
FEEBEEBRRA A REBE QA RMHE
EREREREZEH - R=2F—NW
FZRA=-1+MB @RAFANE
Zo RZT—MEFATNAA BR
MFEFEEEGRABFIIERR
F BARAMBEYRRABIESE
Rz EERRAE_E—+tF=
B=+—BItAH=ZFEF% - &IZ&K
SHPAERBZEE MR R T EE
AARE -

rehEMBKRFBZ REERER/R
FEZAENH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

26. TREASURY PRODUCTS AT FAIR VALUE 26. #AFEFTAEBRZHKEER

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2014 2013
Sl T =
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Unlisted debt securities with principal FF FH{ESES - NE| R

protected at maturity by bankers HRTTIRA

— Designated at fair value through — BT AEATEF ABE

profit or loss

— 100,888

All treasury products were disposed of during the
year ended 31 March 2014.

The Group’s treasury products as at 31 March 2013
included the followings:

— debt securities (including embedded derivatives)
of HK$41,195,000 with redemption amount that
was indexed to the value of equity instruments
and principal protected at maturity by Standard
Chartered Bank London; and

— debt securities (including embedded derivatives)
of HK$59,693,000 with redemption amount that
was indexed to exchange rates of a basket of
currencies and principal protected at maturity by
Standard Chartered Bank London.

The fair value of the Group’s unlisted securities had
been measured as described in note 39(i). During the
year, fair value loss of HK$2,697,000 (2013: gain of
HK$2,893,000) (note 9) was recognised.

As at 31 March 2014, no treasury products (2013:

HK$100,888,000) have been pledged to the banks as
securities of certain bank borrowings (note 28).

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

BHE_T-NF=A=1+—"HILFE
MAEMBEREELE -
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BEMBREATEER :

—  41,195,000/8 T 2 E % & H (8

HAHRAGTETIR) BOLH
Hgm TR 2 EERS - REH
BF M Standard Chartered Bank
LondonfR7S 5 K&

— 59,693,000/ T 2 BEHE HF(B
BARATETR)  BEOezEHA
—ETEB 2 EXRE - NEH
BF @ Standard Chartered Bank
London fRA °

RNEBZIELTHEFZ AFETIRNZE
()Tt A X GTE - FR - AEEDE
RAFEWE2,697,0008T(—F—=
 : W2£ 2,893,000 70) (FizE9) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH 27. CEARTHERRRERRS

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS — GROUP

ZEY — AKW

2014 2013

=L T =F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FEIT

Cash and bank balances R RIRITHET 45,011 94,058
Time deposits JEBRTF 3K 106,214 76,652
Less: Pledged bank deposits (note 28) i - BERIRRITFER (M £ 28) (106,214) (76,652)
Cash and cash equivalents He MReEEY 45,011 94,058

Time deposits earned 1% to 1.7% (2013: 2.65%)
interest per annum. These deposits had been pledged
to secure the Group’s bank borrowings (note 28). The
directors of the Company considered that the fair
value of time deposits was not materially different
from its carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2014, included in cash and bank
balances of the Group are bank balances of
HK$2,544,000 denominated in RMB placed with the
banks in the PRC. As at 31 March 2013, no bank
balance denominated in RMB was placed with the
banks in the PRC. Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement
and Sales and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through the banks that are
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

ETHEREFIRERZAERB1%E
1.7%(ZZF— =% :1265%)° &
HETER  UERAEEZRITER
(Hi3£28) - ARAIEZRATHRERZ
AFEREEAETESAER

R_E—NWE=ZA=+—H A£EEZ
e MIBITHE TR B1E52,544,000/8 7T
ZRITHEFETDIAARESERFRIR
BT R=ZFE—=F=A=+—
H BMEUARBIEZRITEFTFNR

KA B Z 8R1T - RIBH B 2 HMNEE I R

DI AEEE - EERNEEERE - A&
B E R IR L L IMNE H]ETE 2 IR
TRARBABRSBINE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

28. BANK BORROWINGS — GROUP 28. RITER — AKE
2014 2013
el T —
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current liabilities REEE
Portion of term loans from banks due ZER—FREE ZRITEHER
for repayment within one year Z2E D 99,992 169,529
Portion of term loans from banks due ®&EBNRIEE KR Z BN —F
for repayment after one year which  f&EE 2RI EHER 2D
contain a repayment on demand
clause — 9,016
99,992 178,545
All bank borrowings are interest bearing and are Fﬁﬁ%&ﬁ% RThET B IR SR AR5
carried at amortised cost. All term loans which contain c BERENEREKGAZABESRE
a repayment on demand clause were classified as ?E"* AnEBaE - AARESEE
current liability. The directors of the Company expect CEIEREREEGERZCHERE
that the term loans with repayment on demand clause $Ey““ﬁ Ktz P sl 2 FaRT i@ Z B HiE
would be repaid in accordance with the scheduled iR o
repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
2014 2013
B T =5
HK$’000 HK$°'000
FETT FET
Bank loans: RITER
Secured by pledge of assets VAE =S H{EE A 99,992 178,545
As at 31 March 2014, bank borrowings of RZZE—MNF=A=+—H " RITEXK
HK$99,992,000 were secured by the Group’s bank 99,992,000/%7ELA$§'EIZ$E T_?K
deposits of HK$106,214,000 (note 27). 106,214,000 7T (M 5E 27) 1B IR -
As at 31 March 2013, bank borrowings of R-E—=F=A=+—H " FTEXR
HK$178,545,000 were secured by one of the Group's 178,545,000 8 T AR EEREFE A
investment properties with net carrying amount 22,000, OOO?%ﬁZEqJ*IE?Q;é{%%
of HK$22,000,000 (note 19), bank deposits of (B 5E19) ~ R 17 17 5/ 76,652,000% 7T
HK$76,652,000 (note 27) and treasury products with (MTEE27)&EEE@TEZ%100,888,000?&
net carrying amount of HK$100,888,000 (note 26). JC.2 B R EE o (B 5E 26 ) fEHE R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 #& —Z&—

28. BANK BORROWINGS — GROUP
(Continued)

None of the Group’s borrowings as at 31 March 2014
are guaranteed by the Company. All of the Group’s
borrowings as at 31 March 2013 are guaranteed by
the Company.

Based on the repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements and ignoring the effect of any repayment
on demand clauses, at 31 March 2014, the Group's
bank borrowings are scheduled to be repaid as follows:

ME=A=+—HIFE)

28. $RITEFR — XxEH#)

AEER-_FT-—MOE=A=+— EIZ%
RIGAWFEA AR RER - NEEN
—ZF=ZA=T—HZFREER EE$
BIFELR

REBEERGZMH EERD - WA
REMZRBRERBAN2EE  ~EE
RZZE—NE=A=+—HAZRTEXK
BRI TSI RIBE

2014 2013

b T =F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Due within 1 year or on demand —FRNRE IR EK 99,992 169,529
After 1 year but within 2 years —FRERFRN — 583
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZREBRAFR — 1,836
Over 5 years RAFULE — 6,697
99,992 178,545

Effective interest rates of the Group’'s bank
borrowings at the reporting dates were as follows:

KRB RITERARE B 2 BB =
T -

Interest rates

GiES

2014
—g-mE

Bank borrowings in HK$ - Floating BB TEHEZIB1TER

rate, to be matured — X BNZT—
in 2015 (2013: between (ZB—=F: =
2012 and 2015) —h5)HH

Bank borrowings in US$ — Floating JAETEHEZ SRITER
rate, to be matured between — FHFE - K=
2012 and 2013 T FRH

hE
—FEE

—— &5

1% 10 2.25%
above one-month,
three-months and
six months HIBOR

—fAA - =EAkNE
AEBRITRZERSM
1EE225E

1.5% above
one-month
HIBOR

—EAEBRT
FI¥FEM1.5E

— 0.5% above three-
month LIBOR

= A AwBERITRIZE
#EM0.5E

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts
of the Group’s bank borrowings approximate their fair
values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

29. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE — 29. ERERFRERE — A58
GROUP
Ageing analysis of accounts and bills payable is as FENBRR R ER ZBRRDITOT ¢
follows:
2014 2013
Pl T — 4
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEIT FET
Accounts payable FEATBRFK
Within 3 months =EARN 3,548 5,119
Over 3 months but less than =@EAAEBLRER
6 months 4,958 —
8,506 5,119
Bills payable AN — 2,608
8,506 7,727
Accounts and bills payable are non-interest bearing FERBERREEEAT S - BFAaHER

and are all expected to be settled within one year.

The fair values of the Group’s accounts and bills
payable at 31 March 2014 and 2013 approximated
to their corresponding carrying amounts due to their
short-term maturities.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

30. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

30. fTEMKERE

2014 2013
CE-NF s
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Fair value of put option (note (a)) RO HANE 2 A E (WAL (a) — 64,060
Fair value of interest rate swap and  FIREHRINERIIE 42
foreign currency forward contracts NEE(HEE (b))
(note (b)) — 463
— 64,523
Notes: W
(a) Pursuant to the terms of the capital injection (the (a) BEIREE—_ZE——F=/=+—

(b)

“Capital Injection”) in relation to the disposal of
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 March 2011, the
Group and the subscribers entered into agreements,
pursuant to which put options were granted to the
subscribers. The Group had obligations to purchase the
equity interests from the subscribers upon exercise of
the options by the subscribers if KJP does not obtain
a listing on a stock exchange within 48 months from
the completion date of Capital Injection, each of the
subscribers may, within 6 months from the expiry of
such 48 months, request the Group to purchase the
subscribers’ interest in KJP, plus a compound interest
of 10% per annum thereon.The put option was valued
by an independent valuer, Roma, using Black-Scholes
Option Pricing Model. As at 31 March 2013, the fair
value of the put option is HK$64,060,000 and the
Group recognised the change in fair value amounted
to HK$10,356,000 in profit or loss under “Other gains
and losses” (note 9) for the year ended 31 March
2013.

On 2 July 2013, the Company has entered into a
novation agreement with Goldvault, in which the
Group was released from its obligation over the put
option.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, all interest rate
swap and foreign currency forward contracts were
matured and settled, fair value gain of HK$644,000
(2013: loss of HK$6,218,000) (note 9) was recognised
in profit or loss under “Other gains and losses”.

HIEFEHENRBARMmEEDE
BB AKERREAGL
% - BRI AR AR GRS HE -
M ERBAY EXIEE TAE AR
48R NBMERERRXFHZ LWt
i AREBAEETERBAITELE
HrRREABEERZ SRBEATE
ERA48EAEMmREEARERANE
EREERBAREHBERZ#ES 5
MEE S FMEI0% > Boh H# i
BUGEMESRBMER — BB
HHEEEELFE N T —=F
ZA=1+—8 REHRZATFESR
64,060,000 7T * MEBE_—T—=%F
ZRA=t—HILFE AEER[Ef
Woak & B9 IR T 2 B R A FEE
%) 10,356,000 8T (3£ 9) ©

R-_E—=%+AF_-H AR aH
Goldvault B 5] L BB E & B - B
I AEECERREERHEEY
HE o

HE_ZT-—HWNF=RA=+—HIF
B AAENREHRINEERSGHNE
B RIEE - R B4 644,000
T(ZE—=% : [5186,218,000/&7T)
(HEE9) BN Efblieas MER IR T 2
BEPHER o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 R M =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

ME=A=+—HILFE)

31. DEFERRED TAX ERIE
Group rEH
The deferred tax recognised in the consolidated RERE M IEAR R RER 2 BLERIITE R F
statement of financial position and the movements &EJZZDT
during the year are as follows:
Investment  Withholding
property tax Total
REY= FERH e
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FAET FAET BT
At 1 April 2012 R-—ZT——FmA—H 217 975 1,192
Charged to profit or loss  RiEzH%
(note 12) (KizE12) — 410 410
At 31 March 2013 and MRZTE—=4
1 April 2013 ZA=+—HK
—ZT-=FMA—H 217 1,385 1,602
Disposal of a subsidiary  HE&—fHWEAQF]
(note 38(a)) (K15t 38(a)) — (1,385) (1,385)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE—WfF
=A=+-—H 217 — 217

The Group has estimated tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$10,297,000 (2013: HK$1,630,000) that
are available indefinitely for offsetting against future

taxable profits of the companies in which losses
arose. Deferred tax assets of HK$1,699,000 (2013:
HK$269,000) have not been recognised in respect

of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries

that have been loss-making for some time and it is

not considered probable that taxable profits will be

available against which the tax losses can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

31. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 31. EERIE®)
Group (Continued) REBE(E)

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law,
effective from 1 January 2008, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to the Group
from the foreign investment enterprises established
in the PRC. A lower withholding tax rate may be
applied if there is a tax treaty between the PRC and
the jurisdiction of the foreign investor. The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes at 5% on
dividend distributed by its subsidiaries and associates
established in the PRC in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008. As at 31 March 2013,
deferred tax liabilities of approximately HK$1,385,000
had been recognised in respect of the distributable
earnings of a PRC associate attributable to the Group
amounted to approximately HK$27,707,000.

Upon the disposal of JPL as detailed in note 1, the
deferred tax arising from the PRC associates was
reversed accordingly.

Company

At 31 March 2014, no deferred tax has been provided
in the financial statements of the Company as
the Company did not have any material temporary
differences (2013: Nil).

R T NF-A-—BHREERZF
BERMETE  RPBEKRIL MR
BRXBARRAKETIR KBS

10% TR o i o B B2 51 B % & & P

BRVEERET B RIEKL - R A REFE A
REZENREE Bt - X"EEEE
ERER P B 2 KB A R R &R
AIEBEZEZENF—H—RARBELZEF
FinikzREBNEINFEL - RZE
—=FZA=+—H EEHBARBY
1,385,000 7T E Bt AN 5 B B (h — B R

B N A 2 A IR EA|# 27,707,000

BTL T IARER -

BANP FE PrAFAL > HETRERERE
B EBEARELZCRERAESREAM
BEm o

RRF

R-E-—WmEF=A=+—H ARK
RAVEEFAERERER(ZFT—=
FE) AREEERBARARRZ
MR AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

32. SHARE CAPITAL

32. BAK

2014 2013
“E2-mE —E-=F
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
ROEA £8 RINEE g
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares BREECOIBTLZ
of HK$0.01 each Lmik 10,000,000,000 100,000  10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER:
Ordinary shares BREECOIELZ
of HK$0.01 each LAk
At 1 April RMA—H 1,625,000,000 16,250 1,610,000,000 16,100
Employee share BT RS B
option exercised 15,000,000 150 15,000,000 150
At 31 March R=RA=+—8H 1,640,000,000 16,400 1,625,000,000 16,250
Note: Hiaz -

On 25 April 2013, a consultant and certain employees of the
Group exercised their rights to convert a total of 15,000,000
share options into 15,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company at exercise price of HK$0.34. Details
regarding the exercise of share options are summarised in
note 34.

On 29 May 2012, a director of the Company exercised his
rights to convert a total of 15,000,000 share options into
15,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company
at exercise price of HK$0.18. Details regarding the exercise
of share options are summarised in note 34.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

RZEBE—=FWMA_-_+HA A&E=E—%
BEREERETEETEEERN0MBE T
171F {8 & # & #£15,000,00017 B A& & &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

33. RESERVES

Group

Please refer to the consolidated statement of changes

in equity on pages 51 to 52 for reserves of the Group.

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to the corporate reorganisation
of the Group during 2002 to 2003 (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the
holding company of the Group on 24 September
2003. The excess of the consolidated net
assets represented by the shares acquired
over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange under the
Reorganisation was transferred to contributed
surplus. The balance is available for distribution
to shareholders subject to the provision under
section 54 of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Asset revaluation reserve

The balance as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are
related to the revaluation of owner-occupied
property upon reclassification to investment
property during the year ended 31 March 2011.

Share premium

This represents the premium arising from the
issue of shares, net of placing expenses.

ME=A=+—HILLFE)

33. &
AEM

BREAKEZ

E2HEFNELE

B2 A ZirAEmBEK -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

BABE

BERZZZT_FRTT=F2
REBAESH(EA] > AR
AR=ZTE=FNA= +EEW%
REBZERAR - FIRERGF
HREGEEFEBLEAA Tm%
EHBITUERBR RN ZEBEZ
ZR BREHARS - SepalE
EREDIR - EAZBEREQARE
E DA GHTEPMR o

BEEGHE

RBE_T——F=A=+—HIt
FEREMHDBRRREDER - —

E—MFEN T =F=A=+—
BzagpuaamEToAmESs
8 o

B EE

BTy EITROAESE & E (K
FEMX) °

“T-=FF-NFFH ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

137



138
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B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

33. RESERVES (continued)

33. #E#)

Company b NG|
Retained
Share profits/
Share  Contributed option  (Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses) Total
REMH,/
BB EE MABE BRERE (RSER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT AT TAT AL AT
At 1 April 2012 W-E-—FmA-A 56,097 82,180 5,836 36,154 180,267
Dividends paid in respect ~ Bff FEERE
of the previous year (Bt 14(b)
(note 14(b)) = = = (34,125) (34,125)
Cancellation of share TERRE
option — = (4,551) 4,551 —
Grant of share option LB RE — — 2,027 — 2,027
Issue of shares upon TEBRERRIRG
exercise of share option 2,550 — — — 2,550
Exercise of share option ~ f7{EBERIE 1,285 — (1,285) — —
Profit for the year (note 13) EREFI(A/£13) — — — 11,074 11,074
At 31 March 2013 and R-E-=F=ZA=+-BkK
1 April 2013 —Z-=FMA-H 59,932 82,180 2,027 17,654 161,793
Special interim dividends BRI BIRE (M3 14(a)
paid (note 14(a)) = = — (615,000) (615,000)
Issue of shares upon TERRERETRG
exercise of share option 4,950 — — — 4,950
Exercise of share option ~ f7{E BB RkIE 2,027 - (2,027) — —
Profit for the year (note 13) FREFI(A/i£13) — - - 479,956 479,956
At 31 March 2014 R-B-WE=A=+-H 66,909 82,180 - (117,390) 31,699

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 34. LR ZfFzEREME

COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 24 September
2003 whereby the directors of the Company are
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees
of the Group, including directors of any company
in the Group, and consultants and advisers to the
Group (subject to the eligibility requirements) to
take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company representing up to a maximum of 10% of
the shares in issue at the date of approval of the
Scheme. For the options granted to vest, persons
eligible to participate in this Scheme have to remain
employed during the vesting period. The exercise
price of options is the highest of the nominal value
of the shares, the closing price of the shares on the
Stock Exchange on the date of the grant and average
closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange
for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of grant. The options vested are exercisable
within a period of five years from date of grant. Each
option gives the holder the right to subscribe for one
share. The grantee shall pay HK$1 to the Company by
way of consideration for the grant.

During the current year, all outstanding share options
granted under the Scheme were exercised. As at
31 March 2014, there was no securities available
for issue under the Scheme (2013: 160,500,000),
which represents 10% of the issued share capital
of the Company as at 26 August 2008, the date of
approval of the refreshment of the maximum number
of the shares which may be issued upon the exercise
of all the share options to be granted under the
Scheme and such other schemes of the Company,
which initially shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the shares in issue at the date of the approval
of the Scheme by the shareholders and thereafter,
if refreshed shall not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue as at the date of approval of refreshed limit by
shareholders of the Company.

ARARZZEZE=FNLH =T HBE®
—IEERES B ED - Bt - A2
REFERENBEREEAEEREE (R
RAEBETERNARIZES) RAE
EEERZERRBRZEMABRE X
RETSEERER S BHE %7
BR1D10% 2 AN RA ARG - & BB HEY
EIZATERGEBHANAXE &
BeBRERreHE BREZTEE
RRMHEE - ROKE L B EREE A
Z T B KD R BEEE L B H AT A (E
EXEHRBRA 2 FHRMER &R
HoODHEBBRETHIT LA AR
RERNTE - BHERER THE AR
FIRE— D - ARABAARAX
18T (EABEREREZRE -

RAFE  RIFFFEER DR RITE

ZIEBRECETE R-_F—0OF

=A=+—H WERBET4HR
TZEH(ZE— =4 160,500,000

) HERE_ZZNFNAZ=ZF+
B EEFRRRMHDEE BE) A AT
BEEITIRAZ10% - BITEREEI R
AR EMEEIERE 2 A BRERR]
BB zmmROHEE - IFE&H
TERBBAR R A ARSI B BB FITARG
210% @ MEBMWEER - AITEBA
RAFRRIEFE IR A B BTR
BZ10% °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZE - —FE=A=+—HIFE)

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE 34. Utz EERHE#)
COMPENSATION (continued)
Details of the share options granted by the Company NR-ZE-NMER-_F—=F=A=+—
pursuant to the Scheme and the options outstanding B RRRIRER &R 2 BB IRAE KK
as at 31 March 2014 and 2013 are as follows: TEERECFBET ¢
Year ended 31 March 2014 BE-Z-NE=A=+—HILEE

Weighted
Exercised average
Date  Exercisable Balance at during Balance at exercise Exercise
of grant period 01/04/2013 the year 31/03/2014 price date
R=2-Z% R=2-Qf

mA-H ZA=t-H ik 337
RERE TEHE 268 EREfE B8 b4 A%
Number Number Number
of options of options of options HK$

EBRERE  BRERE  BRERS &7

Employee/Consultant €S/ B

In aggregate (notefa)) (Wit (a)) 12112012 1211112012
to 11/11/2017 15,000,000 (15,000,000) - 0.34 25/4/2013
3 ZE-Cf “5-=f
+-B+=8 t+-B+zA% MA-tZA
ZE-tE
+-A+-8
At 31 March 2014 R-E-RE=F
=+-H 15,000,000 (15,000,000) -
No share options were granted or cancelled during F B ER L SRR S R AR -

the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE - —FE=A=+—HIFE)

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2013

34. Utz EERHE#)

BE-B—=F=A=1+—HILEE

Weighted
Granted Exercised  Cancelled average
Exercisable  Balance at during during during ~ Balance at exercise Exercise
Date of grant period  01/04/2012 the year the year the year  31/03/2013 price date
i o5k
mA-A =R=t-A MET
izt I BB EMERE  FREOR  EAEHE &R ik fkES
Number Number Number Number Number
ofoptions  of options ~of options ~ of options ~~of options HKS
ERggs  EREZS  ERERS  BRERA  BRENT AT
Executive directors ~ #{78%
MrlaukinTng  HRPiE 14/04/2008 1410412008
t0 13/042013 15,000,000 — (15,000,000 = - 018 29/5/2012
RN CER)E 2
BATEE  BA+EA IAZThA
o St
mAT=A
19102010 19/10/2010
to 18102015 15,000,000 - — (15,000,000 = 058 N/A
53 3% ¥l
tAthE  TATAA
ET5-1E
+ATAR
Employee/Consultant 8/ B8
In aggregate notelb)  3r(iz) 1702011 17/0202011
t0 16/02/2016 3,000,000 = — (3,000,000 = 052 N/A
EF 5 i
“RttA ZAttA
EE0E
ZRtAR
In aggregate (notsfal)  &3t(WEE ) 1012 1210
to 11/11/2017 — 15,000,000 - — 15,000,000 034 N/A
i AR
AR t-AtoR
EIRtE
t-t-A
A3t March 2013 H=5-=F
ZR=t-A 33,000,000 15,000,000 (15,000,000)  (18,000,000) 15,000,000 0.34
Note: Mt
(a)  These options were granted to several employees and (@) ZEBBREA_F-——_F+—-A+=
a consultant on 12 November 2012. BETETRE R —REM -
(b) ZEBBREAR-_Z——F_-_A++H

(b)  These options were granted to an employee on 17
February 2011. That employee subsequently became a

consultant of the Group in June 2011.

RY—%E8 ZAEBHEN_-F
——ERNARBAEE 2B -
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34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE

COMPENSATION (Continued)

All share-based employee compensation will
be settled in equity. There was no share option
outstanding as at 31 March 2014. The share options
outstanding as at 31 March 2013 had weighted
average exercise prices of HK$0.34 and a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.62 years.

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year
was HK$0.63.

Of the total number of options outstanding at 31
March 2013, 15,000,000 had vested and were
exercisable at the end of the year ended 31 March
2013.

During the current year, no share option was granted
by the Company. During the year ended 31 March
2013, total consideration of HK$4 was received by
the Company from the grantees for taking up the
options and in total, share-based payment expense
of HK$2,027,000 (note 16) was recognised in profit
or loss with the corresponding amount recognised in
share option reserve in equity.

As at 31 March 2014, no share option was
outstanding. As at 31 March 2013, total number of
shares available for issue upon exercise of share
options granted under the Scheme was 15,000,000,
representing approximately 1.0% of the issued share
capital of the Company at that date.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

34. Utz EERHE#)

PRBE AR XA EGAEREE - 1
—F-OE=ZA=1t—H BERTE
BRE - RZT—=F=A=+—HX
TEBBREMEFSTEER034E
T BEMEFARBKRENFHR462
o

FRTFEETERBRREZTERHRZM
HEFHRRE A 0.63/8TT °

R_E—=ZF=ZfA=+—AKTEZHE
fEAEAE SR » 15,000,000 0 & EREE
T =F=-A=+—HILFEREBXR
A TATHE ©

RAFER  ARBRER L ERE -
BE_T-—=F=A=+—HILFE"
R B R R BORE B AR A A
B48TT - & $£2,027,0008 T2 &R H
KBS (RE 16) R HERR - AR JE
SRR 2 B R ER -

R_E—mME=ZA=+—H  BERTT
FERE - R —=F=A=+—
H  BREFEAIHETCROEHER
15,000,000 A& & 17 + #EE R Z B AR A
BEEITIRZARAI1.0% °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 35 SRR M R

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

34. SHARE-BASED EMPLOYEE
COMPENSATION (Continued)

The following significant assumptions were used to
derive the fair values of the share options, using the
Binomial Option Pricing Model:

34. Utz EERHE#)

BREc AFEDER R EEE
B - WA TIIERBRRESL

Share options granted on: 19 October 2010 17 February 2011 12 November 2012
—E-TF —E——F —E—_fF
R ERER +A+1A —A++A +—A+=AH
Share price HK$0.58 HK$0.51 HK$0.34
I (B 0.58 7T 0.51%87T 0.34 7T
Exercise price HK$0.58 HK$0.52 HK$0.34
T (E 0.58 7T 0.5287T 0.34%7T
Expected volatility 71% 71% 69%
T8 B R 8 71% 71% 69%
Expected option life (year) 5
T8 B AR e SE HA (4R )
Weighted average annual 1.23% 2.01% 0.58%
risk-free interest rate
INHE T 15 F 5 R B A 2 1.23% 2.01% 0.58%
Expected dividend yield 4.12% 4.12% 6.18%
TR AR B2 4.12% 4.12% 6.18%
Suboptimal exercise factor 2.20 2.20 2.20
REITEBRERE 2.20 2.20 2.20

The expected volatility was determined with reference
to the historical volatility of the Company's share
prices. It is assumed that the volatility is constant
throughout the option life. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility is
indicative of future share market price trends, which
may also not necessarily be the actual outcome. Risk-
free interest rate was determined with reference to
the yield of Exchange Fund Notes as at the grant
date.

BRI 2 E R R EIRE Z FE LR IR
MEE @ WRERNBREFH KRS
TR o TR R IR S BR LA TR SEOR IR 1E A R
KEOTEBZREEZRR T —F
EERER - ERRNXTI2ERE L
BEZSMNERESEFWREMETE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

35. COMMITMENTS 35. A&IE
(a) Operating lease commitments (a) REHERIE
At 31 March 2014, the total future minimum R-ZE—MFE=A=+—H ' K&
lease payments payable by the Group under BERBEAA R CEHETREZ
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows: N REHEFIELZENT ¢
Group rEEH
2014 2013
=l T =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within 1 year —FA 230 3,592
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERFA 219 1,452
449 5,044

The Group leases a number of properties under
operating leases. The lease runs for a period of
two years (2013: one to two years). None of the
lease includes contingent rentals.

Company

As at 31 March 2014, the Company does not
have any operating lease commitment (2013:
Nil).

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

AEEREEEZHERBETY
X -ZSHEZFHAME(ZF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

35. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

ME=A=+—HILLFE)

35. AE®)

Operating lease arrangements (b) REHELH
As at 31 March 2014, the Group had future R-ZE—MFE=A=+—H ' K&
aggregate minimum lease receipts under non- ERBEIA R 2EEHEREB R
cancellable operating leases as follows: L RIEEEFIEEELOT ¢
Group rEEH
2014 2013
ek T =
HK$'000 HK$'000
T8T
Within 1 year —FR — 1,342
After 1 year but within 5 years —FRERAFR — 615
— 1,957
During the year, the Group leased one of its FR - AEERELLEHELHR
investment properties to an associate under —ABEAREEEESR —HRE
operating lease arrangements which run for WE OSFREMF(ZT—=
an initial period of 2 years (2013: 2 years). F:WF)  HEXHERFEARE
The lease arrangements were expired and not o B AR o
renewed during the year.
Company P AN
As at 31 March 2014, the Company does not RZZE—MF=A=+—H ' AR
have any minimum lease receipts under non- A0 S A] B BR A S MH & 2 R
cancellable operating leases (2013: Nil). ERB(ZE—=F &) -
Capital commitments (c) EBEXREE

As at 31 March 2014,
Company do not have any significant capital
commitment (2013: Nil).

the Group and the

R-T-mE=A=+—0 &%
B RAR AL RETEAEAER
—T=F )
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

transactions with related parties:

Related party transactions:

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the financial
statements, the Group had the following significant

36. BEALXRS

BUBHRERASBREEN
BALTETATERRS :

(a) BEALXRS:

2014
—F-mEF

Sales of goods:
— Jida Pharm (HK)

Purchase of goods:
— KJP
— Jida Pharm (HK)

Guarantee fees received:
— Jida Pharm (HK)
— KJP

Rentals received:
— Jida Pharm (HK)

Rentals paid:
— Mr. Lau Yau Bor
— Jiwa Investment Limited

Consideration for disposal
of a subsidiary:
— Goldvault

Consideration for disposal
of an investment property:
— Sunny Enterprise Limited

HESmM -

A
— BABEER)

BEEY
— EBHER
— BREEFE)

EWEERER
— BABE(FER)
— BHEX

EWEES -
— BRBEE(FL)

ENAEE
— BIRREE
— BEREARAF

(ii)

(ii)

HE—FHMBARZARE

— Goldvault

HE—RREYMFRZAE

— KB EEER AT

(vi)

HK$°000
FTET

5,800

921
15,596

293
313

700

351

1,015

512,000

22,000

REEE

2013
===

HK$'000
FET

794

738
969

840

810
2,348

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Related party transactions: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) KJP was a former subsidiary of the Group. KJP
became associates of the Group since 30 March
2011 and were disposed on 23 August 2013.

(i) Jida Pharm (HK) was an associate of the Group
and was disposed on 23 August 2013.

(iii) A director of the Company, Mr. Lau Yau Bor,
who resigned on 23 September 2013, leased
certain properties to the Group.

(iv)  Jiwa Investment Limited, which is controlled by
Mr. Lau Yau Bor and Madam Chan Hing Ming,
directors of the Company, both resigned on 23
September 2013, leased certain staff quarters
and office premises to the Group.

(v)  Goldvault is a company wholly owned and
controlled by Lau’s Family.

(vi)  Sunny Enterprise Limited is a company wholly
owned by Goldvault, which is then controlled by
Lau's Family.

During the years ended 31 March 2013 and
2014, the Group had issued irrevocable corporate
guarantee in respect of a loan in a sum of
HK$237 million made by Nanyang Commercial
Bank, Ltd (“Nanyang Bank"”) to KJP Group,
associate companies of the Group. The Group is
entitled to receive handling fee of HK$1,896,000
per annum (being calculated as 0.8% of the
total amount of the guarantees). Such corporate
guarantee was released on 16 August 2013.

As at 31 March 2014, no corporate guarantee
is issue by the Group to banks with respect of
bank borrowings of the Group or KJP Group.
As at 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount
of corporate guarantee issued by the Group to
banks with respect of bank borrowings of its
associates was HK$217,000,000 (note 37). As at
31 March 2013, the outstanding balances of the
bank borrowings were HK$157,000,000.

36. BEANLRF (&)

(a) BABEALXRF : (#&)
Kzt

() EBEBRBRASAEBEZAMNER
Al BRABAR-_Z——F=A
StHEERAAEE 2B ER
B BER-E—Z=F/\A=+=
BHE -

(i) BAREHFD)ALEEZH
BAF BER_FE—=FN\A
“t+=HH%E -

(i) ARAREBEFIHREER-F
—ZFNAZ+Z=ABE) K
DYERTAEE -

(iv) AERIRREERREALL
(BR-_ZT—=FhA-+=H
BE)EHZEEREFRAA
RASEHEETEIES K

(v) Goldvault B3 KKXKEEEHEE
N ki AN

(vi) KEB{Z%EERAFAGoldvault
2EWAB ZA7F 1 Goldvault
2R R EEH| -

b) BE_ZE—=FK_ZFT—NF=A
=t+—HIEFE  AEERREFERE
EIRTHERAREERT DM
RNEB BE N R ERBAEER
{5 %1237,000,000 7 7T 2 & K 3
ERAHERARER - AEEFE
U ER &4 1,896,000 T2 FEE
(RERAZEZ0.8%1HE) o ZIE
RER-_ZE—=ZFNA+HE
|§//f\\ o

R-ZB-—NME=A=+—08 ' K&
EERAEERERAEAER
ZRITERARITEHTMAR
ER R-_ZTE—=F=A=+—
H AEEREBEQFZETE
RASRITEH 2 AR EREE A
217,000,000 JT(Ht 5£37) B
—E-=F=fA=+—1 78
2 R (EB L5 157,000,00075
=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

(d)

Balance with related parties

As at 31 March 2013, amount due from a
director amounted to HK$235,000, which
was included in “Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables” in the consolidated financial
position. The balance was unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand. The balance due
was repaid by the director during the year ended

31 March 2014.

ME=A=+—HILFE)

36. BEANLRF (&)

(c)

HEEAT &R

R—ZZE—=F=A=+—8"EK
—ZEBE 7B A235,00087T
B AZEFBHRARANIZS
TEf RIA R A FEURGRTE | o &8f
BEEI - BB NIRBENREER - H
E-FT—NMFE=ZA=+—HIHF
fE o EWAERERZEESEE -

37. GUARANTEE

Compensation of key management personnel (d) FEEBEAEZ#HME
Remuneration of directors and other members of FAN EEZENEMTEEERERKS
key management during the year are as follows: ZBemT
2014 2013
-l T —— 4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Fee, salaries, other allowances and #% - ¥4 - Hi)EA K&
benefits in kind BEMH= 1,812 3,542
Discretionary bonus BB TE4L 1,250 128
Rentals for directors EEx2HE 854 2,060
Share-based employee compensation LA S 1t 2 & B #i(E — 405
Contribution to defined TE SR RGT Bl 2 3K
contribution plans 16 44
3,932 6,179
37. R
As at 31 March 2014, no corporate guarantees is RZZE—ME=A=+—8  ~N&EH

issued by the Group to banks with respect to banking

facilities granted by banks to the Group or KJP Group.

As at 31 March 2013, the Group had issued corporate
guarantees to banks amounting to approximately
HK$217,000,000 with respect to banking facilities
granted by banks to KJP Group. As at 31 March 2013,
the outstanding balances of the bank borrowings
were HK$157,000,000.

FREBZR

BR2AR U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ERTETAREXERABAEEZ
RITRERRITHE LT RFELR -

—=F=ZA=+—H ' A&EBE

MIBTRTFERBEAEE ZERITRER
$R17ECH 49217,000,00078 7T 2 A AIHE

& e

e~ o]

HA

RZE—=F=A=+—8 - $£17
A7 AREELE157,000,00087C ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

(a)

38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY/ 38. HE—MHEBAT, BFEE
INTANGIBLE ASSETS
As detailed in note 1, on 23 August 2013, the (a) HOKIFE1FEFM - RZE—=F
Group disposed of its subsidiary, JPL which held NAZ+=8 ' A&EEHEEKES
49% direct equity interest in KJP Group. NRIBRELS - BEHZEENE
BB R E B RFE 49% A& o
The carrying amount of the net assets of JPL BEZXNEERH T —=FN
at the disposal date of 23 August 2013 were as A-Z+=HZzEEFEREEBEN
follows: T
Notes HK$’000
HtaE FET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEEFEY 3,135
Tax recoverable AT E R IR 863
Amounts due from associates JE Wi Bt 2 R B RNIR 1,971
Amount due from related companies  FEUtRIE A R 1E 12,775
Other payables H Ath fE T 5RIE (7)
Dividend payables FERIAR B (12,312)
Deferred tax liabilities REFIRAE 31 (1,385)
Fair value of put option Ron A 2 N TE (64,060)
Carrying value of interests in B E R R e 2 BREE
associates 21 470,951
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFE 411,931
Gain on disposal of JPL HERELE 2 W 100,069
Total HEt 512,000
Satisfied by: XA :
Cash consideration ReERE 40,090
Non-cash consideration JERENE
— Consideration settled by offsetting — A #5%FBIR B & 2 K18
with special dividends (i) 439,910
— Estimated amount for PRC capital — HE&ANIEER Gt4%E
gain tax (i1) 32,000
512,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEFHEEACRESRAFE
Cash consideration HeENRE 40,090
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of FIHHEIRE MRS EEY (3,135)
Net inflow of cash and cash ReRBEeFEWRAFHE
equivalents 36,955
Gain on disposal of JPL HERELE 2 W 100,069
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY/
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

Part of the consideration amounted to
HK$439,910,000 (note 14(a)) in connection with
the disposal of JPL was settled by the special
interim dividends payable to Lau’s Family, which
is the shareholder of Goldvault, the acquirer of
JPL.

The hold-back amount of HK$32,000,000 (note
12) represented an estimated tax payable
in connection with the disposal of JPL and
statutory filings provided for the PRC withholding
tax.

On 24 September 2012, the Group disposed
of its subsidiary, YJB. In addition, as detailed
in note 22, the Key Product Technology was
disposed to YJB on 28 September 2012.
The transactions were considered as linked
transactions as they were entered into in close
proximity in time to one another and these
transactions have the same business purpose
of producing the key product, the gains on
the disposal of YJB and the intangible assets
therefore were accounted for together.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

38. HE—RBMEBLAR, EBFEEE®)

(a)

(i) BHELEBEZEXZIDHARME
439,910,000 (Mt &% 14(a))
LAFE S T 2| XK ik (Goldvault 2
PR R FRE S 2 WA ) 2
7l HA A% BB o

(i)  EB &% 32,000,000 7T (BT &
I2)MEERRHEBEEXERD
BEMBR R EFREENZE
FHIRA °

RZE——FAA=-+WTABE A&
BHEENBAREmEEEMR
Boo LA a0 BT 5E22 AT 5E At
TEEGBMIIR - ——F A
“TFHNBHETEERELEYH
H-BRZERS 2] EHEE
i B AREEFEEMIMER
XBER UZERIWERAEEH
R A EZEEEEYE
REREREE 2 W=E IR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY/
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The carrying amount of the net assets of YJB
and the carrying amount of the intangible assets

38. HE—RBMEBLAR, EBFEEE®)

(o) (#)

REERH  EEEELAYRRZ
BEFEZERAERETNEEZR

at the disposal dates were as follows: HEWT :
Notes HK$'000
Kz FET
Property, plant and equipment Y% - WE KA 18 1,919
Land use rights T 5 A 16,060
Construction in progress EETRE 2,152
Other receivables e Wk B 2,990
Cash and cash equivalents RERRESEFEY 1,233
Amount due to related companies FESRAE R R A (1,852)
Net assets disposed of Frit & &EFE 22,502
Release of translation reserve upon S R R IR E s
disposal (1,002)
Gain on disposal of YJB HEZEMEEEEYR 2 s 1,670
Intangible assets disposed of b EBELEE 22 29,994
Gain on disposal of intangible assets HEEFEE 2 (iii) 21,859
Total MG 75,023
Satisfied by: AR
Cash consideration ReRE 48,108
Deferred consideration EER(E (iv) 26,915
75,023
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HEEBEEAZESRAFRE
Cash consideration RERE 48,108
Cash and cash equivalents FEER e KIRSEEY
disposed of (1,233)
Net inflow of cash and RERBEEFEBYRNFE
cash equivalents 46,875
Aggregate amount of the gains PEBEAMBRE REFLEE
on disposal of YJB and intangible Z W 4aRE
assets 9 23,529
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

38. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY/
INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

Notes:

(iii) At the date of disposal of the intangible
assets, the fair value and the carrying amount
of the intangible assets was amounted to
HK$51,853,000 and HK$29,994,000 (note 21)
respectively which resulted in a gain on disposal
of HK$21,859,000.

(iv)  The deferred consideration will be settled in
cash, of which, HK$23,843,000 was received by
the Group on 6 June 2013.

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amounts and
fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities as
defined in notes 3.8, 3.10 and 3.12.

39. &R
1@&2

38. HE—HMBAR, BFEEE#)

Hret

(il REEEFEEER BEE
EZATFEREEED A
51,853,000 JT £ 29,994,000
B (fsE21) EBEHHES
1A U 2% 21,859,000 7T ©

(iv) BRERBMARSIEE KEHE
ERZZT—=F/ANAKIE
f 2 23,843,000 BT °

TZMBEEREE

TXRARMKE3.8 310 %3.12FF A EH
BEEMIKEBZEEBERATE -

Group Company
rEE AKATE

2014
=t L
HK$000

2013 2014 2013

TT=F pEagliEa — T —F

HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FHAT FHET F#ET FHET
Financial assets Mg EE
Loans and receivables: & 2k & & I 518
— Accounts receivable — FEUBE 9,594 8,282 — —
— Deposits and other — TE@&EWEF&?W
receivables FIE 9,171 905 8,883 —
— Amounts due from — EHQE@‘?‘%’A
associates E QL] — 81,873 — 436
— Amounts due from  — ﬁ’éﬂﬁlﬁﬂlﬁé”&ﬂ
subsidiaries IR — — 61,636 82,105
— Dividend — RS
receivables — — — 12,312
— Pledged bank — BEBBITER
deposits 106,214 76,652 — —
— Cash and cash — BeRIREEEY
equivalents 45,011 94,058 1,025 782
Financial assets at fair ZAFEFAERZ
value through profit or B &ARE :
loss:
— Treasury products  — 1 iERE
designated upon RN E
initial recognition STABERZ
at fair value B TS fh
through profit or
loss — 100,888 — —
169,990 362,658 71,544 95,635

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE - —FE=A=+—HIFE)

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 39. REHE S BEERAE
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEE)
(Continued)
Group Company
FEH AAH

2014 2013 2014 2013
TENFE i TE-ME e

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FETT FET FET FET

Financial liabilities Bk EE

Financial liabilities REBHRAGTEZ
measured at amortised B EE :
costs:
— Bank borrowings — RITEK 99,992 178,545 — —
— Accounts and bills — ERERFRER
payable 8,506 7,727 - =
— Accrued expenses — EETERK
and other payables Hofh e FRIE 3,129 2,283 1,600 3
— Amounts due to — BB AF
subsidiaries KIE — = 104,256 —
Financial liabilities at fair &R AFEFABZmZ
value through profit or BigatE
loss:
— Derivative financial — BEEE Y
instrument held for TERBIA
trading — 463
— Held for trading: — FIEEE -
Fair value of put RomERE 2
option NE — 64,060 — —

111,627 253,078 105,856 3
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39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance with
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement. The hierarchy categorises fair
value measurements into three levels based on the
significant inputs to the valuation techniques used.
The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e.
as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data
(unobservable input).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset or liability is categorised in its entirely
is based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to the fair value measurement.

There were no financial assets nor liabilities measured
at fair value as at 31 March 2014 in accordance with
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 Fair
Value Measurement.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

ME=A=+—HILFE)

39.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

BRERE S BEERERE
B=E®)

TRREEEMERSENF13RATE
FRAEMAEZ AP EEERBEIINGS
MBERARARRBERRZ 2 FEFE
ZHBEERABZREE SEREBR
BEREGABENAEMRAGEREA
FEAEIR=-F AFESFLRERRE
AT &l

F—A: HEREESLABEEEEMSLE
ZHRECRERHE)

FoF: FoRPRENIINZEE(E
B8 ) sk B (BB ATAE) A
BEREESRBERAER: &

F=A: AXHRERABEMSHE(T
TBRBABE) ZCEERAR
BAE -

AFEERRBDERAFE BT 2B
EERESRBABTYYBEERR

BEROME -

3

REEEMHRELENF13RAFETE
IREZ R FESRRE  R_F—0F
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS 39. BB P 2MBEERAERE
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BE#)
(Continued)
2013
—E—=F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—1 B E= HEt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair B AFEFTABRZ
value through profit or B EE
loss
— Designated upon — R MR E
initial recognition: EE -
Treasury products BAFE
at fair value A
through profit or B 7% 22
loss (note (i) (K152 (i) — 100,888 — 100,888
Liabilities =R+
Financial liabilities at fair &ZAF(EFABFZ
value through profit or  BIHEE &
loss
— Held for trading: — FFIEEE -
Interest rate swap FEBH R
and foreign INECSREBRE A
currency forward (BT (i)
contracts
(note (ii)) — (463) — (463)
— Put option (note (i) — RSHERE(HTAE
(iii)) — = (64,060) (64,060)
— 100,425  (64,060) 36,365
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

The treasury products are unlisted securities not
traded on active markets. The fair value of these
products is determined with reference to valuations
provided by the banks and valuations assessed by
independent professional valuers using valuation
techniques that maximise the use of observable
market inputs (i.e. market currency and interest rates
(Level 2).

The derivatives entered into by the Group and included
in Level 2 consist of interest rate swap and foreign
currency forward contracts. These are not traded on
active markets. The fair values of such contracts are
estimated using a valuation technique that maximises
the use of observable market inputs (i.e. market
currency and interest rates (Level 2).

The Group's financial assets classified in Level 3 use
valuation techniques based on significant inputs that
are not based on observable market data. The financial
instruments within this level are reconciled form
opening to closing balances as follows:

39. BEFE 2K EEREE
BE#)

Hiat -

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

MBERALIFRNERT S LEEZ
FLEmES - ZFEMZIAFELZ
ZIRITIR M 2 (A (E RSB H ¥ (L ERD
ZRAEED S EABURGB S E
KEME) 22 EEMEE(E =
&) o

AEBETIYA AR - RZTETA
BREMNEIEHRINEEMED - %F
BRLERNERTS LEE - 256
W2 FEDERBAEEMSE AR
1 (BN T 45 B == ] A R ) 27 (B Bl
st (B4R -

REESBRRE=BRIMBEEFRE
Az il B BT Th AR #5300 SF B AT BR B2
MHEBEZEEHAB  LERAZ
Br 7 T B Al B 9 2 F iR A BR T BR 40
TS &

2014 2013
—E-—MEF —E—=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET

Derivatives financial liabilities TTEMBEE
At 1 April RIEA—AH (64,523) (53,704)
Other adjustments Eith % 463 (463)
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 38(a)) & — R B AR (4772 38(a) 64,060 —
Fair value loss on put option (note 30(a)) Rk 8 2 A FEEE (A7 30(a)) — (10,356)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H - (64,523)

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

&0.

40.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
AND LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(iii)  (Continued)

There have been no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year ended 31 March 2013 and 2014.

For the year ended 31 March 2013, fair value loss on put
option of HK$10,356,000 was recognised in profit or loss
and included in “Other gains and losses” (note 9).

For the year ended 31 March 2014, the fair value of
put option was recognised against the gain on disposal
of a subsidiary (note 38(a)).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its
use of financial instruments in its ordinary course
of operations and in its investment activities. The
financial risks include market risk (including currency
risk and interest risk), price risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk.

Financial risk management is coordinated at the
Group's headquarters, in close co-operation with
the directors of the Company. Overall objectives
in managing financial risks focus on securing the
Group's short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets. Long-
term financial investments are managed to generate
lasting returns with acceptable risk levels.

The finance department works under the financial
risk management policies approved by the directors
of the Company. It identifies ways to access financial
markets and monitors the Group's financial risk
exposures. Regular reports are provided to the
directors of the Company.

39.

40.

BERE 2 BEERERE
BE#)

Haz - (&)

(i) (&
HE T =FR_ZF-—NF=H
=ST—BUFE SHESEANERE
=

BE-_T-—="F=ZA=+—HI
FE - REPEZATFEER
10,356,000/ T E N B MR - WAt
Al B e as R gsia | (MiEE9) -

BE-_T-WME=ZA=+—HLF
EREHEZATEEBBLE —

IR B 2 71 2 Wz e (W3 38(a)) ©
PR EE

AEERNEAREERRES METH
RE R EN RS R A% T A A5
B 2EHMBRREREDSERERE
ERER LN ERER) BERR - E
ERBMRBE SRR

MEAREENRANEER R - R
ARRZEEREEE - ERMBEARZ
EEEGRZEEAREEEE 2 ER™
SRk REAEEzPEHRESR
B - AEEENEXZEBRKTFRERE
RHIMBIRE - NELRADR -

MBEHEARRESTHEZMBRRE
BHRIE BEFEeRMERER
AEBHBRR 25 XRARBE
ERHEERRS -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk

(i)

Transactions in foreign currencies and
the Group’s risk management policies

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. The
Group's exposures to currency risk arise
from its overseas sales and purchases,
which are primarily denominated in RMB,
Euro (“EUR") and US$. These are not the
functional currencies of the group entities
to which these transactions relate. As
HK$ is pegged to USS$, the Group does
not have any significant exposure to
currency risk resulting from transactions
conducted in US$. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposure regularly and
will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

To mitigate the Group's exposure to
foreign currency risk, cash flows in
foreign currencies are monitored and
forward foreign exchange contracts and
other derivative instruments are entered
into in accordance with the Group's risk
management policies. The policies to
manage foreign currency risk have been
followed by the Group since prior years
and are considered to be effective.

FEEEERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED

40. IR ERE &)

(a) MR

(i) NEXGRIZBzZEBRE
B

ENRRERAREREHE
BB TR ZRFESLRE
ReRnghiKE @R -
AEEES 2 EBERKA

EXENUARYE  BUT(E
TDERETFEZENE

B WEEEAIES NI E
RGZAEEEBIZNEE
B o mRBITTER TR
BN SE TR N = CINESIP
ETETRZMIIEZER
[\ B o 7N 5 [ E R A Y AL A
BRE TEERRNERE
R ERIMNE R -

REBERINE 2T A
RRBASEZRREEK
RETLEHINEES DO R EA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. I RERERE &)
(Continued)
(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued) (a) SRR (E)
(ii)  Summary of exposure (ii) EERAIEFEHE
Foreign currency denominated financial AN BT BEEERE
assets and liabilities, translated into HK$ at BRWMERRE BB
the closing rates, are as follows: I 8

2014 2013
—E-MmE “F-=F
RMB Uss$ EUR RMB Us$ EUR
AR% e BT AR X BT
LEKDNTEX T CTIIN  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FE1 FA7 FET

Accounts receivable JEIREES 805 8,387 - 1,088 5,493 964
Deposits, and other 1B REMER

receivables R 8,883 - - = = —
Amounts due from eI

associates R - - - 81,873 = —
Pledge bank deposits BEBRIER 106,214 - - 76,652 = =
Cash and cash equivalents B4 REL5EY 313 150 12 12,391 32,994 242
Bank borrowings RITEH - - - —  (79,960) —
Derivative financial ITESRBAR

liabilities - - - (64,060) = =
Accounts and bills payable FEEZRRER - (8,506) - — (4,156) (3,571)

Net exposure arising from 2 EZBKEE/

recognised financial (BETEL

assets/(liabilities) RRAEEE 116,215 31 12 107,944 (45629)  (2,365)
There was no foreign currency forward RZZE—WOFE=H=+—H
contract outstanding as at 31 March 2014. BAEREIH 2 INESRHR G A -
During the year ended 31 March 2013, HE-_T—=F=A=+—
the Group entered into foreign currency HIEFE @ AEBEE T
forward contracts to mitigate foreign BRHAEHNNREARKH
currency exposure arising from RMB Bk ETL 2 INER R o R
against HK$ or US$. As at 31 March 2013, —E—=F=R=+—8"
the notional amount of these outstanding BRAKRTRINEREHNZ
foreign currency forward contracts was H{E & 76,652,000 /87T °

HK$76,652,000.

The Company did not have any significant RBEH NARWEEY
exposure to foreign currencies at the FRERIINERBR(ZE—=
reporting date (2013: Nil). Fm) e
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the
sensitivity of the Group's profit after tax
for the year and equity in regards to a
2% and 4% (31 March 2013: 2% and
4%) appreciation in the group entities’
functional currencies against RMB and
EUR respectively. These percentages are
the rates used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s
best assessment of the possible change in
foreign exchange rates.

Sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the reporting
date has been determined based on the
assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at
the beginning of the financial year and held
constant throughout the year.

40. IR ERE &)

(a) ShEmEBE(AE)
(iii) BBE T HT

TREMAER 2 F AR
RN R ERHANEBE TS
N EEHARB RIS
AFAE2% k4% (ZF —
F=ZHA=+—H:2%
A%) 2 BREE - WEFADL
DARBPRAETEEREAER
SNERBRIFFTA 2L - I
REBEHIINEEXT
&) 2 HEFE o

X[

MR B - A B A A
HER 2 BUEE DB R
SMEE R BB E 5 R B K
FREMBEENRBERRSE
THMEE -

2014 2013
—EB-F —E—=F
RMB EUR RMB EUR
AR BT AR BT
RLCK N CHl  HK$'000  HK$'000

FET FET TFET TET

Profit for the year 4R & I(RE
and retained bl

profits (1,941) — (1,807) 79

An 2% and 4% depreciation in the group
entities’ functional currencies against RMB
and EUR respectively would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s profit for the
year and equity but of opposite effect.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(a) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iii) Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

These are the same method and
assumption used in preparing the
sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements of the year ended 31 March
2013.

Exposures to foreign exchange rates vary
during the year depending on the volume
of overseas transactions. Nevertheless,
the analysis above is considered to be
representative of the Group’'s exposure to
foreign currency risk.

(b) Interest rate risk

(i)

Exposures to interest rate risk and the
Group’s risk management policies

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that
the fair value or cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The
Group's interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank borrowings. These borrowings
bearing variable rates and fixed rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk
respectively.

The Group reviews whether bank
borrowings bearing floating rates should be
drawn from time to time with reference to
the trend of changes in interest rates. The
interest rates and repayment terms of bank
borrowings and cash and bank balances of
the Group are disclosed in notes 28 and 27
respectively. The directors of the Company
monitor interest rate change exposure and
will consider hedging significant interest
rate exposure should the need arise. The
policies to management interest rate risk
have been consistently applied by the
Group and are considered to be effective.

ME=A=+—HILLFE)

MKEREREZ)

(a) ShEmEBE(AE)
(iii) BREE 7 H (&)

BETERBRERREE
—E—=f=A=+—HL
FEMBBRRABHEE D
WrFrE A E R -

SN BE R @ B Y A B
SR ZEMME - A - £

DT RAR AR RRAEE
E# 2z INE R

(b) RIZER

(i)

FIEmpERERAEDZ )
BEERE

NMEERBREFTBIAZAF
Tﬁjﬁﬁémélmiﬁiﬁjﬁaﬁz
EMER KB AR - A%
@Zﬂtﬂ n 2R B IRTT
o LAZ BRI % R B A
R B M o M
BIEE RS h 8 X R R
AFEFIEER -

REEBREFNEEF B
Hﬂmﬂ*ﬂzﬁxu“”iﬁru
STEZBITER  AEEZ
RITERZFEREEKRK
IARIR & RIBITEFD RIR
MfsE28 K27 - KD &
PEEERMEREHAR

TEERNERERLHHE
RMRERR - F KB REE

BRNBERF-—EHHAE
Bin/m - ARBRITZIAER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

illustrates the
sensitivity of the Group's profit for the

The following table

year and equity to a possible change in
interest rates of +/-1% (2013: +/-1%),
with effect from the beginning of the year.
The calculations are based on the Group's
financial assets and liabilities held at the
reporting date. All other variables are held
constant.

Change in

interest
rate

N5

BB B +1%
1%

Borrowings in HK$

40. IR ERE &)

(b) FIEmEME)
(i) BBEDH

THREME FE  NEE
2 F N A K w6 22 A
BEHIE +/-1% (ZZT—=4:
H1%) BB BRAE A
MEHE T UASEENRER
RECHGEERBERE
o FTAH M #E =M
TEE o

2014 2013

“3-pf ECF
Increase/  Increase/ Increase/  Increase/
(DECESARNOEGETM  Change in+ (Decrease)  (Decrease)
in profit for in retained interest in profit for i retained
the year profits rate the year profits
FhEH  REEN ErgHl  RREH
g/ (H5) #h/(89) EEESEREVAV:-UINS-VAVT))
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
FiEn T 7 FiEr
(835) (835) +1% (823) (823)
835 835 -1% 823 823

The assumed changes in interest rates are
considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’'s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest
rate over the period until the next annual
reporting date. The sensitivity analysis
included in the financial statements of
the year ended 31 March 2013 has been
prepared on the same basis.

FEEEZERERAF U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(c) Other price risk

(i)

(ii)

Exposures to other price risk and the
Group’s risk management policies

Other price risk relates to the risk that
the fair values or future cash flows of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than
changes in interest rates and foreign
exchange rates). The Group is exposed to
change in market prices in respect of its
investments in unlisted debt securities,
which are classified as treasury products at
fair value through profit or loss.

To manage its market risk arising from
these investments, the Group maintains a
portfolio of investments with different risk
and return profile and will consider hedging
the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

As at 31 March 2014, no investment in
unlisted debt securities were held by the
Group. As at 31 March 2013, if the prices
had increased/(decreased) by 1% and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group’s profit for the year and retained
profits would had increased/(decreased) by
approximately HK$842,000.

Sensitivity analysis has been determined
assuming that the price change had
occurred at the reporting date and has
been applied to the Group's investments in
treasury products on that date.

40. IR ERE &)

(c) HtvEHRER

(i)

(ii)

RIERMEEERRAEE
2B EE B

HiERRER S KA SE
1% (F) & K 55 B 2% & B B
SMNEE  BHHMBTAZA
FESIRKASRENE
AEEREDERERTE
FRABRZMBEMRZIEL
MEBELFRE  BHED
AT S EREE 2 AR o

REBEBRBREELE LTS
R\ B - AN S AR H A [R]FEL B
kEHZIKEHRE  ARE
FEREEHTERRER

HBETH

RZE—WMF=ZA=+—
A ASEHESEEE
MEBESZRE - RF
—=€=A=+—A " {48
BT T#1% BB R
AT ERRREHETE AL
B 2 F A ) AR s F i
Ol 2 ) %3842,000 7%
=

BREDT BRIV EE A
EHREREHYCRNE R
ARASEZMBERKE
MEE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE -—Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)
(d) Credit risk
(i)  Summary of exposure

(ii)

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument
would fail to discharge its obligation under
the terms of the financial instrument and
cause a financial loss to the Group. The
credit risk for liquid funds and financial
instruments is considered negligible as
the counterparties are reputable financial
institutions with high quality and credit
ratings. The Group is also exposed to credit
risk arising from the provision of financial
guarantees and the amounts of which are
disclosed in note 37.

Risk management objective and policies

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk
by rigorously selecting the counterparties.
Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents
is mitigated as cash is deposited in
banks of high credit rating. Credit risk on
receivables is minimised as the Group
performs ongoing evaluation on the
financial condition of its debtors and tightly
monitors the ageing of its receivable
balances. Follow up action is taken in
case of overdue balances. In addition,
management reviews the recoverability
of receivables individually and collectively
at each reporting date to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

As disclosed in note 7, a significant portion
of Group's sales are made to several
major customers. These customers made
continuous settlements with the Group
and therefore, management believes that
the credit risk as at 31 March 2013 and
2014 on the amounts due was minimal.
The remaining amount of accounts and bills
receivable was attributable to a number
of counterparties and customers and
therefore, the Group had no significant
concentration of credit risk on the
remaining amounts.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Risk management objective and policies
(Continued)

The Group adopts conservative investment
strategies. Investment decisions and
guarantees to non-group entities have to be
approved by the directors of the Company.
For investments in treasury products, only
issuers and/or brokers with high credit
rating would be considered.

The credit and investment policies
have been consistently applied and are
considered to be effective in limiting
the Group's exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or other financial
assets. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of accrued expenses and
other payables, dividend payables as well as its
financing obligations, and also in respect of its
cash flow management. The Group's objective
is to maintain an appropriate level of liquid
assets and committed lines of funding to meet
its liquidity requirements in the short and long
term.

The Group manages its liquidity needs on a
consolidated basis by carefully monitoring
scheduled debt servicing payments for long-
term financial liabilities as well as forecast cash
inflows and outflows due in day to day business.
Liquidity needs are monitored in various time
bands, on a day to day and week to week
basis, as well as on the basis of a rolling 30 day
projection. Long-term liquidity needs for a 90-
day and 180-day lookout period are identified
monthly. Net cash requirements are compared
to available borrowing facilities in order to
determine headroom or any shortfalls. This
analysis shows if available borrowing facilities
are expected to be sufficient over the lookout
period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 & —Z—

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group maintains cash and short-term bank
deposits to meet its liquidity requirements for 30
day periods at a minimum. Funding for longer-
term liquidity needs is additionally secured by an
adequate amount of committed credit facilities
and the ability to sell longer-term financial
assets.

The liquidity policies have been consistently
applied by the Group and are considered to have
been effective in managing liquidity risks.

Analysed below is the Group’s remaining
contractual maturities for its non-derivative
financial liabilities and derivative financial
liabilities as at 31 March 2014 and 2013. When
the creditor has a choice of when the liability
is settled, the liability is included on the basis
of the earliest date on when the Group can
be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment
is allocated to the earliest period in which the
Group is committed to pay.

Specifically, for term-loans which contain a
repayment on demand clause which can be
exercised at the bank's sole discretion, the
analysis shows the cash outflow based on
the earliest period in which the Group can be
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to
invoke their unconditional rights to call the loans
with immediate effect. The maturity analysis for
other bank borrowings is prepared based on the
scheduled repayment dates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z—MF=A=1+—HIFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

40.

The analysis is based on the undiscounted cash

flows of the financial liabilities.

At 31 March 2014

BEREARER#)

(e) RBEEZEBR(E)

DM TIREM I AE 2 REEIRIR
SMEFD -

R-ZE—NE=A=+—H

Between Between  Contractual
On  Lessthan Tand 2 2and 5 undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year years years  cash flow amount
EHNRER
BER  OR-F -FEWME WEERE  BeRE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FET AT FEn FEn FEn
Group rEE
Non-derivatives FTETR
Bank borrowings BIEH - 99,992 - - 99,992 99,992
Accounts payables FERERR - 8,506 - - 8,506 8,506
Accrued expenses and fexT & R R A
other payables FE 3,129 - - - 3,129 3,129
Dividend payables FEfTRRE - - - - - -
3129 108498 - - MgT ey
Financial guarantees issued BB HER
Maximum amount RaERE
quaranteed (note (a)) (Hi2(a) - - - _ _ _
Between Between  Contractual
On  Less than 1and 2 2and 5 undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year years years  cash flow amount
ERRER
BREX  OR-F£ -EEWE WERIE Rehig REE
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEr FEx AT Az FEn FEn
Company KRR
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ERHIER AZIE 104,256 - - - 104,256 104,256
Accrued expenses and JEsT B R AL
other payables B 1,600 - - - 1,600 1,600
105,856 - - — 10586 105,856
Financial guarantees issued D% HBHEER
Maximum amount RRERE
quaranteed (note (a)) (Wit ) - - - - - -

“E-=FF—UFEFH ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

167



168
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B IR AR

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HEZE - —FE=A=+—HIFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 40. KRR ERE &)
(Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued) (e) FBESRAM(E)
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=%f=A=+—H
Between Between  Contractual
On  Less than Tand 2 2and 5 undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year years years  cash flow amount
CLNE
BREX  IR-F —EZRE WERLE  RERE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT AT AT AT AT AT
Group i
Non-derivatives FTETR
Bank borrowings RAER 178,545 - - - 178,545 178,545
Accounts and bills payable  ENEHEEE - 7,721 = — 7,721 7,721
Accrued expenses and JEsT & R AR
other payables B 2,283 - - - 2,283 2,283
180,828 1,727 — — 188,555 188,555
Derivatives fTETR
Derivative financial liabilities ~ 7£HKAE — 463 — 504,309 504,772 64,523
Financial guarantees issued B M HER
Maximum amount RaERE
quaranteed (note (a)) (Wit ) 217,000 - - — 217,000 -
Between Between  Contractual
On  Less than Tand 2 2and 5 undiscounted Carrying
demand 1 year years years  cash flow amount
BHRKR
BEX IR -EEME WEELF  RoNE KHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT 87 87 AT BT A7
Company LN
Accrued expenses and JEsT B R AL
other payables B 3 - - - 3 3
Financial guarantees issued B%HBHER
Maximum amount RaERE
quaranteed (note (a)) (Wit a) 959,808 = = = 959,808 =

FEEEERERAT U-HOME GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 EE —Z—ME=A=+—HILFE)

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(e)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Note:

(a)  Contractual financial guarantees provided by the
Group are disclosed in note 37. As assessed by
the directors, it is not probable that the banks
would claim the Group for losses in respect of
the guarantee contracts as it is not probable
that KJP Group would default repayment of
bank borrowings. Accordingly, no provision for
the Group’s obligations under the guarantees
was made as at 31 March 2013. The contractual
maturity of these financial guarantees was “on
demand”.

The following table summarises the maturity
analysis of term loans with repayment on
demand clause based on the agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed
using contractual rates. Taking into account the
Group's financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretion to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that such
term loans will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

40. IR ERE &)

(e) HBELEAMR(E)
HiazE -

(a) AEETHZEHAEPBERR
MifE37 4% 5E - EHEFF ML - RTT
RAAEEBRRERENZERZ
AREEAIK AREREAEE
TARAREGHREBRITER
Bt - R=ZB—=F=R=+—
B WERAKEZ EREER
REHE - ZFMBERZAHNZ
HMR AR ENRK] -

TRBMAEREREEGRRZE
HMEREER =& IEIHEREE
RIELZBIHADH - ZEBER
ERENKRFEZFEMAR - &
ZRAKEZMEINN - EFRA
RIT AR RETTE L B B 2R
REE - EFHE ZRFEHER
RIREE R GRMHTBEERE B
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
51 755 S 7 B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 #& —Z&—

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41.

(Continued)
(e) Liquidity risk (Continued)

Maturity analysis of term loans subject to
a repayment on demand clause based on
scheduled repayments is as follows:

ME=A=+—HIFE)

BEREARER#)

(e) RBEESEM(E)
otz RERENRE

RIAE B
Rz EME R Z B I A 440

B’
-

Total Between Between
undiscounted Less than Tand?2 2and b
cash flows 1 year years years
AMERS
ikt IR-F5  -FEmE WEREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
FEn FEn FEn FEn
Group A%H
31 March 2014 ZE-ME=A=1-H 101,613 - 101,613 - - -
31 March 2013 “£-=£=f=1-H 180,978 — 170,403 798 2,39 7,383

The Company did not have any term loans
subject to repayment on demand clause as at 31
March 2014 and 2013.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES

The Group’'s objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
going concern in order to provide returns for the
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital and to support the Group's stability
and growth.

The Group monitors its capital structure and make
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristic of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debts. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes

during the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B IR AR B =

(For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE - —FE=A=+—HIFE)

41. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND 41.

PROCEDURES (continued)

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt
is calculated as bank borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents and pledged bank deposits as shown
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a
reasonable level.

The gearing ratios as at the reporting date were as

EXREERRRRERF @)

AEBEEREERBELR(ANAEFHE
BRAES A EREERN - REFER
DRBTEFRRERREFEBWFE
(AR B BN AKRAMABR) o K
SEEERFREERBILREREKY

RHER - BERBHLEINT :

follows:

2014 2013
Ll T =

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Bank borrowings RITER 99,992 178,545
Less: Cash and cash equivalents - HeRBESEEY (45,011) (94,058)
Less: Pledged bank deposits O - BEIRRITER (106,214) (76,652)
Net (assets)/debt (BE) AEFH (51,233) 7,835
Total equity ERBRE 95,214 615,937
Gearing ratio BEBMGBLH X N/A TR iE A 1%

“E-=FF—UFEFH ANNUAL REPORT 2013/14

171



172

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EFHBERE

2010 2011 2012
s 2 —F-—F
HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000
FET TATL AT
(Restated)
(m=51)
Revenue g
Continuing operations BEREZK 163,494 175,309 203,787 35,648 35,079
Discontinued operations BRIBEEK 472,988 547,297 = = —
636,482 722,606 203,787 35,648 35,079
Profit from operation Rk
Continuing operations FZE%&%%%% 27,154 22,225 37,91 16,396 95,785
Discontinued operations BRIBEEK 69,692 77,936 = = —
96,846 100,161 37,921 16,396 95,785
Finance costs BEMA
Continuing operations Tii“"i«‘**%i% (693) (1,075) (3,404) (4,435) (1,401)
Discontinued operations BRIMEEX (3,118) (3,973) = = —
(3,811) (5,048) (3,404) (4,435) (1,401)
Share of results of associates  FEREE N5
Continuing operations BEREZK (101) (94) 40,737 G B 27,135
Discontinued operations BRIEEEEE = = — — -
(101) (94) 40,737 35,352 27,135
Profit before taxation BRI AL A
Continuing operations Tiiai«‘**%i% 26,360 21,056 75,254 47313 121,519
Discontinued operations BRIBEEK 66,574 73,963 = = —
92,934 95,019 75,254 47,313 121,519
Income tax expenses SRR
Continuing operations BEma K (2,484) (1,839) (4,636) (5,559) (32,302)
Discontinued operations BRIBEEK (8,864) (12,177) = = —
(11,348) (14,016) (4,636) (5,559) (32,302)
Profit for the year ENER
Continuing operations REmazK 23,876 19,217 70,618 41,754 89,217
Discontinued operations BRIBEEK 57,710 61,786 = = —
81,586 81,003 70,618 41,754 89,217
Attributable to ATALIE
Equity holders *EE%E/\ 64,582 255,663 70,620 41,754 89,219
Non-controlling interests RS 17,004 19,205 2) — -
81,586 274,868 70,618 41,754 89,219
Assets and liabilities and EERBER
non-controlling interests JERER
Total assets EEME 737,786 905,098 932,953 872,449 207,420
Total liabilities BiRMAE (275,286) (297,748) (328,370) (256,512) (112,206)
Non-controlling interests RS (75,981 4 6 6 8
386,519 607,354 604,589 615,943 95,222
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